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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from, or in reliance upon, the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Looking back to 2019, although international trade disputes posed certain
negative effects, the economic growth rate in China remained at 6.1%,
which continuing the steady growth in China. 2019 was also a challenging
year for the pharmaceutical industry in China. The Pharmaceutical
Administration Law ((Z2mmE X)) was significantly revised for the first
time in 18 years resulting in a further enhancement of requirements for
pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises. The medical insurance coverage
further expanded while the scope for “4+7 procurement with target
quantity” broadened. The effect of implementing pharmaceutical reform
policies such as premium controls in medical insurance, lowering of tender
prices, control on proportion of drug cost and quality consistency evaluation
continues to appear. The general medicine market are under unprecedented
pressure. Meanwhile, the enhancing of environmental requirements also
led to price increase in active ingredients. Therefore, there was increased
pressure on the operation of pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises
and their profit margin shrank further. However, there are factors providing
strong drive and support for the robust development of the pharmaceutical
industry such as ageing population, increasing public health awareness,
steady growth of market demand, accelerated technological advancement,
increasing stringent regulatory environment for the pharmaceutical
industry, full implementation of the “Healthy China 2030" strategy and the
government'’s active promotion of the development of Chinese medicines.

In 2019, the Group continuously strengthened and developed its
pharmaceutical business including Chinese herbal medicine, generic drugs,
transfusion and anti-tumor drugs, and strived to expand the medical device
business to mitigate the impact of new national medical policies on the
pharmaceutical enterprises of the Group. At the same time, the purchase
and sales of medicines and healthcare food products business also continued
to expand product variety and sales network in accordance with the industry
development and tried innovative marketing models to further expand its
business scale.
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Looking forward into 2020, the economy in China is expected to be affected
to a certain extent by the COVID-19, yet the steady growth will resume after
the epidemic. The State will continue to allocate more resources to medical
and healthcare. The increasing monitor over drugs quality, pharmaceutical
system standards and standardized operations of pharmaceutical
manufacturing enterprises by regulatory authorities would further promote
the normalization, standardization and efficiency of the pharmaceutical
industry and would provide a larger market and historic development
opportunities for high-quality pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises.

In the future, the Group will continue to increase investment in quality
consistency evaluation and research and development to accelerate the
transformation of new drug from clinical research to applications. In addition,
the Group will also keep up with clinical and market needs, strengthen the
layout of research and development and strive for continuous launch of new
products to enrich the variety and dosage forms of pharmaceutical products.
The Group will also increase investment in research and development of
medical devices and develop products with growth potential. For the sales,
the Group will further strengthen the sales team, adopt scientific and flexible
marketing strategies and further expand the medical market and sales
network to maintain stable growth of the Group’s business.

The Board will lead the Company’s management to continue to improve
governance, strengthen standardized management and improve internal
control system. Under the lead of the Board and management and with the
persistent efforts of all employees, the Board believes that the business of
the Group will continue to develop well. Facing changing policies and market
conditions, the Group will leverage on the opportunities and challenges in
the pharmaceutical and healthcare industry brought by national policies and
improve development tactics and strategies, as well as strive to eliminate the
impact of unfavourable conditions. Meanwhile, the Group will allocate more
resources to the research and development of new drugs, quality consistency
evaluation for drug and product quality assurance system, ensuring and
promoting the steady growth of the Group’s business.

On behalf of the Company and the Board, | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all shareholders and business partners for their support
and trust to the Group, and to all staff for their commitment to the Group.

Zhang Feng
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”), the Group was
principally engaged in the research and development, manufacturing and
selling of medicines, and the purchase and sales of medicines and healthcare
food products in the PRC. The medicines being sold by the Group mainly
cover four therapeutic areas which are oncology, cardiovascular system,
respiratory system and digestive system.

Research and Development, Manufacturing and Selling of Medicines

Currently, the Group manufactures its own medicines through its production
base (“Fuzhou Production Base”) located in Jin'an District, Fuzhou, Fujian
Province, the PRC, including Chinese medicines (which includes more than
a dozen of dosage forms such as tablets, capsules, granules, oral solutions
and tinctures) and chemical medicines (which includes various dosage forms
namely tablets, capsules, granules, small volume injections, large volume
injections of glass bottle, plastic bottle and soft bag), with nearly 500
approval documents being registered. The Fuzhou Production Base is the only
narcotic production base in Fujian Province designated by the State.

Currently, the Group’s research and development work mainly fulfills
the internal development demands of the Group through conducting
independent research and development and cooperation with external
research and development institutions. Two pharmaceutical manufacturing
subsidiaries of the Group are recognized as high-tech enterprises in Fujian
Province and entitled to enjoy preferential corporate income tax treatment
for high-tech enterprises. The said two subsidiaries currently possess various
new drugs and exclusive products with self-owned intellectual property
rights, including Tegafur, Gimeracil and Oteracil Potassium Tablets (the “TGOP
Tablets” or B & EF, a new drug for anti-gastric cancer), Xiaozheng Yigan
Tablets CHEzEFTFr, an anti-liver-cancer drug), Proteoglycan Tablets (Z &2
H Fr, for enhancing the immune system), Biyuan Capsules (&2 %, an anti-
rhinitis medicine), Amaranth Berberine Capsules (B3 & EZXB %, a drug
for acute diarrhea), Pre-filled Catheter Flusher (FB7e =B & %8S, a Class Il
medical device) and HTK Myocardial Protection Cardioplegic Solution (HTK/Lx
WREFBER, a Class Il medical device). During the Year, Pre-filled Catheter
Flusher (878 =V & £ 22), which was co-developed by a relevant subsidiary
of the Group and an independent third party, completed the medical device
registration and the manufacturing registration procedure in mainland China,
and commenced production and sales. A subsidiary of the Group has been
included into “Cultivation and Development Library of Little Giant Leading
Enterprises in Science and Technology” of Fujian Province since 2016 with a
term of validity of 5 years and was therefore entitled to supportive measures
such as a special fund as an award of additional tax deduction on research
and development expenses according to the relevant rules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Under the national policy in relation to quality consistency evaluation for
generic drugs promulgated in 2016, appropriate types of medicines were
proactively selected by a pharmaceutical manufacturing subsidiary of the
Group and the first batch of selected medicines were selected to undergo
the quality consistency evaluation for generic drugs in 2016. Currently, one
of the selected medicine, Sodium Bicarbonate Tablets, has already passed
the consistency evaluation. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 9 April 2019. The relevant work of quality consistency
evaluation for other selected medicines is under orderly progress.

The supply of Tegafur, one of the active ingredients of the Group’s new
anti-cancer drug TGOP Tablets, has been tight across the PRC since the year
2018. Manufacturers of TGOP products (including capsules and tablets) in
the PRC have been affected to various extents. During the Year, the Group
already found source of Tegafur supply and the impact on the production
and sales of TGOP Tablets caused by insufficient Tegafur supply has been
mitigated. In addition, TGOP products have been included into the Drug
Directory for “4+7" Procurement with Target Quantity. In the future, market
expansion, sales volume and profit margin of the TGOP Tablets of the Group
will be affected to some extent.

Under the impact of national policies, there is further pressure on the
operation of pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises. Meanwhile, the
profit margin of the sales and manufacturing business of the Group has
further decreased due to decrease in the selling price of the drugs, increase
in the price of active ingredients, higher quality requirement for drugs,
increased investment in the pharmaceutical enterprise drug quality assurance
system and the increasing expenses for drug re-registration and quality
consistency evaluation. During the Year, the Group proactively responded
to the national pharmaceutical policies and policies in key areas such as
Fujian Province, adopted flexible and diversified marketing strategies based
on the ever changing market situation, successfully launched new medical
devices, proactively expanded the market of pharmaceutical products and
medical devices and thus prominently increased the sales revenue of the
manufacturing and selling of medicines segment of the Group.

During the Year, a medicine manufacturing subsidiary of the Company re-
acquired a high-tech enterprise certificate in Fujian Province after application
and certification. The high-tech enterprise certificate in Fujian Province of
another medicine manufacturing subsidiary of the Company was due to
expire in the Year. Before the expiration, the subsidiary re-applied for the
certification and has passed the certification and re-acquired a new high-tech
enterprise certificate in Fujian Province.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE RIS

The production lines for 15 dosage forms of a Chinese medicine
manufacturing subsidiary of the Company acquired the Pharmaceutical GMP
Certificate upon recertification inspection and having compiled with the
requirements of Chinese Good Manufacturing Practices for Pharmaceutical
Products (B EEESEILRE)) after the previous certificate had
expired. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 23 January 2019. In addition, 6 production lines of another medicine
manufacturing subsidiary of the Company also acquired the Pharmaceutical
GMP Certificates upon inspection and having compiled with the requirements
of Chinese Good Manufacturing Practices for Pharmaceutical Products (%%
mAEEEEEEMRE)). Among the 6 production lines, 5 production lines are
existing production lines which the Group has obtained recertification before
expiration of the previous certificates, and 1 production line was newly-built,
passed the Pharmaceutical GMP Certification for the first time. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 4 November 2019.

During the Year, two second-tier subsidiaries of the Group, which are located
in Lianjiang County, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, completed the cancellation of
registration, as they had no actual business operation since the resumption of
the relevant lands by government in 2017.

Purchase and Sales of Medicines and Healthcare Food Products

Currently, the main products distributed by the Group are medicines and
healthcare food products, which include the well-known product series of
the Neptunus Ginkgo Leaves Tablets (8 F SR A EEF) and Neptunus Jinzun
(B E£18). In 2017, Neptunus Yinkeluo Ginkgo Leaves Tablets was listed in
the Rui Sub-List of China Pharmaceutical Brand List (5F 5% %e 17, #1555 1)
sponsored by Menet (previously known as China Pharmaceutical Economic
Information Network).

During the Year, the purchase and sales of medicines and healthcare food
products business continued to grow. Among which, the sales revenue
through large-sized and medium-sized chain drugstores continued to grow
due to reasons such as the increase in demand in domestic pharmaceutical
retail and healthcare food products market, the increase in the number of
products and categories distributed by the Group, the adoption of a flexible
and diversified sales policy, and an in-depth optimization of the sales force
etc. Following the extensive promotion and in-depth implementation of “two
invoice system” (FZEH]) and “one invoice system” (—Z2l) in the PRC, the
business of selling drugs to ultimate medical institutions through professional
sales promotion companies has passed its adjustment and transformation
period and it is gradually recovering and taking on an increasing momentum.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In order to reduce the layers of intermediary within the distribution of
pharmaceutical products, the PRC government has actively implemented “two
invoice system” (FI52Hl) throughout the country and “one invoice system”
(—Z=ll) in certain provinces. Due to the impact of such policies, certain
pharmaceutical products which were originally distributed through the Group
are now required, in some provinces, to be directly supplied to hospitals or
ultimate distributors by the pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises. To
adapt to the new policy environment, the Group has transformed relevant
business into a pharmaceutical product sales management service business
based on the existing purchase and sales business model and the needs of
end-use consumers and manufacturing enterprises.

During the Year, to ensure the normal operation of business, a subsidiary of
the Company, which mainly engages in the purchase and sales of medicines
and healthcare food products business, carried out the re-certification work
in advance before its Pharmaceutical GSP Certificate expired. Upon inspection
by relevant authorities, the subsidiary complied with the requirements of
Chinese Good Supply Practices for Pharmaceutical Products ({Z2m4¢ /a8 &
‘EIE##)) and obtained a new Pharmaceutical GSP Certificate. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 7 August 2019.

During the Year, to fulfill the business demand, a subsidiary of the Company,
which mainly engages in the purchase and sales of medicines and healthcare
food products business, set up two small-sized subsidiaries respectively in
Xianning, Hubei Province and Jilin, Jilin Province.

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group has been giving emphasis and taking actions in the aspects
of environment, society and governance, including: constantly improving
production efficiency, conserved resources and enhanced employees’
awareness of environmental protection. Regarding production, the output
corresponding to unit carbon emission increases, the pollution and the
emission of hazardous substance which are in violation of laws and
regulations are banned. Regarding office management, office supplies and
energy consumption are conserved. Also, the Group actively improved the
working environment and committed to social responsibility.

During the Year, the Company engaged a professional third party institution
to assist the Company in conducting the comprehensive communication (from
various dimensions) with stakeholders by way of face-to-face communication,
telephone interview, questionnaire and survey. The relevant results are not
only an important reference to which we review and promote the sustainable
development agenda of the Group, but also provide a powerful basis for
the material selection and preparation of our environmental, social and
governance report.
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The environmental, social and governance report prepared by the Company
pursuant to Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules will be published within
three months following the release of the Company’s annual report.

Event after Reporting Period

Pursuant to the “Treatment Plans of Pneumonia caused by the Novel
Coronavirus Infection (5th Trial Version)” (CGHESTEARTR S BRI DA 2
HEGFITERRM))) published by the National Health Commission of the
People’s Republic of China on 5 February 2020, the intravenous injection
of Ribavirin may be used for the antiviral therapy section. A pharmaceutical
manufacturing subsidiary of the Company produces Ribavirin Injection with
registration approval number “Guo Yao Zhun Zi H19993231" (Bl %4
H19993231). For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 6 February 2020.

A 80%-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Subsidiary”) was served with
a writ of summons ((2020) Hu 0120 Min Chu 1752 Hao) ((2020)J80120
R #117525%), the “Writ”) issued in the People’s Court of Fengxian District,
Shanghai (/&M ZEBE A RART), PRC. The plaintiff in the Writ lodged the
complaint over the “Tegafur Exclusive Agency Agreement” (&N B K12
&%) against the Subsidiary. The Company is currently seeking legal advice
in relation to the proceeding. Meanwhile, the Company considers that the
proceeding does not affect the normal operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries, and will be prudent yet optimistic to proactively deal with the
proceeding. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 17 March 2020.

PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

With the Chinese government continuously driving the reform of the
pharmaceutical industry, pharmaceutical enterprises will face more
stringent regulations. Although this may create short-term operating
pressures, the Group believes that a better regulated market will ultimately
bring opportunities to pharmaceutical enterprises in China and keep
the pharmaceutical industry in China grow in the long term. The Group
believes that the growth of the pharmaceutical industry in China is
supported by a combination of favourable factors, including the ageing
population, the overall two-child policy, Chinese government’s continual
investment of resources and funds in the pharmaceutical industry, and the
rising income level and purchasing power of domestic consumers. Going
forward, the Group will leverage on the opportunities and challenges in the
pharmaceutical and healthcare industry brought by the national policies, as
well as strive to eliminate the impact of unfavourable factors. Meanwhile,
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Management Discussion and Analysis

the Group will also allocate more resources to the research and development
of new drugs, quality consistency evaluation for generic drug and product
quality assurance system, ensuring the sustainable and healthy development
of the Group’s pharmaceutical manufacturing and sales business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's revenue for the Year was approximately RMB1,080,871,000
(2018: approximately RMB867,123,000), representing an increase of
approximately 24.65% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year. In relation to the revenue, approximately RMB499,138,000, which
amounted to approximately 46.18% of the Group's total revenue, was
derived from the manufacturing and selling of medicines segment, while
approximately RMB581,733,000, which amounted to approximately 53.82%
of the Group's total revenue, was derived from the sales and distribution of
medicines and healthcare products segment. During the Year, the Group’s
revenue from the manufacturing and selling of medicines segment increased
by approximately 15.15% as compared with the corresponding period
of last year, while the revenue of the sales and distribution of medicines
and healthcare products segment increased by approximately 34.14% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year. Therefore the total
revenue of the Group increased as a whole. The Group's revenue of the
Year derived from sales of medical devices of the Group was approximately
RMB12,827,000, which amounted to 2.57% of the revenue of the
manufacturing and selling of medicines segment; the revenue derived from
sales management services of pharmaceutical products of the Group was
approximately RMB5,858,000, which amounted to approximately 1.01%
of the revenue of the sales and distribution of medicines and healthcare
products segment.

During the Year, the Group’s gross profit margin was approximately 59%
(2018: approximately 58%), representing an increase of approximately 1
percentage point as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

The Group's gross profit during the Year was approximately
RMB643,038,000 (2018: approximately RMB502,215,000), representing
an increase of approximately 28.04% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in the
Group’s total revenue.
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EEE RIS

During the Year, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses were
approximately RMB456,599,000 (2018: approximately RMB349,026,000),
representing an increase of approximately 30.82% from the corresponding
period of last year. The increase in selling and distribution expenses was
mainly due to the growth of the overall sale of the Group.

The Group’s administrative expenses for the Year were approximately
RMB65,573,000 (2018: approximately RMB55,916,000), representing an
increase of approximately 17.27% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. The increase in administrative expenses was mainly
because (i) depreciation cost increased as the fixed assets increased; (ii)
maintenance cost of the office buildings and warehouses relevant to
pharmaceutical GMP certification increased; and (3) labour costs increased.

During the Year, the Group’s other operating expenses amounted to
approximately RMB49,907,000 (2018: approximately RMB41,220,000),
representing an increase of approximately 21.07% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year. The increase in other operating expenses
was mainly due to (i) provisions of impairment for obsolete inventory and
inventory written off increased as compared with the corresponding period
of last year; and (ii) a provision for impairment loss of intangible assets
(anesthetic drug production and selling rights) was made.

The Group's finance costs for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB1,417,000 (2018: approximately RMB1,787,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 20.71% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. The decrease in finance costs was mainly because the
average principal amount of bank loans of the Group during the Year
decreased as compared with the corresponding period of last year, and
finance costs decreased accordingly.

Due to the above reasons, the Group’s profit after tax increased from
approximately RMB51,064,000 of the corresponding period of last year
to approximately RMB63,409,000 of the Year, representing a significant
increase of approximately 24.18%. Profit attributable to the owners
of the Company increased from approximately RMB48,089,000 of the
corresponding period of last year to approximately RMB59,719,000 of the
Year, representing an increase of approximately 24.18%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group usually finances its operating and investing activities with its
internal financial resources and bank loans. The Group’s transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi and the Group reviews its working capital
and finance requirements on a regular basis.

Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2019, the short-term bank borrowings of the Group was
RMB30,000,000. Details of banking facilities please refer to note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Shareholder’s Entrusted Loan

The Company obtained a shareholder’s entrusted loan of RMB9,000,000
from Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Bio-
engineering”, a controlling shareholder of the Company) through an
entrusted arrangement with a bank. Neptunus Bio-engineering had
undertaken to the Company that it would not demand repayment of
the above-mentioned shareholder’s entrusted loan unless and until = (1)
the repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely
affect the operations of the Company and/or its business objectives as set
out in the prospectus published by the Company on 29 August 2005 (the
“Prospectus”); (2) each of the independent non-executive Directors was
of the opinion that the repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted loan
would not adversely affect the operations of the Company and/or the
implementation of its business objectives as set out in the Prospectus, and
the Company would make an announcement in respect of the decision
of the independent non-executive Directors made under (2); and (3) the
Company had a positive cash flow and had retained profits in the relevant
financial year.
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NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB561,800,000. Current assets comprised cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB384,211,000, inventories of approximately
RMB124,747,000 and trade and other receivables of approximately
RMB297,133,000. Current liabilities comprised trade and other payables
of approximately RMB173,795,000, current tax of approximately
RMB10,212,000, contract liabilities of approximately RMB19,426,000,
interest-bearing bank borrowings of RMB30,000,000, lease liabilities of
approximately RMB 1,457,000, entrusted loan of RMB9,000,000 and deferred
revenue of RMB401,000. The net current assets increased approximately by
RMB50,209,000 as compared with that of approximately RMB511,591,000
as at 31 December 2018. The increase in net current assets as compared
to that on 31 December 2018 was mainly due to the fact that: (i) inventory
increased by approximately RMB11,609,000; (ii) trade receivables and other
receivables increased by approximately RMB54,150,000; and (iii) cash and
cash equivalents increased by approximately RMB60,634,000.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the utilised banking facilities of RMB30,000,000
and the available utilised banking facilities of RMB70,000,000 of the Group
were secured by pledge of its buildings and prepaid lease payments and the
pledged buildings and prepaid lease payments were stated at an aggregate
value of approximately RMB97,879,000.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

During the Year, the Group’s operating revenue, major selling costs and
capital expenditure were denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were mainly denominated in RMB.
As such, the foreign currency risk facing the Group is limited. Currently, the
Group has not adopted any financial instrument for hedging purposes.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment revenue and segment results by business and region of the Group
for the Year are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has contracted commitments for future
capital expenditure of approximately RMB3,342,000. The Board believes that
such capital expenditure can be financed by the Group’s bank deposits and
bank borrowings.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no significant contingent liability.

MAJOR INVESTMENT PLANS

During the Year, the Group did not make major investments.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 1,239 staff (2018:
1,228).

During the Year, the staff costs including directors’ remuneration which
amounted to approximately RMB103,667,000 (2018: approximately
RMB83,377,000). The Group raised the salaries and improved fringe benefits
for its employees to maintain competitiveness and broaden appeal of the
Group. The employees’ incentives were reviewed and determined annually
pursuant to the remuneration and bonus policies of the Group based on
the performance of the employees. The Group also provided various other
benefits to its employees.

Compared with 31 December 2018, there was no significant movement in
the number of employees of the Group at the end of the Year.

The Group monitored closely the remuneration and fringe benefits of the
employees and rewarded employees in accordance with the Group's business
performance. In addition, training and development opportunities for the
employees were also provided by the Group.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile
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Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Feng (5R%%), aged 47, has been appointed as the chairman of
the Board and compliance officer of the Company since June 2011. He
obtained an MBA degree from University of Technology, Sydney. Mr. Zhang
studied in G&teborg University, Sweden. He was a member of the 10th and
11th Jilin Municipal Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the deputy chairman of the 10th and 11th session
of Jilin Youth Federation (F#%& & F & &) and the president of the 8th
session of council of Jilin Province Youth Entrepreneurs Association (5 #& &
FHEKHE). He is a member of the 13th National Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Conference, a standing committee member of the 12th Jilin
Municipal Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, the deputy chairman of the 12th session of Jilin Youth Federation
(FMESFHAE), the honorary president of the 9th session of council
of Jilin Province Youth Entrepreneurs Association (WM& & FEERHE)
and the part-time deputy chairman of the 11th Jilin Federation of Industry
and Commerce (F#%& Trt). Mr. Zhang was the general manager of
Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Neptunus Pharmaceutical”)
and Shenzhen Neptunus Tongai Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Company Ltd.
and the deputy general manager and chief marketing officer of Neptunus
Bio-engineering. He is currently the deputy chairman and non-independent
director of the 8th session of the board of directors and president of
Neptunus Bio-engineering, the controlling shareholder of the Company which
directly and indirectly holds 73.51% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company, deputy chairman of the board of directors of Shenzhen Neptunus
Group Company Limited, director of Shenzhen Quanyaowang Technology
Company Limited ORINT 2 EHEB K BR A A]) and Ascendent Bio-
Technology Company Limited, the executive director of Shenzhen Neptunus
Changjian Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Neptunus Changjian”), the
chairman of the board of directors and the legal representative of Neptunus
Pharmaceutical, and the chairman of the board of directors of Fuzhou
Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company Limited and Fuzhou Neptunus
Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical Company Limited.
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Mr. Xu Yan He (:#H0), aged 62, has been appointed an executive director
of the Company since June 2011. In March 2016, he was appointed as the
general manager and authorized representative of the Company. Mr. Xu
graduated from Zhejiang Engineering College, the PRC, with a bachelor’s
degree in 1982, and has nearly 30 years of experience in pharmaceutical
manufacturing industry in China. He was a member of the 11th and 12th
Fujian Provincial People’s Congress and the deputy president of Fujian
Pharmaceutical Association ({8324 Z22€). He is a member of the 13th
Fujian Provincial Peolpe’s Congress, the standing deputy president of Fujian
Pharmaceutical Profession Association ({8724 B 27721 2) and Fujian
Social Medical Insurance Association ({f8iE&A 1t @ BB RBHE). Mr. Xu is
the deputy chairman of the board of directors of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao
Pharmaceutical Company Limited and Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., the executive director, general manager and legal
representative of Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd.. Mr. Xu has received a
number of recognition, including Outstanding Entrepreneur in Fujian and
Outstanding Pharmacist in China.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (8|5%), aged 61, has been appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company since June 2011. Mr. Liu graduated from Nankai
University, the PRC in 1997, with a doctoral degree in Economics and a
postdoctoral degree in Management. As a professor, he is a renowned expert
in corporate management and development strategies. Mr. Liu was the
assistant to the secretary and head of Research and Consulting Department
of China Development Institute in Shenzhen, China (474 B2 W 5Bz (F
EeZ3)), and the independent director and president of Neptunus Bio-
engineering. He led and participated in a number of national key research
projects and corporate consulting programmes. Mr. Liu has extensive
experience in corporate management and capital operation. He is currently
deputy chairman and non-independent director of the 8th session of the
board of directors of Neptunus Bio-engineering, a director of Shenzhen
Neptunus Pharmaceutical Research Institute Company limited (311 T £ 2%
BHEARZERL AR A A)), Ascendent Bio-Technology Company Limited, Fuzhou
Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company Limited, Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang
Chinese Pharmaceutical Company Limited, Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical
(Lianjiang) Company Limited and Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical
(Lianjiang) Company Limited.
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Ms. Yu Lin (F#f), aged 62, has been appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company since February 2005. Ms. Yu graduated from Sun Yat-
Sen University of the PRC, and has more than 30 years of experience in
biochemical and pharmaceutical industries in the PRC. Ms. Yu was the
director and vice-president of Neptunus Bio-engineering and was responsible
for the research and development of new products. Currently she is the legal
representative and chairman of the board of directors of Shenzhen Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Technology Research Company Limited (35 B8 #EFR £
BT BBR A 7)) and a director of Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical
Company Limited and Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical
Company Limited.

Mr. Song Ting lJiu (R¥£A), aged 64, has been appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company since January 2014. Mr. Song graduated from
Northeast Electric Power College in 1982. Mr. Song was engaged in the
macroscopic and strategic research regarding energy and the State’s economic
development at the Energy Research Institute under Chinese Academy of
Sciences and was granted the First Class Award of the State Scientific and
Technological Progress Award during such period. Since 1985, he has been
engaged in financial management and was appointed the positions of office
supervisor, deputy head and head at the Branch and Sub-branch of the
Bank of China in Shenzhen Municipality. Since 2002, he started taking tasks
regarding enterprise management and was the deputy general manager at
Guangdong Heng Feng Investment Company Limited (EHR/ELHEHFR A
7)), deputy general manager at Shenzhen Heng Feng Real Property Company
(FYIME L FZE A R A 7)), managing deputy general manager at Heng Feng
Hai Yue Hotel (1B2/81%)%/5), general manager of Jiangsu Neptunus Health
Food Company Limited, vice-president of Neptunus Bio-engineering and the
deputy general manager of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang (8 2), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in March 2016 and re-designated to a non-
executive director of the Company in June 2016. Mr. Zhao graduated
from Harbin Normal University and possesses a professional degree in
business administration from Wuhan University of Technology. He joined
Neptunus Bio-engineering since 1998 and and has been working in the
pharmaceutical industry over 20 years. He is familiar with national policies
of pharmaceutical industry and every link in pharmaceutical market, and has
profound experience in pharmaceutical field and pharmaceutical operation
management. He was regional senior manager of Neptunus Bio-engineering
and general manager of Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian. He is currently the
chief executive officer of Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company Limited, non-
independent director of Neptunus Bio-engineering, president of Shenzhen
Quanyaowang Technology Company Limited and Shenzhen Yidianyao Health
Services Company Limited, chairman of the board of directors of Shenzhen
Quanyaowang Pharmaceutical Company Limited (Z3IIT & E48 &2 B[R A
7)), executive director of Shenzhen Quanyaowang Medical Company Limited
ORYITh 2 BE/8 % 225 R A A]) and general manager of Shenzhen Huiyi Tianxia
Technology Company Limited.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon (57k#), aged 62, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since August 2005.
Mr. Yick holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration, majoring
in accounting, from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in England. Mr.
Yick has more than 30 years of experience in auditing, direct investment,
investment banking and corporate advisory services. In addition, Mr. Yick is
an independent non-executive director, chairman of the audit committee and
member of remuneration committee and nomination committee of Shanghai
International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited and China Singyes Solar
Technologies Holdings Limited (the shares of these two companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange), and an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of the remuneration and nomination committee and
a member of the audit and compliance committee of Nexteer Automotive
Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange), and an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
audit committee and remuneration committee, and member of nomination
committee of Modern Media Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of Stock Exchange). Mr. Yick is also an independent non-
executive director, the convener of the nomination committee and a member
of the strategy committee of Chengdu Xingrong Environment Co., Ltd. (the
shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Profile

% BELEAERERE

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung (%3z[%), aged 53, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company since August 2005. Mr. Poon
obtained his bachelor’s degree in mathematics with minor in economics and
marketing from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1989 and was further
admitted to the MBA degree by the University of Hull, United Kingdom, in
1996. Mr. Poon has been appointed as an Honorary Institute Fellow of the
Asia-Pacific Institute of Business of the Chinese University of Hong Kong since
April 2002. He has been teaching marketing-related subjects for the master’s
degree in science program, MBA program and Global Executive MBA program
(OneMBA) of the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Since June 2008, he has
been appointed as visiting Adjunct Associate Professor in the Department
of Marketing of the Chinese University of Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. Poon
has been appointed as an independent non-executive director and a member
of audit, remuneration and nomination committee of Great Eagle Holdings
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) since March 2016.

Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou (EZ#/#}), aged 50, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since January 2016. Mr.
Zhang graduated from China Youth University of Political Studies with a B.A.
degree in 1990, from Beijing Foreign Studies University with a LL.B degree in
1992, and from Boston University with a LL.M degree in 2002. He had been
an assistant professor of International Trade Law at Guangdong University of
Technology from 1992 to 1993. Mr. Zhang has been in private practice since
1993 when he was qualified to practice law in the PRC. He is now a partner
of Beijing Anjie (Shenzhen) Law Firm, an arbitrator of the Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration and the Hainan International Arbitration Court.

Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong (RE3EAR), aged 64, has been appointed as a supervisor
of the Company since June 2008. Mr. Xiong obtained a doctorate degree in
accountancy from Xiamen University in 1992. Mr. Xiong was an accounting
professor of Shenzhen Unversity and now he is retired. Mr. Xiong was an
independent director of Neptunus Bio-engineering, China National Accord
Medicines Corporation Ltd. (B %58 B — B &£ f% 1D AR A 7)) and Shenzhen
Wongtee International Enterprise Co., Ltd. (FYIT 2ERE S ZEBRHBERA
A]). Mr. Xiong is the independent director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd. (7]
FERDERAT) (stock code: 000014), and Shenzhen Laibao Hi-Tech Co.,
Ltd. (RYIFZ = EH%B AR A7) (stock code: 002106). The Shares of these
two companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Wang Bin (E#7), aged 59, has been appointed as a supervisor of the
Company since June 2011. Mr. Wang graduated from Precision Instrument
Department of Harbin Institute of Technology, the PRC, with a master’s
degree in 1986. He was a teacher in Precision Instrument Department of
Harbin Institute of Technology, the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Jingshan Group Joint-stock Company Limited (Y15 1LI£E [ A5 A R A 7)),
the chief human resources officer of Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company
Limited (between 1997 and 2000) and the deputy dean of Harbin Institute of
Technology Shenzhen Graduate School.

Ms. Cao Yang (&%), aged 29, has been appointed as an employee
representative supervisor of the Company since 18 May 2018. Ms. Cao
is also currently the senior human resources manager of the integrated
management department of the Company, assistant general manager and
director of human resources of Neptunus Changjian. Ms. Cao possesses
Cambridge Diploma in Business Administration. She joined the Group in July
2013 and previously served as specialist, supervisor, deputy manager and
manager of the human resource department of Neptunus Changjian. Ms.
Cao has rich experience in enterprise human resources planning, organization
structure optimization, compensation system construction, performance
appraisal management, talent assessment, recruitment, training, and labor
cost control.

Senior Management

Ms. Mu Ling Xia (R/ZE8), aged 49, has been appointed as a joint company
secretary, the Board secretary, the financial controller and the authorized
representative of the Company since April 2016, vice general manager of
the Company since 25 June 2017 and become the sole company secretary
of the Company since 8 May 2019. Ms. Mu graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong
University majoring in applied economics and obtained a master degree
in economics. Ms. Mu is a qualified board secretary of listed companies as
recognised by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and a qualified professional
accountant in China. She also has China securities practice qualification and is
a affiliate person of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Mu
previously served as the board secretary of Shenzhen Overglobe Development
Company Limited C&HIT A &2 RERHD AR AT, the director of the board
office of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the securities affairs representative
authorised by the board of directors of Neptunus Bio-engineering as well as
other positions. Ms. Mu has been working on areas such as listed company
securities, financing and management for over 20 years and she possesses
rich working experience in listed company governance, capital operations,
information disclosure, investor relations management, investment and
financing.
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55 BEENSREEERE

Ms. Lee Mei Yi (£3£4#), aged 52, was appointed as a joint company FEELL 25 RZETN\F+A—AHE
secretary of the Company on 1 December 2008. Ms. Lee is an executive ZAEABARRBELATIWE - FRTAREEEE
director of Corporate Services Department of Tricor Services Limited BABERARDCERGBATES - WARBI
and a fellow member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and HFMERITBRABAGREBHIWELAGER
Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Lee 8 THTHABR - TENRTWELR - 1
has over 20 years of experience in the corporate secretarial area. On 8 May ZZE-NFRANR ERETEEARRR ZHBE
2019, Ms. Lee resigned as a joint company secretary of the Company. NEME -
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Report of the Directors

The Board is pleased to present the report of Directors and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group For the year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal Activities

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the research and
development, production and sales of medicines, the purchase and sales of
medicines and healthcare food products.

Business Review

Details of business review during the Year are set out on pages 6 to 9 of this
annual report.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last two financial years ended 31 December 2019, and the
published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
Year is set out on pages 61 to 174.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the distribution of any dividends for the
Year (2018: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

There has been no movement for the Company’s share capital during the
Year, details of which are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and Company during the
Year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had no distributable reserves, while
its accumulated loss, calculated in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association and relevant rules and regulations, amounted to approximately
RMB96,334,000.
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Report of the Directors
FEQHE

Capitalized Interest

The Group has no capitalized interest during the Year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sales Or Redemption of the Listed Shares
of the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the
Company’s listed shares during the Year. The Company and its subsidiaries
did not redeem, purchase or cancel any of their redeemable securities either.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 5.73% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 1.37% of the
total sales for the Year. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 40.32% of the total purchases for the Year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 22.27% of the total purchases for the Year.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, the supervisors of
the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (who, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Company’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

Directors and Supervisors

The Directors and supervisors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report, and their terms of employment were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Feng 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017

3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2017

Mr. Xu Yan He
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017
3 years from her re-appointment on 25 June
2017
3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017
3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017

Ms. Yu Lin
Mr. Song Ting Jiu

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2017

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017

Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017

Supervisors

Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June

2017

Mr. Wang Bin 3 years from his re-appointment on 25 June
2017

Ms. Cao Yang From her appointment on 18 May 2018 to 24
June 2020

The Company confirms that as at the date of this report, it has received
annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon,
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung and Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou. The Company still considers
the three independent non-executive Directors during the Year to be
independent pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company with a term up to 24 June 2020 and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice to the other.

None of the Directors or supervisors of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration is subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Company. Details of the remuneration of
the Directors are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

According to the service contracts entered into between the Company and its
supervisors, (i) the Company shall pay Mr. Xiong Chu Xiong the remuneration
of RMB30,000 per annum for his service as a supervisor; (i) the Company
shall pay Mr. Wang Bin the remuneration of RMB30,000 per annum for his
service as a supervisor; and (iii) Ms. Cao Yang, the employee representative
supervisor, is entitled to a supervisor’s allowance of RMB20,000 per annum
for her service as a supervisor.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees and their remuneration are set out in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Contracts

Save for the service contracts of the Directors and supervisors of the
Company as disclosed above, there were no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or its controlling shareholder
was a party and in which a Director or supervisor of the Company had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

Share Option Scheme, Convertible Securities and
Warrants

Up to 31 December 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries have not
adopted any share option scheme and have not granted any option,
convertible securities, warrants or other similar rights.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

At no time during the Year and up to the date of this report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
Directors of the Company or an associate company.

During the Year, a Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management Liability
Insurance is in place to provide appropriate cover for the directors,
supervisors and senior management of the Group. However, such insurance
coverage shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to such director, supervisor and senior management.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors, Supervisors
and Chief Executives in the Listed Securities

As far as the Directors or supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2019, the interests and short position of the Directors, supervisors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be and were recorded
in the register to be kept by the Company, or were required, pursuant to Rule
5.46 to Rule 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

Report of the Directors
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Director Capacity interests B8 WERZ BITRAZ

= a4 BEER NERHAE BHBEDE BHBEE

Mr. Song Ting Jiu (Note (a)) Beneficial owner Personal 1,521,500 0.12% 0.09%

REA S (FiH@) EREAA (EVN

Notes: Wiz

(@  Non-executive Director of the Company
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FHERE

Long positions in shares of associated corporations of the Company:

RARABEECEER D 255 R

Approximate

percentage of

associated

Number of corporation’s

Name of shares in issued

associated associated share capital

Director/Supervisor/Chief Type of corporation corporation {hAEEEE

Executive Capacity interests piz)i BEEEEE ERTRAZ

BES BEE BETBAR i3} ERER EEEE ZRGOEE BAOBED

Mr. Zhang Feng (Note (a)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 1,331,093 0.05%
SRE% 5T A& (Mt (a)) E=BEAA @A Bio-engineering
BEEY

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun (Note (b)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 11,498,793 0.42%
2IEE S (WD) BEmEAA &N Bio-engineering
HEEY)

Ms. Yu Lin (Note (c)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 1,100,000 0.04%
Fatiz L (#at(c) BB A f8A  Bio-engineering
BEEY

Ms. Mu Ling Xia (Note (d) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 306,000 0.01%
REBRL (Wit () E=BEAA {8 A  Bio-engineering
BEEY

Ms. Cao Yang (Note (e)) Beneficial owner Personal Neptunus 200,000 0.01%
BS L+ (Bate) BEmEAA f8 A  Bio-engineering

BEEY
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

Mr. Zhang Feng, chairman of the Board of the Company and deputy chairman
and non-independent director of the 8th session of the board of directors
and president of Neptunus Bio-engineering, was beneficially interested in
approximately 0.05% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-
engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held directly
and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held and 3.13%
was indirectly held through Shenzhen Neptunus Oriental Investment Company
Limited (“Neptunus Oriental ).

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun, non-executive Director of the Company and deputy chairman
and non-independent director of the 8th session of the board of directors of
Neptunus Bio-engineering, was beneficially interested in approximately 0.42% of
the entire issued capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling
shareholder, which in turn held directly and indirectly the beneficial interest
in approximately 73.51% of the entire issued share capital of the Company,
of which 70.38% was directly held and 3.13% was indirectly held through
Neptunus Oriental.

Ms. Yu Lin, non-executive Director of the Company, was beneficially interested
in approximately 0.04% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-
engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held directly
and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held and 3.13%
was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

Ms. Mu Ling Xia, vice general manager of the Company, was beneficially
interested in approximately 0.01% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in turn held
directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company of which 70.38% was directly held
and 3.13% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

Ms. Cao Yang, employees representative supervisor and senior human resources
manager of the integrated management department of the Company, was
beneficially interested in approximately 0.01% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Bio-engineering, the Company’s controlling shareholder, which in
turn held directly and indirectly the beneficial interest in approximately 73.51%
of the entire issued capital of the Company, of which 70.38% was directly held
and 3.13% was indirectly held through Neptunus Oriental.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor their respective associates
held any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, or were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be and were recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company, or were required, pursuant to Rule 5.46
to Rule 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as the Directors and supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2019, the interests and/or short positions held by shareholders (not
being a Director, a supervisor or a chief executive of the Company) in shares
or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO or

FERRNIRD KRR EER

BARREEREEAAN  R_T—-NF+_H
=t—B RRAFARTES  EFHRZSTT
BA8) RIEEZ R BAE G FE336/KAHR AR A
77 2 BTt ik M AN 2 B Bt Sk AR RE A 0 =X
PARAG 75 AN @ AR A (Rl i 2s e SOA B 1A

had otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

T

RARBRD 277

Approximate

Approximate percentage of
Number of percentage of the Company's
domestic all the issued
shares held domestic shares share capital
2] =] EARAT
Substantial Shareholder Capacity nER RERKN BRITRAMN
FEZRR ) REE BHAEDH BHAEDH
Neptunus Bio-engineering (Note (a)) Beneficial owner 1,181,000,000 94.33% 70.38%
BEEDWHE) ExEEA
Interest in controlled 52,464,500 4.19% 3.13%
corporation
R EE R
Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company Interest in controlled 1,233,464,500 98.52% 73.51%
Limited (“Neptunus Group”) (Note (b)) corporation
AYBEEBRNERAA R EE R
(TEEXEE)) (W)
Shenzhen Neptunus Holding Group Interest in controlled 1,233,464,500 98.52% 73.51%
Company Limited (“Neptunus Holding") corporation
(Previously known as “Shenzhen R EE R
Yinhetong Investment Company
Limited") (Note (c))
R BEEREBERDA
(DEEAR) R RIm R
REBBRAR) (Wit(c)
Mr. Zhang Si Min (Note (a) Interest in controlled 1,233,464,500 98.52% 73.51%

REREE Witd)

corporation
XA
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Neptunus Bio-engineering was deemed to be interested in the 52,464,500
domestic shares of the Company held by Neptunus Oriental as the entire
issued share capital of Neptunus Oriental was beneficially owned by Neptunus
Bio-engineering. Neptunus Bio-engineering was also directly interested in
1,181,000,000 domestic shares of the Company. Therefore, Neptunus Bio-
engineering was directly and indirectly interested in 1,233,464,500 domestic
shares of the Company.

Neptunus Group was deemed to be interested in the 1,233,464,500 domestic
shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Neptunus Group was
beneficially interested in approximately 44.03% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Neptunus Holding was deemed to be interested in 1,233,464,500 domestic
shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Neptunus Holding was
beneficially interested in approximately 59.68% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Group, which in turn was beneficially interested in approximately
44.03% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-engineering.

Mr. Zhang Si Min (“Mr. Zhang") was deemed to be interested in 1,233,464,500
domestic shares of the Company, which relate to the same parcel of shares
referred to in note (a) above, held by Neptunus Bio-engineering as Mr. Zhang
was beneficially interested in 70% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus
Holding and the entire issued share capital of Shenzhen Haihe Investment
and Development Company Limited (“Haihe”), which in turn was beneficially
interested in approximately 59.68% and 20% of the entire issued share capital
of Neptunus Group respectively. Neptunus Group was beneficially interested
in approximately 44.03% of the entire issued share capital of Neptunus Bio-
engineering.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and supervisors of the Company are
not aware of any other persons (except the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives of the Company) who held any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2019.
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Report of the Directors
FEQHE

Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions

Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions
Exempt from Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transactions of the Group exempt from
independent shareholders’ approval requirements during the Year are set out
below:

Neptunus Group Sales Framework Agreement

On 30 June 2017, the Company and Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company
Limited (“Neptunus Group”) (a controlling shareholder of the Company
and therefore a connected person of the Company) entered into the sales
framework agreement (the “Neptunus Group Sales Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell certain self-manufactured
or distributed products, including certain pharmaceutical products and
healthcare food products, to the Neptunus Group for the period from 30
June 2017 to 31 December 2019. The annual caps of such transactions for
the period from 30 June 2017 to 31 December 2017 and for the year of
2018 and 2019 would not exceed RMB22,000,000, RMB27,000,000 and
RMB34,000,000 respectively. For details of the transaction, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 30 June 2017. During the Year,
the Company and Neptunus Group renewed the Neptunus Group Sales
Framework Agreement, pursuant to which the Group will continue to sell the
above-mentioned products to Neptunus Group for the period from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive). The renewed Neptunus
Group Sales Framework Agreement has become effective on 1 January 2020
upon the approval by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 13 December 2019. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 14 October 2019 and 13
December 2019.

During the Year, the Group has sold products of approximately
RMB31,803,400 in total to the Neptunus Group, which did not exceed the
annual cap of the above agreement.

Sales Management Service Framework Agreement

On 28 December 2018, Neptunus Changjian and Neptunus Pharmaceutical
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Neptunus Group and therefore a fellow
subsidiary and a connected person of the Company) entered into a sales
management service framework agreement for pharmaceutical products
(the “Sales Management Service Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which Neptunus Changjian agreed to provide sales management service of
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pharmaceutical products to Neptunus Pharmaceutical for the period from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2021 (both days inclusive). The annual caps
of such transactions for the year of 2019, the year of 2020 and the year of
2021 would not exceed RMB6,000,000, RMB7,000,000 and RMB8,000,000
respectively. For details of the agreement, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 28 December 2018.

During the Year, Neptunus Changjian has provided sales management service
of pharmaceutical products of approximately RMB5,858,500 in total to
Neptunus Pharmaceutical, which did not exceed the annual cap of the above
agreement.

The connected transaction of the Group exempt from independent
shareholder’s approval requirements during the Year is set out below:

Development Agreement

On 12 September 2019, Neptunus Fuyao and Shenzhen Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Technology Research Company Limited (“Neptunus
Research”) (a subsidiary of Neptunus Bio-engineering and therefore a
fellow subsidiary and connected person of the Company) entered into a
development agreement in relation to the medical research and development
project of vitamin C injection product (the “Development Agreement”),
pursuant to which both parties have agreed to participate in the project, and
the total consideration of the project is RMB4,400,000 and shall be paid to
Neptunus Research in 6 phases.

During the Year, Neptunus Fuyao has paid consideration of RMB880,000 to
Neptunus Research according to the Development agreement, which did not
exceed the above agreement.

Having considered the above, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion that
the Neptunus Group Sales Framework Agreement, the Sales Management
Service Framework Agreement and the Development Agreement (1) were
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (2)
are on normal commercial terms and on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board confirming that
the above connected transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Board;
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EEeHE

(i) were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group if the transactions involve the provision of goods or services
by the Group;

(i)  have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv)  did not exceed the respective annual caps.

Continuing Connected Transaction Not Exempt from Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirements

The continuing connected transactions of the Group not exempt from
independent shareholders’ approval requirements within the Year are set out
below:

Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement

On 12 October 2018, Neptunus Changjian entered into a distribution
agreement (the “Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement”) with
Neptunus Pharmaceutical (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Neptunus Group
and therefore a fellow subsidiary and connected person of the Company),
pursuant to which Neptunus Changjian will purchase various pharmaceutical
products manufactured by Neptunus Pharmaceutical for distribution in
the PRC for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021 (both
days inclusive). The Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement
became effective on 1 January 2019 upon the approval by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on
17 December 2018. The annual caps of such transactions for the year of
2019, 2020 and 2021 would not exceed RMB 110,000,000, RMB 140,000,000
and RMB180,000,000 respectively. For details of the transactions, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 12 October 2018 and 17
December 2018.

During the Year, Neptunus Changjian has purchased pharmaceutical
products of approximately RMB98,370,300 from Neptunus Pharmaceutical,
which did not exceed the annual cap of the above agreement.

Healthcare Food and Food Purchase Framework Agreement

On 17 October 2017, the Company and Neptunus Group (the controlling
shareholder and a connected person of the Company) entered into a
purchase framework agreement (the “Healthcare Food and Food Purchase
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase
certain food and healthcare food products from Neptunus Group and its
subsidiaries (excluding the Group) (the “Intermediate Parent Group”) for
distribution in the PRC for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020. The Healthcare Food and Food Purchase Framework Agreement
became effective on 1 January 2018 upon the approval by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on
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15 December 2017. The annual caps of such transactions for the year of
2018, 2019 and 2020 would not exceed RMB28,000,000, RMB36,000,000
and RMB47,000,000 respectively. For details of the transactions, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 17 October 2017 and 15
December 2017.

During the Year, the Group has purchased food and healthcare food
products of approximately RMB27,829,800 from the Intermediate Parent
Group, which did not exceed the annual cap of the above agreement.

Nepstar Distribution Agreement

On 17 October 2017, the Company and Shenzhen Nepstar Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Nepstar”) (being an associate of Mr. Zhang Feng and
thus a connected person of the Company) entered into a distribution
agreement (the “Nepstar Distribution Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Group agreed to provide pharmaceutical products, food and healthcare
food products to Nepstar and its subsidiaries (the “Nepstar Group”) for it to
distribute within the PRC for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020. The Nepstar Distribution Agreement became effective on 1 January
2018 upon the approval by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 15 Decemer 2017. The annual
caps of such transactions for the year of 2018, 2019 and 2020 would not
exceed RMB28,000,000, RMB36,000,000 and RMB47,000,000 respectively.
For details of the transactions, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 17 October 2017 and 15 December 2017.

During the Year, the Group has provided pharmaceutical products, food and
healthcare food products of approximately RMB24,484,200 in total to Nepstar
Group, which has not exceeded the annual cap of the above agreement.

Having considered the above, the Directors (including non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion that each of
the Neptunus Pharmaceutical Distribution Agreement, the Healthcare Food
and Food Purchase Framework Agreement and the Nepstar Distribution
Agreement (1) was entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (2) are on normal commercial terms and on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.
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The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board comfirming that
the above continuing connected transactions:

(i) have received the approval of the Board;

(i) were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group if the transactions involve the provision of goods or services
by the Group;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv)  did not exceed the respective annual caps.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

Competing Interests

On 21 August 2005, Neptunus Bio-engineering, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, entered into an agreement with the Company containing
undertakings relating to non-competition and preferential rights of
investments (the “Non-Competition Undertakings”), pursuant to which
Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to the Company and its associates
(among others), that as long as the securities of the Company are listed on
GEM (previously known as the Growth Enterprise Market):

1. it will not, and will procure its associates not to, whether within or
outside the PRC, directly or indirectly (other than those indirectly held as
a result of the equity interest in any listed company or its subsidiaries),
participate in or operate any business in whatever form, or produce
any products (the usage of which is the same as or similar to that of
the products of the Company) which may constitute direct or indirect
competition to the business operated by the Company from time to
time; and

2. it will not, and will procure its associates not to, hold any interest,
whether within or outside the PRC, in any company or organization
(directly or indirectly, other than those indirectly held as a result of
its equity interest in any listed company or its subsidiaries) when the
business of such company or entity will (or may) compete directly or
indirectly with the business of the Company.
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Pursuant to the Non-Competition Undertakings, at a time when the
Non-Competition Undertakings are subsisting, whenever Neptunus Bio-
engineering or any its associates enters into any negotiations, within or
outside the PRC, in relation to any new investment projects which may
compete with the existing and future business of the Company, the Company
shall have a preferential rights of investments in such new investment
projects.

Neptunus Bio-engineering has confirmed with the Company that it has
complied with the Non-competing Undertakings during the Year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Staff Retirement Scheme

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Company are set out in notes
2.18 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Review by Audit Committee

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee is of the opinion that the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 comply with applicable
reporting standards, GEM Listing Rules, and that adequate disclosures have
been made.
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Report of the Directors
FRGHE

Auditor

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, Certified Public Accountants, was
appointed as the Company’s auditor on 25 November 2016. Prior to the
appointment, the former auditor of the Company was Crowe Horwath (HK)
CPA Limited, which had resigned as the auditor of the Company on 25
November 2016.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited, who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited
Zhang Feng

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
25 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company strives to attain a high standard of corporate governance.
The principles of corporate governance adopted by the Company
emphasize a quality board, sound internal control transparency and
accountability to all stakeholders.

(A) Corporate Governance Practices

(B)

The Corporate Governance Code was effective for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2005. The Company put strong
emphasis on the superiority, steadiness and rationality of corporate
governance. The Board is of the view that the Company has complied
with the requirements set out in Appendix 15 “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report” of the GEM Listing Rules

throughout the Year.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities

Transactions by Directors

During the Year, the Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the “required standard of dealings” as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the “required standard of dealings” and the Company’s
internal code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors during the Year.
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(C) The Board

The Board is responsible for planning and overseeing the overall
development and management of the Company with the objective
of enhancing shareholders’ value. The Board, led by the Chairman, is
responsible for the approval and monitoring of the overall strategies
and policies of the Company, approval of annual budgets and business
plans, evaluation of the Company’s performance and oversight of
the management. As at 31 December 2019, the Board comprised
nine Directors, including two executive Directors, four non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The

composition of the Board during the Year is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Feng (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Xu Yan He

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun
Ms. Yu Lin

Mr. Song Ting Jiu
Mr. Zhao Wen Liang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung
Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Company to the
executive Directors, while reserving certain key matters for its approval.
The management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the
Company under the guidance of the General Manager.

Save as disclosed in this report, to the best knowledge of the Company,
there has no financial, business, family, or other material or relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

During the Year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance duties:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(i)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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(iii)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board brings
independent judgement on issues relating to the Company’s strategy,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process to ensure
that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly
considered. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages
16 to 22, with details of diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications concerning the Directors. The term of office of each non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors are set out
on page 25 of this annual report.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the Directors.

The Board held eleven board meetings during the Year. The Directors
did not authorize any alternate director to attend any board meetings
during the Year.

(D) Committees

The Board strives to maintain an excellent corporate governance and
has established committees with written terms of reference setting out
the powers and duties of the committees.

1.  Audit Committee
The Company had established the Audit Committee on 21
August 2005. The Audit Committee comprises one non-executive
Director, namely Ms. Yu Lin and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Poon Ka
Yeung. Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to consider, and to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditors, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and to resolve
any issues of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the auditing process
in accordance with applicable accounting standards;

to discuss the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations with the external auditors before the auditing
commences, and to ensure co-ordination where more than
one audit firm are involved;

to review and monitor the integrity of the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements, reports and accounts of
the Company, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained therein, before submission to the
Board, focusing particularly on any changes in accounting
policies and practices, major judgmental areas, significant
adjustments resulting from the audit, etc;

to review the Company’s financial control, internal control
and risk management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal
control and to ensure the management has discharged its
duties in maintaining an effective internal control system;

to review the external auditors’ letter to the management
and answer any material queries raised by the auditors to
management in respect of the accounting records, financial
accounts or system of internal control;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the issues raised in the external auditors’ letter to the
management;

to report to the Board on the matters set out herein and, in
particular, the matters required to be performed by the Audit
Committee under the Corporate Governance Code;

to act as the key representative body overseeing the
Company'’s relationship with the external auditors; and

to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary).

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)
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During the Year, Audit Committee has reviewed the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements of the Group, who was
of the opinion that these statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the GEM and legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made. The Audit Committee held
five meetings during the Year (of which two meetings were held
with the external auditors).

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 16
March 2012. Currently the Nomination Committee comprises
one executive Director, Mr. Zhang Feng, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr.
Poon Ka Yeung and Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou. Mr. Zhang Feng is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships.

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman of the Board and the
General Manager.

The Nomination Committee has adopted the revised Board
Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) which became effective on 17
December 2018. A summary of this Policy together with the
measureable objectives set for implementing this Policy, and the
progress towards achieving those objectives are outlined below.
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The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of its Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, which can be achieved through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience.

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for identifying
qualified candidates to become members of the Board. The
appointment of Directors will continue to be made on a merit
basis, with the principle of candidates being considered against
objective criteria (including but not limited to professional
qualifications, skills, experience, independence, time available for
performance of Director’s duties and willingness) due regard for
the benefits of diversity of the Board. The nomination procedures
of a Director can be divided into two categories, being the
nomination procedure of a new Director and the re-election
procedure of a retired Director. The nomination procedure of a
new Director of the Nomination Committee is: 1) evaluate the
candidate based on the abovementioned Director appointment
principle to determine whether such candidate is qualified
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new Director
and the biographical information of the candidate; 2) rank the
qualified candidates by order of preference based on the needs
of the Company and reference check of candidates; 3) make
recommendation to the Board on the proposal on appointment of
new Director; and 4) make recommendation to the shareholders
on the proposal on appointment of new Director at the general
meeting. The re-election procedure of a retired Director of the
Nomination Committee is: 1) review the overall contribution and
services to the Company, participation in the Company’s business
and performance of the retired Director; 2) evaluate the retired
Director based on the abovementioned Director appointment
principle to determine whether such retired Director is still
qualified; and 3) make recommendation to the shareholders
on the proposal on re-election of retired Director at the general
meeting. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
monitoring the implementation and reviewing the effectiveness of
this Policy.

During the Year, Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board
composition and the effectiveness of the Policy. During the Year,
the Nomination Committee held one meeting.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21 August
2005, comprising one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Feng, Mr. Yick Wing
Fat, Simon and Mr. Poon Ka Yeung. Mr. Poon Ka Yeung is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

(i)  pursuant to provision B.1.2(a) of the Corporate Governance
Code, to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of executive Directors and senior management, which
shall include non-monetary benefits, pension rights and
compensation payments (including compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment), and to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the non-executive Directors; and
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(i) to review and approve the remuneration suggestions of the
management according to the corporate goals and objectives
made by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration
of the Directors according to their expertise, knowledge and
commitment to the Company with reference to the Company’s
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profitability and the prevailing market conditions. The BREEBENFNES  FTHES SR
Remuneration Committee should consult the executive Director BRMITES RAAKIE -

and the General Manager about its proposals relating to the

remuneration of the Senior Management.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting REENFHEEGRITT —REHE
to review and discuss the Directors remuneration packages of the W TRAEESESEETTMNARRAR
current session of the Board and the remuneration packages for AAERREEABTHIEE

the current session of the senior management of the Company.

(E) EFERMBEE SR ANENR

(E) Record of number of Board and committee

meetings and Directors’ attendance BEENHERCH
During the Year, the number of Board and committee meetings and REEERN  EFgkfiBZEeeR AR
Directors’ attendance are set out below: REEEHFERENT

Annual General  Extraordinary Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Directors Meeting General Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
E= RRBEFAE RRBHKE =g BENZERS FMZERS REZRE
Zhang Feng (Chairman of the Boara) ” 7 11/11 N/A 171 7
REEFETE) TR
Xu Yan He n 7 "m N/A N/A N/A
REM TEm NER Nam
Liu Zhan Jun 7 "N m N/A N/A N/A
25T Zyli NER NEH
Yu Lin 17 7 1M 5/5 N/A N/A
T NEH NEH
Song Ting Jiu n " "m N/A N/A N/A
REA @R @R NEH
Zhao Wen Liang 1”7 n mm N/A N/A N/A
B2 NEm NER NEH
Yick Wing Fat, Simon ” " Nk 5/5 171 "
FKE
Poon Ka Yeung n 7 1"Mm 5/5 n n
ARG
Zhang Jian Zhou n 7N mm N/A N/A n
BRI NEm NEm
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(F) Continuous Professional Development for

Directors

During the Year, all members of the Board had attended relevant
professional development such as trainings or seminars according to
their own professions. The Company also gave suggestions to Directors
from time to time in respect of training courses. On 25 June 2019, the
Company invited Ernst & Young (China) Advisory Limited to provide
training in respect of “Review of HKEX ESG Reporting Guide” for
Directors and senior management of the Company. All Directors and
relevant senior management of the Company have attended such
training.

(G) Chairman and General Manager

The roles of the Chairman and General Manager are separate and
should not be performed by the same individual as required under
paragraph A.2.1 of Corporate Governance Code. As the leader of the
Board, the Chairman is responsible for the approval and supervision of
the overall strategies and policies of the Company, approval of annual
budgets and business plans, evaluation of the Company’s performance
and oversight of the management. Mr. Zhang Feng is the current
Chairman of the Board. The General Manager (same role as the post
of chief executive pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code) is
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Company. Mr. Xu Yan
He is the current General Manager of the Company. The articles of the
association of the Company has set out the role and powers of the
Chairman and General Manager.

(H) Directors’ Responsibility for Accounts

(1)

The Directors have confirmed and acknowledged their responsibility for
the preparation of the Company’s financial statements is in compliance
with the relative regulations and applicable accounting standards. The
Board has also warranted that the Company’s financial statements
would be distributed in due course.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the Year, approximately RMB1,212,000 (2018: approximately
RMB1,122,000) and approximately RMB610,000 (2018: approximately
RMB371,000) were charged to the Group's income statement for the
external auditor’s audit services and non-audit services respectively.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the internal control system and
risk management of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. To
facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of business operations, to
ensure the reliability of financial report, to safeguard the Group'’s assets
and the interest of shareholders and to ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, the Company emphasizes the importance of
a sound internal control system. The internal control system and risk
management is designed to mange rather than to eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board regularly and at least annually reviews the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system and risk management through the
Audit Committee, executive management, functional departments,
external consultant of internal control and external auditors.

The Company was approved by the Board in 2017 to perform the
internal audit function by sharing the resources of the immediate parent
company, Neptunus Bio-engineering. And the internal audit function
is performed by an internal audit team, which comprises the personnel
appointed by the Company and secondment personnel of Neptunus
Bio-engineering. The internal audit team carried out comprehensive
auditing of certain subsidiaries during the Year. Taking a risk-oriented
approach, the team reviewed important control activities in respect
of key operation procedures, identified defects, implemented defect
rectification measures, organised and improved internal risk control and
management system for the purpose of risk control. The audit result
and rectification measures were submitted to the Audit Committee
and the Board for review in the Year. Currently, the risk control and
compliance department of the Company has formulated the 2020
internal audit plan, taking into account the risk management during
the Year. During the Year, the management of the Company has also
appointed an external consultant of internal control to conduct a review
on the Group’s internal control system and risk management system.
Such external consultant of internal control has carried out the analysis
and independent appraisal of the adequacy and the effectiveness of
the internal control system and risk management of the Group and
has submitted the results of the review and its recommendations and
opinions for consideration to the Audit Committee and the Board. The
review covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance and risk management functions. The Audit Committee
and the Board have discussed the relevant results of the review and
appropriate modifications will be made to the management system of
the Group according to the findings and recommendations therein.
Also during the Year, the Audit Committee and the Board has assessed
whether the Group’s resources in accounting and financial reporting
functions are sufficient, whether the staff obtain sufficient qualification
and experience and whether the trainings for staff and related budget
are sufficient.
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(K)

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of
internal control system with following procedures and reported the
result of the review to the Board:

1. discussing with executive management on areas of risks identified
reviewing the risks reported by external consultant of internal
control

N

reviewing external audit plan

reviewing the matters reported by external auditors

reviewing the internal audit rectification list

reviewing the internal audit plan

reviewing the report produced by executive management and
related functional departments to ensure appropriate controls are
in place and any deficiencies or irregularities, if any, are rectified

ey W os W

Based on the information supplied, coupled with its own observations
and with the assistance of the Audit Committee, the Board believes
that, in respect of the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business, the present internal control system and monitoring process
(including sufficiency of the resources in accounting and financial
reporting functions, staff’s qualification and experience and trainings
for staff and related budget) are effective and adequate and have
complied with the requirements under the provisions of the code.

Procedures for Handling and Dissemination of
Inside Information

The Board has established the Inside Information Policy for the handling
and dissemination of inside information. The Inside Information Policy
has stipulated the principle and contents of inside information disclosure,
the inside information’s management, security measures, responsible
persons and departments, reporting methods as well as the disclosure
process, etc. The management of the Company must take all reasonable
measures from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Company.
Relevant inside information reporting persons must promptly notify the
Board secretary of the Company of any matters that might constitute
inside information and shall keep confidentiality of such information.
And the Board secretary of the Company shall ask for instructions from
the executive Directors as soon as reasonably practicable, who will then
evaluate whether the information constitute inside information and if
so, to disclose and take other appropriate prompt action accordingly. In
the event that there is evidence of any material violation of the Inside
Information Policy, the Company will investigate relevant personnel for
their responsibilities and impose certain punishment, so as to avoid the
recurrence of such violation.
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(L) Constitutional Documents

The constitutional documents of the Company have been published
both on the GEM and the Company’s website. There has been no
significant change in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the Year.

(M) Company Secretary

The company secretary supports the Chairman, the Board and Board
committees by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that Board policy and procedures are followed. The company secretary
reports to the Board and assists the Board in functioning effectively
and efficiently. She also advises the Board on governance matters and
facilitates the induction and professional development of Directors.
All Directors of the Company may call upon the company secretary
for advice and assistance at any time in respect to their duties and the
effective operation of the Board and the Board committees.

Ms. Mu Ling Xia is the company secretary of the Company, and Ms. Mu
is a full time employee of the Company. Ms. Mu is also the vice general
manager and financial controller of the Company who has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Ms. Mu undertook not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.
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(N) Shareholder’s Rights

0)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

According to the articles of association of the Company, two or
more shareholders holding more than 10% or more of the shares
with voting rights can sign one or more written requests with
the same format and contents, requesting the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, and stating the topics of the
meeting. After receipt of the aforesaid written request, the Board
shall hold the extraordinary general meeting as soon as possible.
If the Board does not distribute the notice on holding the meeting
within 30 days after receipt of the aforesaid written request, the
shareholder(s) putting forward such requirement can convene
the meeting on his/their own within four months after the Board
receives such request. The procedures to convene such meeting
shall similar to the procedures that the Board convenes a general
meeting.

Shareholders of the Company can make enquires to the Board
or the Company in relation to corporate governance or other
matters. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries. Shareholders may send written enquiries to
the Company, by email to mIx@interlong.com, or by fax to (86)
755 8639 1610 or by mail to Suite 2103, 21st floor, Neptunus
Yinhe Technology Mansion, 1 Keji Middle 3rd Road, Nanshan
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend and give advice
in the general meeting, or appoints proxies to attend general
meetings, and vote for them when they could not attend general
meetings. Under appropriate circumstances, chairman of the
Board, other members of the Board, Chairman of committees
under the Board or representative appointed by them, and
external auditors would attend general meeting of the Company,
and they would answer for the shareholders. They will also
consider or respond to the suggestions made by shareholders.

According to the dividend policy of the Company formulated on
17 December 2018, the Company will declare or pay dividends
to the shareholders in the form deemed appropriate by the
Board in the relevant financial year or period with sufficient cash
reserves maintained in the Company and taking full account of
the Group’s comprehensive factors (including but not limited
to financial results, cash flow position, business conditions and
strategies, future operations and revenue, capital requirements
and expenditure plans, interests of shareholders).
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To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting, the shareholders should submit a written notice of
those proposals with detailed contact information to the Company, by
email to mix@interlong.com, or by fax to (86) 755 8639 1610 or by mail
to Suite 2103, 21st floor, Neptunus Yinhe Technology Mansion, 1 Keji
Middle 3rd Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province,
the PRC. The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the general meeting.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

To: All shareholders

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has exercised its powers seriously
to safeguard the interests of the Company and shareholders, complied
with the principle of good faith, discharged its duties conscientiously and
undertaken tasks in a diligent and proactive manner in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the relevant Hong Kong laws, regulations and the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”).

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has reviewed in detail and
approved the audited financial statements and this report which will be
presented at the annual general meeting. Supervisors of the Company have
reviewed prudently the operation and development plans of the Company,
and carried out strict and effective supervision as regards whether major
decision-making and exact decisions by the management of the Company are
in compliance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of
Association and safeguard the interests of shareholders. Supervisors believe
that during the Year, the operating results of the Company were sufficient to
reflect its position, and all expenses and costs incurred were reasonable. The
profit sharing scheme was in the long-term interests of shareholders and the
Company. The provision for statutory surplus reserve and public welfare fund
made during the Year has complied with the applicable laws and regulations
of the PRC and the Articles of Association.

During the Year, to the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee,
no Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to
have abused his authority or have harmed the interests of shareholders
and employees. To the best knowledge of the Supervisory Committee, no
Directors or other senior management of the Company were found to have
violated any applicable laws or regulations, the Articles of Association or the
relevant regulations of China Securities Regulatory Commission. Supervisors
believe that the Directors and other senior management of the Company
have strictly observed their respective duties and acted prudently and
exercised their powers in good faith in the best interests of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is full of confidence in the
future of the Company and would like to take this opportunity to express its
gratitude to all shareholders, Directors and staff for their strong support to
the Supervisory Committee.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Xiong Chu Xiong
Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Shenzhen, the PRC
25 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2B AR E

Q Grant Thornton
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen
Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 174,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong
HE(FB)EHMEBAERAH
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BB
BB 5582855
1218
www.grantthornton.cn

BRI B ERBELEYRMROBERAARR
#9383 A% AT R
(R FEA RFE L K2 R (7B IR 2 F])

R

Az BEm AT AR D EAHNESL4E
1748 R B TRFEEMERMBOBER QA
(I &ERAREMBAR GHEI S£EDH
RAMBHRE  UWEEUBERREER_F—AN
F+ A=+ HNGEaBRAREHEZA
LTFENFEBa MEMEMKRER « Faa
BPHRNGERERNER - URESUBHRRM
i BREREERME -

BRRR - ZFRAMBBREREET LS
RE([BAEEFMAE]) BAN(EBM B RS
ZR) (B BREER]) BEM R FHRBR
T BEEER-_T-NFT_A=T—BHEE
BHMRAREBREZB LFENGARMBRER
HZAReRE  YERRFBRRIGINIEKE
MEL RS -

ERMER
BHPMERETESAMASRANCEBRTE
A) ([EBFEA) EITRA - RIEZF LR
THRENEICEARE [ZBEREREMH
BRAENEEI O PIEE—FML - REBERE
SETEN RS RAN(EX T RDBETRD AT
wlrfl) - HABZR BERE - YEETTA
R EMBERBREE - BAEE - BIIPAER
MENRIEERE BB ARMNBRAERR
PHETE

54 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 2.9 and 18 to consolidated financial statements.

At the reporting date, the Group held
inventories of approximately RMB125
million. In arriving at the net realisable
value of inventories, estimation and
management judgment, including use
of historical ageing statistics, projection
of expected volume and price of future
sales of inventories, were exercised.

We have identified valuation of
inventories as a key matter to our audit
considering the materiality of the balance
and the calculations are inherently
subject to significant judgement of
management.

We evaluated and tested the controls
that management has established to
oversee and keep tracks of inventory
movements.

Among other substantive procedures,
we considered the accuracy of historical
provisions against actual inventory write-
offs.

On a sample basis we selected inventory
items and tested their net realisable
value calculation.

We compared subsequent sales prices
and volumes against those projected in
forecasts.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BN 2 HEM RS

Key Audit Matters (Continued) BEETSE(E)
How the matter was addressed in R F 04
The Key Audit Matter our audit BEETER REZEE

Intangible assets impairment assessment
Refer to note 2.6, 2.17 and 16 to consolidated financial statements.

At the reporting date, the Group has
intangible assets with indefinite life,
totalling approximately RMB96.2 million
including anesthetic drug production
and selling rights and trade name.
These intangible assets were individually
assessed at year end for impairment
loss. The valuation process employed
significant estimates and management
judgement over the cash flow forecasts,
discount rates, and benchmark growth
rates of particular drug markets.

We identified impairment of intangible
assets as a key audit matter due to
the materiality of the balances and the
use of estimation and judgement in
accessing the recoverability of intangible
assets.

We obtained valuation reports from the
independent valuer employed by the
Company and assessed its qualification
and reputation.

We reviewed the valuation
methodology, questioned, among other
applicable models, the valuation model
selected and assumptions made.

We have reconciled input data
to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering the
reasonableness of these budgets.

We have compared prior year cash flow
projections with actual occurrence to
consider accuracy of management’s
prior projections and if the projections
were overly optimistic.
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Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the 2019 annual report of the Company,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZ B

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagements and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

—  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

—  evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZ B

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

25 March 2020

Chiu Wing Ning
Practising Certificate No.: P04920
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEmkE

Lftb 2 W 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NEF+_A=+—HILLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF — TR
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BiaE AR¥T T ARETTT
Revenue ON 5,6 1,080,871 867,123
Cost of sales SHE R (437,833) (364,908)
Gross profit EF 643,038 502,215
Other revenue HAUA 7 9,103 11,731
Other net income E AU A FEE 7 176 1,647
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Mo ERE X (456,599) (349,026)
Administrative expenses TIRF X (65,573) (55,916)
Other operating expenses HAb RS (49,907) (41,220)
Profit from operations KR 80,238 69,431
Finance costs % & 8(a) (1,417) (1,787)
Profit before taxation R A F 78,821 67,644
Income tax expense FriSfif > (15,412) (16,580)
Profit and total comprehensive income  AEERFIR
for the year ZHEHKRRETHE 63,409 51,064
Profit and total comprehensive income LA T & IBRE(L A& R F]
for the year attributable to: REHEKEEHE !
Owners of the company KRaEE A 59,719 48,089
Non-controlling interests IR A 3,690 2,975
63,409 51,064
Earnings per share for profit REFERATREEA
attributable to the owners BRAFEERRZ
of the Company during the year BREF
Basic and diluted BERREE 13 3.56 cents 2.87 cents
AR#3.56% AR¥2.879
The notes on page 68 to 174 are an integral part of these consolidated FESHEEF 74BN AR L T 6 M IS wE
financial statements. B —&o o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R

As at 31 December 2019
RZZE-NF+=RA=+—H

2019 2018
—Z—-hfF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
BitEE AR¥TT AREETTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB KB 14 152,948 137,339
Prepaid lease payments FEHAERE 15 - 59,309
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 61,166 =
Intangible assets B EE 16 100,260 107,152
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEME  BREREER
plant and equipment e 17 1,066 1,075
Deferred tax assets BIERIAR E 28(b) 2,592 1,523
318,032 306,398
Current assets RBEE
Inventories Ay 18 124,747 113,138
Trade and other receivables R M BR R B EL A [ LW TR 19 297,133 242,983
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 22 384,211 323,577
806,091 679,698
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables JE A BR K R ELAth FE < 5018 23 173,795 131,579
Contract liabilities BREE 20 19,426 13,378
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M BRI TEE 24 30,000 =
Entrusted loans from the immediate parent ~ HB& A A RFEER
company 25 9,000 9,000
Deferred revenue R a 26 401 401
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 1,457 -
Current taxation RNEATHIE 28(a) 10,212 13,749
244,291 168,107
Net current assets REBEEFE 561,800 511,591
Total assets less current liabilities BREERABERE 879,832 817,989
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sRe BSAER

AN =

As at 31 December 2019
RZZE-NF+=RA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF =T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 ARET T AREFT
Non-current liabilities FEREBERE
Deferred revenue EFEW S 26 1,842 2,243
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBE R 28(b) 15,490 16,914
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 2,570 =
19,902 19,157
Net assets EEFE 859,930 798,832
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the EAREBA
company EihER
Share capital &N 29 167,800 167,800
Reserves G 30 589,346 530,138
Total st 757,146 697,938
Non-controlling interests IR 102,784 100,894
Total equity TESRMARE 859,930 798,832
Zhang Feng Xu Yan He
(¥ BRIEA
Director Director
Ea EF

The notes on page 68 to 174 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GAeRTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
 E_E-NE+_A=1+—HBLLEE

2019 2018
—ZE-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBFT
Operating activities KEES
Profit before taxation R A A 78,821 67,644
Adjustments for: T -
Depreciation for property, plant and M - BERERETE
equipment 16,555 14,101
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (including {FRAEEEITE (BIFENIRMNE BT
prepaid lease payments upon initial WEEAF 1655 TENEEFKIR)
adoption of HKFRS 16) 3,093 1,570
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE 4,010 3,968
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 3,471 =
Impairment of trade receivables JFEURBR FURE 308 272
Impairment of other receivables H b e RIBRUE 57 =
Reverse of impairment loss on trade FEURBR TR (B & 18
receivables #EEl - 61)
Reverse of impairment loss on other H At e IB R EE 18
receivables [l - (216)
Finance costs B A 1,417 1,787
Interest income FEMA (4,943) (6,189)
Interest income from principal protected RAETFZF A
deposits (3,125) (1,655)
Subsidy income released from deferred R BRSNS amaE A
revenue (401) (1,269)
Written down of inventories WORAF & 11,721 5,970
Reversal of written down of inventories FEMURER (114) (608)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

CARESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NF+_A=+—HILLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFT
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BKFEREENER
equipment 378 303
Operating cash flows before working REBESEBAZKERER
capital change 111,248 85,617
Changes in working capital BEESEH
(Increase)/decrease in inventories F&Ggm) ,md (23,216) 27,968
Increase in trade and other receivables JFE Uk B 3k B EL A I U R TE 1S (54,515) (39,937)
Increase/(decrease) in trade JRE 1 BR R R ELAth A< SRR
and other payables #mn, G 42,216 (33,639)
Increase in contract liabilities BHBEREBM 6,048 1,647
Cash used in operations KEEBFEAZIRE (29,467) (43,961)
Cash generated from operations REELRS 81,781 41,656
Income tax paid — PRC E#FEHR— P E (21,429) (16,623)
Cash generated from operating activities & FHELBES 60,352 25,033
Investing activities RETEH
Deposit for acquisition of property, BEME  BEEXMENES
plant and equipment (1,836) (1,075)
Payment for purchase of property, BEME  BEMEENR
plant and equipment (31,041) (26,484)
Payment for expenditure of intangible assets & &R F S 3K (589) (112)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEK&E
plant and equipment BIPT1S R 344 1,134
Placement of principal protected deposits FRURABF R (395,000) (322,000)
Receipts from principal protected deposits ~ 4RANE1F R HYUL TR 395,000 322,000
Interest received BUF B 8,068 7,844
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2 =1
2\\/ \/\Eﬁi /ﬁi%

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NEF+_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—Z—-hfF —N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETTT
Subsidy income received BB A - 300
Net cash used in investing activities REZEFMARSFHE (25,054) (18,393)
Financing activities EETEH
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITTER — (60,000)
Proceeds from new bank loans LRI E RS IE 30,000 30,000
Interest paid ERFE (1,207) (1,787)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests IR IR R R A AR 2 (1,800) (2,000)
Payment of lease liability SNAEaE (1,657) =
Net cash generated from/Aused in) financing ~EEZEEL " (FiH)H 2 FE
activities 25,336 (33,787)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RB& MRS FEWEM, CRD)
equivalents FER 60,634 (27,147)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 january R—A—BBRERASZED 323,577 350,724
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=+—HB®W
at 31 December RERREEEY 384,211 323,577
Analysis of cash and cash R+=BA=+—H#K
equivalents at 31 December ReRASEBYIN
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 384,211 323,577
The notes on page 68 to 174 are an integral part of these consolidated FO8EZER 174NN BRI EiFa M ImE
financial statements. H—=B5 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-AF+-A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KOAEEAES
Statutory Non-
Share Share reserve Capital Retained controlling
capital premium fund reserve eamnings Sub-total interests Total
ies BbEE  EELEE B4R RERA Nt FERER gk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000
NRETT ARETT ARETR NRETT ARETT NREFT ARETT ARETT
(note 29) (note 30(a) (note 30(c) (note 30(b)
ko) boa) (o) (o)
A1 January 2018 WN=F-N\E-A-A 167,800 554,844 48619 (188,494) 67,080 649,849 99,919 749,768
Change i equity for 2018 Z3-)\§BEED
Proftand total comprehenshe KEERHR
income for the year SEhEEE - = = = 48089 18,089 2975 51,064
Dividend paid rom a subsidary R ERY
to non-contoling nterests WEAARS - - - = - = (2000 2,000
Tranferto other eserves BRTAMGE - - (19 - 1% - - -
At31 December 2018 HZ8-NFtf=1-8 167,800 54,844 1343 (183.494) 115,365 697,938 100,894 798832
At1 January 2019 AZE-N5-F-A
Adjustment from the adoption of HKFRS 16 RAEERHASENR68
[note3) b lis)

Adjusted balance t 1 January 2019

(Change in equity for 2019
Profit and total comprehensiv income
for the year

Release o statutory reserve fund due to
deregister of subsiciaries

Dividend paid from a subsidary
o non-controling interests
Transfer to other reserves

At 31 December 2019

The notes on page 68 to 174 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2019
 E_E-NE+_A=1+—HBLLEE

General Information

Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The address of its
registered office is Suite 2103, 21st Floor, Neptunus Yinhe Technology
Mansion, 1 Keji Middle 3rd Road, Yuehai Sub-district Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC and, its principal place of
business is PRC. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Group is controlled by Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering
Company Limited (“Neptunus Bio-engineering”), a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in the PRC and its shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The ultimate parent company
of the Group is Shenzhen Neptunus Holding Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the PRC.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
include the development, production and sales of medicines, the
research and development of modern biological technology business,
the purchase and sales of medicines, healthcare food products and the
research and development of in vitro diagnostic reagents. The Group’s
operations are based in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 were approved for issue by the board of directors on 25 March
2020.

Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
These annual consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the GEM Listing Rules (“GEM
Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") which is also the functional currency of the Company
entities. All amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand except
where otherwise indicated.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption
of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for principal protected deposits which is
stated at fair values. The measurement bases are fully described in
the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power over the entity,
only substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group
and others) are considered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FESFBX@E)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 22 SREEEE)
The Group includes the income and expenses of a subsidiary in the REERGFAMERET 2 —HHE
consolidated financial statements from the date it gains control AREAEBEEEEHE ABHEER
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. EETBEHZMBARZ BHLEZ IR

mMFX -

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses SEFEzZR S - fEEREEAARIAR
on transactions between group companies are eliminated in SPEEE 2 R ARE R S M EE - 1
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised PR E P TSIRR DRI - &8
losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, MEELENRERBENEGRE R
the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the o - MHEAEETT AR E M S ETRE
Group's perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements B - MBRARIMMBHRETAE®RE
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure R THAREARRERE BN S
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group. TR —B -

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary not PR RS R A B A RIS P I 3E R
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect RABEESEERENES - A%
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the 3 e gt ot B R R e 0 RE R A
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a AIREIMEIR + BUE N BB S
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests HAEREERBBETRNEGNEE -
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business MEEEBEOME - AREALEER
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling N ESRIEERER 5 (R E A R& A
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the BRI EEFERTEETIEERER -

subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated IR ERN RS MR ROERE
statement of financial position within equity, separately from 7 - BBSIAARDRER ARGRER ©
the equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non- RARE B BN IHERIER TSR
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented 7 N ELAD A T IR a2k P LA 48 4 1 Sk RS 18
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and RAFEIERERRANTEEAZ
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or HR2ERERE B

loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amounts of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at the reporting
date. All dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or
loss.

Business combination

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value on the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FESFBX@E)

2.3

2.4

Business combination (Continued)

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss
when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than cost of right-of-
use assets as described in note 2.12) are initially recognised at
acquisition cost, manufacturing cost (including any cost directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the Group’s management). Except for land and
building held for administrative purpose as described below, they
are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes, are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

2.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on assets other than construction-in-progress is
provided to write off the cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements

5to 10 years

5to 10 years

5to 10 years

5 to 30 years or over the
remaining term of

the lease, if shorter
Land and buildings 50 years of over the term of

period

Before the application of HKFRS 16, assets held under finance
leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the
same basis as owned assets or, over the term of the relevant
lease, whichever is shorter. Upon the application of HKFRS 16,
accounting policy for depreciation of right-of-use assets is set out
in note 2.12.

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only when they are
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. ETESITEHEGE)

2.5 Prepaid lease payments/Leasehold land and land use rights 25 FEREERE HELR T hERE
(Policy applicable from 1 January 2019) (B=F—F—A—HEBFEE)
“Prepaid lease payments” (which meet the definition of right- [FANEEFE] (e | RERE B
of-use assets upon initial application of HKFRS 16) represent the BREEAE1CRENTERAEEEE
upfront payment for long-term land lease in which the payment ) ENFENEFENRALHEE
can be reliably measured. It is stated at cost less accumulated BIRTERST 3R o HIRRAR REHTE R E
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation A 2EHREEETIER o ITEREAES
is calculated on a straight line basis over the term of the right-of- FRANEGEENE - fEWEIREME
use except where an alternative basis is more representative of the EFRRERAEE G T ERARER
time pattern of benefits to be derived by the Group from use of M EE BIBRAN o
the land.

During the construction period, the amortisation charges provided REREAME - RN EERIBIEL
for prepaid lease payments are capitalised in construction-in- BEIEERRYE  BERREP 2T
progress in property, plant and equipment. BIRERE -

(Policy applicable before 1 January 2019) (ZE—NF—H—HFEHANEE)
When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group EHERE T REEY  AEERE
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an HEEREREGME T 2 MEBERE
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether ENIEEIEEESD REIERESKE
substantively all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership ME - LUAREHEENRE (BEEA—
of each element have been transferred to the Group. Specially, RMTERFRIB) EH SRR - Fig
the minimum lease payments (including any lumpsum upfront M 1EtEE Lt E D KR A D
payments) are allocated between the land and the building AERSEHNAFEZ LAITE LR
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold BEY 2RO - EHEREELTIR
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at BEYREN SRR  BIEHAE—RK
the inception of the lease. When the lease payments cannot be NARERE  WIERME - WE KR
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the PR

entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted

for as property, plant and equipment.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made W ER RS A - BIABRDIE
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an LERE 2 HE RN G A ISk
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the MEAZS|FTENBERIE] - Wik
consolidated statement of financial position and is stated at cost R RET S R A Rt R EEES
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment IR o ESHNE FE AR A ER
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over the EEEHE  RIFBAIRKRAEEES
term of the lease/right of use except where an alternative basis is 2R Ttz B0 e 7 SR B At B E o

more representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
by the Group from use of the land.
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ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FEESFHEGE)
2.6 Intangible assets and research and development activities 26 EREERWRTEE

Intangible assets BIEEE
Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost and those BRI A EY IR AR R
acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at BEPER B EERKEBRZRA
the acquisition date. After initial recognition, intangible assets with EWER - RUIPHERE - EARAE
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation RFEz B A E TR AR 25T
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for RAEI REHREEESIER - EFRA{E
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line RENEREEINBESEREMET
basis over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences A AFAIET IR - W BRI EE
when the intangible assets are available for use. The following A1 AR S - TOIRIEARFH
useful lives are applied: TR
Computer software 5to 10 years B 5104
Trademarks 10 years [SLE 104
Customer list 10 years EYSE 104
Selling licences 5 years SHERT Al 7E 54
The useful life of the anesthetic drug production and selling rights REEEIRER R SR SR A R 3
and trade name are considered by the management of the Group BEBOEATHBETRE - RERM
as indefinite because the anesthetic drug production and selling T st SR DA R TS B IBTE B AR
rights, and trade name is expected to contribute to the Group’s B &R )T AFIREMA ©

net cash inflows indefinitely.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less BB ERAEAF BRI EETIRK

any subsequent accumulated impairment losses. BT E % RETREESEER ©

The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed, BEMEETERFEAFTHENEZ

and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. WH T AR REERBRT T LA
# .

Intangible assets, with finite and indefinite useful lives, are tested AT XHIEE2.1 7R - A AR KER ]

for impairment as described below in note 2.17. FAFENEFEESETRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.6 Intangible assets and research and development activities
(Continued)
Research and development costs
Costs associated with research activities are expensed in profit
or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable to
development activities are recognised as intangible assets provided
they meet the following recognition requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective
product for internal use or sales;

(i)  there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

(i) the Group's ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits
through internal use or sales;

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be
reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities along with an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
The costs of development of internally generated software,
products or knowhow that meet the above recognition criteria
are recognised as intangible assets. They are subject to the same
subsequent measurement method as acquired intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.7 Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the
financial asset and substantially all of its risks and rewards
are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is
extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component and are measured at the transaction price
in accordance with HKFRS 15, all financial assets are initially
measured at fair value, in case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective as
hedging instruments, are classified into the following categories:

- amortised cost;
- FVTPL; or

- fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).
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iR e SRR M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-T-NF+-A=+—RILFR

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.7 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

(Continued)
The classification is determined by both:

—  the entity’s business model for managing the financial asset;

and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are
recognised in profit or loss are presented within finance costs or
other revenue, except for expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade
receivables which is presented within other operating expenses.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Debt investments
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet
the following conditions (and are not designated as FVTPL):

—  they are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual cash

flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other revenue in profit or loss. Discounting
is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The
Group's cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables

fall into this category of financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)

Debt investments (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a difference business model
other than “hold to collect” or “hold to collect and sell” are
categorised at FVTPL. Further, irrespective of business model,
financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVTPL.
This category includes principal protected deposits.

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
interest-bearing bank borrowings and lease liabilities.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially measured
at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs
unless the Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
except for derivatives and financial liabilities designated at
FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss (other than derivative financial
instruments that are designated and effective as hedging
instruments).

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an
instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or loss are

included within finance costs or other revenue.

Accounting policy of lease liabilities are set out in note 2.12.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. ETESITEHEGE)

2.7 Financial instruments (Continued) 27 £@MIAGE
Financial liabilities (Continued) SRS & (&)
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities (Continued) ZHIBEZ SR E (E
Interest-bearing bank borrowings W ERITIEER
Interest-bearing bank borrowings are recognised initially at fair M ERITEERVIRAFENBRRZ S
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Interest-bearing bank NEER o HIBHT B IRITIEE IR H R A
borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any HIER ¢ PTISIE (FIBR R S AN) BifE ]
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the BEZEAzANEZENEESRRERE
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of BRAZEN B R NTER o

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings are classified as current liabilities BRIEREE S BIGENTEER 25
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of Bz 12 AN EaE  SAME
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. RITEERERRBAR -

Trade and other payables and entrusted loans from the immediate JET AR R A M JE (T 0B R BB A2 A
parent company ZFEHEA

Trade and other payables and entrusted loans from the immediate FERTERR R A E R R R BB AR]
parent company are recognised initially at their fair value and LRERV SR AT ERER - HERIE
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective FAEBRF AR HENAGTE -

interest method.

2.8 Impairment of financial assets 28 £@MEERE
HKFRS 9's impairment requirements use more forward-looking BB SRS 2RISR AR E R E A
information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”. Instruments FARIEMNER AR EEEE -
within the scope included loans and other debt-type financial assets [TEEMEEEEER] - BUHTEEHE
measured at amortised cost and trade and other receivables. A2 TEBFREERATECERR
HittEBBEEemEENRERRR R
HAthpEIFRIA o
The Group considers a broader range of information when R EEERR RFT2EBEERE
assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past events, - AEBZ2EREZNER - BIF
current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that BAEEH  RERAARAIZEG@ET
affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the BERRRE&mEFHIKE 2 HEE
instrument. BITEAY o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made
between:

—  financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly
in credit quality since initial recognition or that have low
credit risk (“Stage 1"); and

—  financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in
credit quality since initial recognition and whose credit risk is
not low (“Stage 2").

“Stage 3" would cover financial assets that have objective
evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL" are recognised for the Stage 1 category while
“lifetime ECL" are recognised for the Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the financial
instrument.

Trade receivables

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL
and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual
cash flows, considering the potential for default at any point
during the life of the financial assets. In calculating the ECL, the
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience and external indicators, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NEF+_A=+—HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FESEEER (@)
2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 28 S@MEERE (,‘.‘E)
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost IR A G EC At 2 M EE
The Group measures the loss allowance for other receivables REEHHAMEWTIENBIERES
equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant R12EA 2 FEHEEEE - BRIESD
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group REREERARBR ARG - AEEE
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime REMEHEEEE - ERTEERTH
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increase in the TEEEEEENTEEER B VIR
likelihood or risk of default occurring since initial recognition. VAR EE A 32 40 A ge 14 sk R\ B r RR 15
e

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly RS BV ERAREERR S
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default RIZINES - AEESLERBEBESHE
occurring on the financial assets at the reporting date with the risk EEFREORREVIGERAD CMEE
of default occurring on the financial assets at the date of initial BEBEARR o HRNEERE - AEE
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both ZEREERAENEMREENER -
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and PEREBALBEEFTNETUENKAR
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking 3% BN AT ERIS RO RIRE 1 &Y

information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when LHR  EHhHEERBISTEELM

assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly: B BERUATER

- anactual or expected significant deterioration in the financial - BRI AENINBUEE)KNEE
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating; AR ER ke BgaE =

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of - NBEHEEERBREREZER
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the ft - MEERNZE -  EBAERHE
credit default swap prices for the debtor; AR ERER

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or - X% BB 1'7%@51@&?5
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant HRIR AR EE) - Al BB
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations; UNECPAPNGIN

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the - EBALLEELEBERNELS
operating results of the debtor; HIRERE R

—  an actual or expected significant adverse change in the - BEBANEE  CBEIEMIRSR
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the HIRE mjﬁfé,ﬁﬁﬁfﬁiﬁﬂ_ﬂ g
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s g MRS HEBAERERE DX
ability to meet its debt obligations. 8 T FE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)
Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the end of each reporting period. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if it has a low risk of
default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill its
contractual cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collateral held by the Group).

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables and
other financial assets measured at amortised cost are set out in
note 33.2.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion
and applicable selling expenses.

Cost is determined using the weighted average basis, and in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprise
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. It excludes borrowing costs.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amounts of any write down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write down or
loss occurs. The amounts of any reversal of any write down
of inventories are recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. ETESITEHEGE)
2.10 Cash and cash equivalents 210 RERBEEEEY
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand, RekBFeSEYRERITRFER
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid © RITERFERMNLERERHA A=
investments with original maturities of three months or less that A ASEAT ~ BER AT ERIR A B ME R
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are e REBEZSERIAZE RS RELE
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. RE -
2.11 Contract assets and contract liabilities 2.1 EHEERENERE

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue RS BB RGBS L FEN K
(see note 2.15) before being unconditionally entitled to the ERRERTRERIA (RFI5E2.15) R igE
consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract. RERNEE - GREERMT2.8MH
Contract assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy PR TR EAE B BB MR G - WER
set out in note 2.8 and are reclassified to receivables when the BN ARIRGEEERHRERIK
right to the consideration has become unconditional (see note 2.7). I8 (RFFFF2.7) -
A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays ME P RAS B ERBBARA 2B
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue RE - BEREHNBE(RMEE2.15) -
(see note 2.15). A contract liability would also be recognised if i 22 B R A A RE R n] A AN SE B 7
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration RAABBA Z FIBEA(E - RS
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a HBEE - EIERT - TS HERIEER
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note 2.7). FEUGRIE (RF5E2.7) ©
For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract MERTPIIUNE—SAME - Gk
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, BREEFHEXEHNAETHE - RFE
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are BRME @ TERFEELEY W HA
not presented on a net basis. BRNENEEREGHNBEIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.12 Leases
Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
Applicable from 1 January 2019
For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 January 2019,
the Group considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A
lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use office premises (the underlying asset) for a period
of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition, the
Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations
which are whether:

- the contract contains an identified asset, which is either
explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by
being identified at the time the asset is made available to the
Group;

—  the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use, considering its rights within
the defined scope of the contract; and

—  the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use. The Group assess
whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’
the asset is used throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. ETESITEHEGE)
2.12 Leases (Continued) 2.12 HE (@
Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee (Continued) HENEERAEBEEARBEA (HE)
Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued) A -=F—F—H—HEEHE)
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee FTERBEREREHEANHE
At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right- REERBHEE - NEBRERE TR
of-use asset and a lease liability on the consolidated statement NEAERAFAREERHERE -
of financial position. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, AEEERKAZ - HREHEARE
which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, BYIFETE - AEEEENTAYIZE
any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any BERKAN « TATH & 45 R AR bR KSR A RS
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset at the end of BEMKAGET RRIEERFRR B EIRIE
the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease HEEREE N KR EAEREE
commencement date (net of any incentives received). BR) -
Except for those right-of-use assets meeting the definition of REEREDMEERNZELAESE
investment properties and those relating to a class of property, REBREASHEANYE  BERE
plant and equipment to which revaluation model was applied, HEANEREEEIN  AEEREE
the Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line s BBl = AEEEN I AEH
basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end ERFEEF LRI (ARFE BE)
of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease FREREHETRREEELETHE B
term unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership HAREEEEEETAHEFHERE
at the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of- ESHERRERIBRIN o REETFA IR AR
use asset (except for those meeting the definition of investment FAREDRE - S AEEEET
properties) for impairment when such indicator exists. it MRS RENEEENERAEEE
BIIBRAN o
At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability REBBH - AEBEZZAHARGHEE
at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, HIBRREFEHEAE  WFEAHEE
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that ERAM AR ok (W s I R AR S E)
rate cannot be readily determined, or the Group’s incremental REERILSEERETAR o

borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability Rt 2HEBERTANEENRBE
are made up of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed BEEZINEAENEENR(BIE
payment) less any lease incentives receivable, variable payments BEEEMNR)REAMEREEERER
based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under AT - Mz e MIRHARRISRMERE
a residual value guarantee. The lease payments also included BRI - HENRMEEAEEE
the exercise price of a purchase option reasonable certain to be BT BT E R
exercised by the Group and payment of penalties for terminating HEXN®ES  WZHEEFHREAR
a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option SEITERIEE R EERE -

to terminate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.12 Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee (Continued)
Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee (Continued)
Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced
for payments made and increased for interest cost on the lease
liability. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed
payments. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is
reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-
use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases using the
practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset
and lease liability, the payments in relation to these lease are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term
of 12 month or less.

The prepaid lease payments for leasehold land are now presented
included in “Right-of-use assets” under non-current assets.
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BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. ETESITEHEGE)
2.12 Leases (Continued) 2.12 HE (@

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee (Continued) HENEERAEBEEARBEA (HE)
Applicable before 1 January 2019 —E-NF—HA—HFEH
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of AN EERES T —HLE(BE -
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that R —EHRR5) 0] 1t 32 | A
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets FRIEEBENXZIHEERRET] - LR
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of e — @RI H - RS ARE
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation SIS - RIBRTEIRIBEZLH
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether WAARMFHEMIELD - ERZTHES
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease. AR EIETE ST ©
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group ()  HHETEEEREESIE

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which REBBBEBAFENEE - M

transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards ZARK) G R ED 2 [ K A A

of ownership are classified as being held under finance HREBREALE  DHOBERRE

leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks HE - WEAGKE S @R RES

and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as BEEHREBREAREENEL T D

operating leases, with the following exceptions: HREEMRE - AR -

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the — REBEKEHEEREERANT
fair value of which cannot be measured separately from - MAEERBE - EQ
the fair value of a building situated thereon, at the FEELFEMRE EMNEF
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held MNAFESFEE - AlER
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly BEMEEERE AR K
held under an operating lease (see note 2.4). For these FZEFIRE B2
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the 585 E (RMiE2.4) - 5t
lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over LAEB®ME - HAOMRLE
from the previous lessee. HEA DAL E &R SLEL

S AFIEEAE TR -

(i) Operating lease charges as the lessee (i) AAEHEFZ (ERFABA)
Where the Group has the right to use of assets held EXAEEBRBLCEHEMERE
under operating leases, payments made under the leases EFEAE - AREBEBEONNRT
are charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over REEFHRMREN ST HARIZ
the lease terms except where an alternative basis is more BEREEGFAERRE  BKRIFFE
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived AREEEHELZERBTZDN
from the leased assets. TR E M A o

(iii)  Leasehold land for own use (i) THEHMHLH
Interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an REE T r s et AL EHE
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” EWZ[FEMNAERIE] 25N ER
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is EUMBRAREREREHZE
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. KROFHEE o

88 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is recognised
at the amount of consideration of shares issued, after deducting
any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.15 Revenue recognition
Revenue arises mainly from manufacturing and selling of
medicines and healthcare products.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows a
5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. Identifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are
satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated
amongst the various performance obligations based on their
relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price for a
contract excludes any amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when
(or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring
the promised goods or services to its customers.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Sales of goods

Revenue from manufacturing and selling of medicines and
healthcare products for which control of assets is transferred at
a point in time is recognised when the goods are delivered to
customers. The Group provides sales return policies to customers,
and the amount of sales return was insignificant.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Sales management services to pharmaceutical products
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the
services is rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.16

2.17

Government subsidies

Subsidies from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the subsidies will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government subsidies are deferred and recognised in profit or
loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
the subsidies are intended to compensate. Government subsidies
relating to the purchase of assets are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Government subsidies relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other revenue” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets (including prepaid lease payments) and the Company’s
interests in subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life or those not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they are
impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment whenever
there are indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal, and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FESFBX@E)

2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) 2.17 k&WMEERE (@)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does REMEREMS @ MAELRSRAZ
not generate cash inflows largely independent from those from BERNEHBIREMEE - Bl
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the CRARABYEERSRANKDE
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows independently EHE BReELEN)ERE - At
(i.e., a cash-generating unit). As a result, some assets are MHEEFBEITRENR - SEID
tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash- BRI S EEBLOAR - feeminl &R
generating unit level. Corporate assets are allocated to individual — BN EEEE  PEEESESRE
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of ERREELEN - BRISIZAERIN
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the AEE B EREES I E &/ MR
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable SELBMAR

and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

IR S AL B AR R BB R R L
RIRSELBMMNEEN  EEEN
FREER 2R ERE @R A FER
HERARLEREEHAEE) °

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units are
charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-generating units, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

HANEEEERN RO SRR hEtHHR
BMEBE - RERES TALDE - B
Cl B NS BN ST AT T HERRIRIE » I
FHETEREHSH 2 AREE -

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation and amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

2.18 Employee benefits 2.18 EEEF
Short-term employee benefits and contributions to central pension AT HE B 15T R - FR K2 5 IRk
scheme
The Group participates in the central pension scheme (the “CPS")
operated by the local government authority for all of its employees
in PRC. The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage
of their covered payroll to the CPS to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the CPS is to pay the
ongoing required contributions under the CPS. Contributions W—BERRBZRKRS T EIRES A
under the CPS are recognised in profit or loss as they become PR E MR o IRIBRIN B EHEIHVIR
payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS. 8l - REREIEERE - RIBRAESE
Sl E N ERRP R

AREREMBETENEREZ2NAE
WERF#EE LN RRARSEE (R
ReFtdll) - AEEAEREF AR
MET B DL AERKRSEEIHK - A%
BARHRES - AEEFERADF R

¥o o FRIEAL  FEAFHFBRARPR
BARBFTEIHR  AELAKENESRE
RIS FE A AT EE S - BX
HEBELERAEANTE  ZHEAIN

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and contributions
to central pension scheme are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these

amounts are stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and

when it recognises costs for any related restructuring.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income earned
on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, for the
acquisition, construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sales. Other borrowing costs are
expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sales are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use or sales are complete.

2.20 Translation of foreign currencies

2.21

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates and are not
retranslated.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

2. FTESIBER (@)
2.19 fEERA

R - BEREEENAEREEM
EEZBERANGERERIEENE

% B T RER Y (E AR B Hat) @ N5
R R B EE VR EL B E R P I 18k

FER - AEREERET BREEH
NI ERERTERERHENEE - &
e ERAR E LR 3 -

BEEELRX  {EERAELNEER
ERARERGRH L EVENERT
TEETTHIR - (BERATIRFTEAMER
BEREERANED - EEAERE
ERABE RE % &P BR R AR
MEFBTIETKE - FERAERLE
ZNI

2.20 s

2.21

REZHINERZ IR 5 ANRITE
T;E - PONESHENEB EER AR
B2 RMRHVITERIGE - EXE
M R ERARERRT R - HERARYE
HBINEFIRE FRANINE BRI E R
REMZE ST ER -

ASMERBER AT ENIFFEREER
BEEARSBHIRITERGE &I &
B -

FEBzEst A%
FRSTH B A A B SR AETRIA

AHREHEER /LA BEERAR
BEZHAE(ER2RBEEARIZN) -
AT E R R B E KB B
ERZRE - DHRBFAERBEN
&ﬁ@%%%ﬁim%m < M IRFED
 AHRIBEESN B BELMAE
ﬁﬂk%ﬁimﬁﬁ%§°

O19F F# 93



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

2. EEREHHEE
2.21 FHEB 2 BT % ()
EERIATRN 28 B AERE ERE
AREHE L REERLS A2 BEL
UHEENREETE  BENBA
6 —ARBLFT B I R DL B 2 AR A
B © W7 B2 H U R BUE R (BHETA

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, FERBIE B = 58) A VB 85 0T H1 00 B B
tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other unused Z - RBANIEEERAREABIEL
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit, % AIBLAT BRI &AE 2 Al E R E
including existing taxable temporary differences, will be available B A ABIEEE A R E MR E AR
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax BEEERRBEERIBEE °

losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

i B By B 2R B A e @ A A S

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the

temporary difference arises from initial recognition (other than in B ETZE NS HANEELERS
a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction (FEBEOBRIN - AN SHERIELERIE
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss. BEMAE-

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary S AN B AR FTEARNERT TR =58
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where AERRBELHIERE  WASEE
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary BIE =R B O M E R ERE IS ER
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will B [ BIBR AN o

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that BEFRIENTREER - WIRTBHAE AR E
are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset BAGENEREENRCHERTE - &
realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the MERZHREEREBOGHER LER
reporting date. o o

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity if they relate to items that are charged or credited to other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if,

and only if:

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the

recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously.

BRERIREES BB EBHINESER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 2. FEESFHEGE)
2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 2.21 FRSBi 2 g5 5% ()
The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities Z'KEIEEM—H AT ELFEET
in net if, and only if: REBIB R E JRLERIARE ¢
(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current (@) ZEEMEEEBHIENITERE
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and REBIREEMAERIEBEY
Rk
(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate (b)y ELEHIBEEMLRTEHRIESGEH
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on [ — AR BA Bt LA T (B — IE &
either: Wz RSTAR
(i) the same taxable entity; or () BE—ERHEE X
(i) different taxable entities which intend either to settle (i) BAEFHEEAELE KR
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to BHEREEEXFRAFEERE
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, ENETABENTRERE
in each future period in which significant amounts £ RS HEHEXID
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be BLEBIBEGENEESREE
settled or recovered. T EESKRE -
2.22 Segment reporting 2.22 ZEBE R
The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment AEBETHANTESRENLTBE
information based on the regular internal financial information KE - DA S ph AR S B S AR AR () A
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about BRDEIERTE - AR FRA%ZE
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and WK DRRER - MAEBEAREZE
for their review of the performance of those components. The BREIDEESHREEDEER o M)
business components in the internal financial information reported WMITEFWRE 2 N IS E R 158
to the executive directors are determined following the Group’s BEBD - KB AE B ZIREBHIRIR
various lines of business and geographical locations. MBI EETE ©
2.23 Related parties 2.23 FEAL
For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a ARSI BRI S - ?‘Té%?ﬂ%’-‘t—ﬂ’\]
party is considered to be related to the Group if: AT AR SR B R
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (@ ZBATHZBATREIR
family and if that person: fiisZ B AT
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; (i)  EAREEB SR =
T
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (iy HAEEBEANTE ;=
(iiiy is @ member of the key management personnel of the (i) AEAEEFIAEEFTAFE
Group or of a parent of the Group. ZEREKE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HEZ

E-NF+_A=t—RHLFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.23 Related parties (Continued)
(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions
applies:

()

(i

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vi)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an assodiate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third

party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity,

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in @);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

2. FESEEER (@)
2.23 BEAL (@)

(b)

ZENTRER

A

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

i T 1) 5k 1 5

—EERAS —EBZBE
ARRAALE (HB—K
57 S Bl — B B 2 A
M-MBEARRARD
%)

ZEREAKEY QR %
=R EDRE

—EEEA—EE=770—
RMEBERE Mu—EBR
FZE=TTH T A E

ZERARRINMENFE
Mzt 8 ERASEEREE X
RAEEREETN—EEREN
EEREH

j%ii‘( VERFTRERBIA L
o H R

é\(a (VERFTHER A T 3%
SEEAFENTZAL
TR (AZEBHERQ

VEEERAE K

i

(B RS P A 55 B Y
T $‘$l&$

\r
L

I
e

\
/

o

X
%M%?ﬁ’@

—RALTEIBREMAIZE
AXZATRZERANR S

=7 zE[S
=

96 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

VZEREKE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire B ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs 3. ERANENET L R AMER] BB I ER
e
New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods R-B—NEFE—B—BERHEEER I EER
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 %ﬂiﬂZ%ﬁﬂﬁ&gﬂ%ﬂ?%ﬁjﬁﬁ%&ﬁ“
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the NAEE  AEBBLERLTHESS
following new and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which Em’“/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ gﬁiz’g%@ﬁ@%@ﬁﬁﬁ&mﬁﬁﬁ/\
are relevant to the Group's operations and effective for the Group’s AEBRA-ZE—HE— L — BB EEH
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1 SEor ﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁZ%ﬁﬂi&%&fa HEat
January 2019: s R
HKFRS 16 Leases B TSR YR e
F165%
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative BRI | BEBmE IR
Compensation ELUACHES EHES
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or | HENEET - GBRiEk
Settlement 195% (IEFTA) =B
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and B @R REBLANTIRAEE
Joint Ventures 285 (IEFTA) R &R
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015- EE B AR IRE %R BB TR IR HER|
2017 Cycle CHEN) —T-RFE
— LB
ZEENE
HK (IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 5 (ERMERER FERMEREY THEE
BZEE®)-REE M
235%
Other than the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases” as noted [ SR B 4N B S B A SRS E B 169
below, the adoption of the new and amended HKFRSs had no material (TS| 228 LT RSB TS
impact on how the results and financial position for the current and ;@ﬁﬁ%#&%ﬁ/ﬁuﬁ$/ﬁﬂFﬁ&;@&ﬁﬁf‘ﬁZ%F
prior periods have been prepared and presented. B TS HRSR R B R 2 51| 75 SR 4 B K B 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs
(Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 ‘Leases’ along with three Interpretations
(HK(IFRIC)-Int4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease”, HK(SIC)-Int 15 “Operating Leases-Incentives” and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease”). HKFRS 16 has been applied using the modified
retrospective approach, with the cumulative effect of adopting HKFRS
16 being recognised in equity as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits for the current period. Prior periods have not been
restated.

For contracts in place at the date of initial application, the Group
has elected to apply the definition of a lease from HKAS 17 and HK
(IFRIC)-Int 4 and has not applied HKFRS 16 to arrangements that were
previously not identified as lease under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.

The Group has elected not to include initial direct costs in the
measurement of the right-of-use asset for operating leases in existence
at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, being 1 January 2019.
The Group measure the right-of-use assets as if HKFRS 16 had always
been applied since the commencement date of the lease (other than
discounting using the relevant incremental borrowing rate at the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16).

Instead of performing an impairment review on the right-of-use assets
at the date of initial application, the Group has relied on its historic
assessment as to whether leases were onerous immediately before the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16.
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R-B-h&-A-ARHEMRZFES
P 25 2 8T 2 IR AR 5T 7B 05 3 o 2
()

BB B ERIE 165 A

BB B RS ERE6HRA TR HER
F175 BRI AR =R (B8 (ERMS
BERBEES) - RBEAMBELHR
HZRaME T (FRRBEES) R
BEISHIELHE 20 RES (RRR
BZE®) -REEVRIHESRESLE
FRRSMEL]) - EEUBHRELAZE 16
R EEARETENE  ROBEMHR
%A1 65 00 R E RN A PR -
{EREABRERERANNRNERBE - B
A HRL KRG ES -

RUGBERBHERTINANME - A&EH
EREEATESTERE17HRREE (B
R BREREZE®) —RERINEE
EELARERETLUHRELLF165R
ERYRBRBEEBGENE17TREEE
(B BREREBELZE®) —REF4RE
RAHERN R

AEBEREERVRERE BV BRELER
F16RERBI—F-NF-A—RB)FER
BREMENFEREEER - Tt AVSBE
B - ARERTEEREEE - BOER
MBHmEENE16EAMERIGEHE—&
ER(EREREREEMBREEAE 16
2 B2 RIS EEERIFTIERIN -

TERIRVIGGIER B i Mg B AR TRIE
BENER  ARBRBEEHSHESTNE
EUREAE MRS ERE165EE B AT
REERBERS

98 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs
(Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

On transition, the Group reclassified leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases recognised as prepaid lease payments, now
presented included in right-of-use assets for presentation purpose. And
for leases previously accounted for as operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months and for leases of low-value assets the
Group has applied the optional exemptions to not recognise right-of-
use assets but to account for the lease expense on a straight-line basis
over the remaining lease term.

The Group has already recognised the prepaid lease payments for
leasehold land where the Group is a lease. The application of HKFRS
16 does not have impact on these assets except for the whole balance
is now presented included in “Right-of-use assets” under non-current
assets.

On transition to HKFRS 16 the weighted average incremental borrowing
rate applied to lease liabilities recognised under HKFRS 16 was 4.35%.

R E REEEYRMROERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NEF+_A=+—HILFE

Total lease liabilities recognised under HKFRS 16

3. Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs 3. ERANETET L RAMER] BB IR
(Continued) HEEL (&)
New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual periods R-ZE-—NF-B—HHEZHRKRZFES
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 (Continued) B R ZHET L RGBT BB BREER
(&)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued) BB BIREERE 1655 HE | (B)
The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease commitments LWTFRARZZE-—N\FE+_A=+—BNag
at 31 December 2018 to the lease liabilities recognised at 1 January EHEAREEN _T-NF— A - BR#ERIN
2019: HEREYK
RMB’000
ARETIT
Total operating lease commitments disclosed R-ZE-N\F+ZA=1+—BHEN
at 31 December 2018 MBI B R 6,434
— Leases with remaining lease term of less than 12 months ~ —& RNV 12ME A NEE (490)
Operating leases liabilities before discounting RS EEEAE 5,944
Discounting using incremental borrowing rate RZZE-—NF—H—BHHA
as at 1 January 2019 REEERR (470)

R-ZE-NF—HA-AREEEMB

at 1 January 2019 WEENF 16 ERNEHERE 5,474
Classified as: DR
Current lease liabilities mEHEERE 1,447
Non-current lease liabilities EnRBHEaE 4,027
5,474
The following table summarises the impact of transition to HKFRS 16 on TREAR —Z-NF—A—BEREEZS
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January FERRRBEE DB EREELE 1657
2019: TE
RMB’000
AREETFTT
Decrease in leasehold land and land use rights CATEE MRS T R b AR
under operating leases (59,309)
Increase in right-of-use assets fE FAREE B N 64,259
Increase in lease liabilities HEA BN 5,474
Decrease in retained profits REB &R (524)
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ire B ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

Adoption of New and Amended HKFRSs 3. ERAMETRT M RAERT BB IR
(Continued) HEER (%)
Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs EEMEMRERZEBUBHREER
At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, REETEARGEMBERERER - BT
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but are not yet RS B AN B HREERIKE BMAERMR
effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group. AR BB ASERERR -
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BENBREEE TR RERE 4P
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between BEEMBREENFI0RR  REERABEARN
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint BB G ERIZE285 RECEREET T
Venture? (CHEN) AEE
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business* BN BREER SBMTEE
£35% (BFIA)
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’ BENBREENFR - FIREENE
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 BEGEAFEIRR
BEUBREENETR
(BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’ BEETEAS 1T RES EpNG:i)E
and HKAS 8 SEERIESS: (B3] A)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 : R ZTF—A— B &R 2 FEH
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 2 ;’?\%%’z:—i A—HBskE&RMRzFEH
3 Effective date not yet determined 3 E}%é{ﬁﬁrﬁiiﬁm
8 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the 8 HWHEBARAR-Z-_TF—A—AzxzE
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period Fis 2 B EFERRMRI T B2 EBE 0
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 REBEWEEN
The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be adopted B ETEETFTA MM 2 ZE R R 8 R A% B HA
in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period beginning on or g BFRBNERARMALREER 2 5T
after the effective date of the pronouncement. The new and amended 5o MRl RS T BB S AR AT
HKFRSs are not expected to have a material impact on the Group's BreEEAEBERaMBERREEERNY

consolidated financial statements. 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NEF+_A=+—HILFE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 4. BEESTHEFTRFE

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Estimates uncertainty

Property, plant and equipment, deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset, which requires significant judgement relating to the level
of revenue and the amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on the carrying amounts
of the assets and could result in additional impairment charge or
reversal of impairment in future periods. The carrying amounts
of the property, plant and equipment, deposit for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at the
end of the reporting period are approximately RMB152,948,000
(2018: approximately RMB137,339,000), approximately
RMB1,066,000 (2018: approximately RMB1,075,000) and
RMB61,166,000 (2018: N/A) respectively.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Since the initial adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group makes allowances
on items subjects to ECL (including trade and other receivables
and other financial assets measured at amortised cost) based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period as set out in note 2.8.

AEt kA REAELREEMAR (2
BERKRET  ARREMHEHEEZE
H) 15 TR -

41 AT HBEEZE
W - BERLE - EELH - YFE
BER R EES REHIEEE

BEMARECEEEATERLERK
AIEABENRSSE - EEFHERE
BF - DR A RR S RITREER
%F@ FRMITIE AR REIBRT
SR E S RHE MZ B ERE 2R
@zmmﬁmT I F EH U ATKLER
KRR AERERAE - NEEFIABAT
ﬁﬁﬁ%éﬂﬁﬁ%@é%ﬁAEMﬁ
BIEE R A Z R A KA
ﬁmgammm o [hET e RERIE A
RHEENRABEELEEANTE I
Al B2 B B R K B AT IR BN R (B
E%i%@aﬁ%mﬁ@%% i
WEIR - % - BB REE - WED
¥ BERRENZRSRMEABEES
R4 AR ¥ 152,948,0007T (ZZ—/\
F o HARE137,339,0000T) * HIA
K%1,066,0007T (ZZ—\F : HAR
#1,075,0007T) 2 AR #61,166,0007T
(ZZE—NF : NERA)

JEWR IR R BN JEW I R 1E

BRABBMERELFIMRE - &
SERZRREREEEHRRENRR
(62 37 8 W R Ao e L At B M 0 B
ARG ENEMEREE) ENERH
EHER R FREER 2 RERIEL
o ERNAKEZBERE - BAMS
#R%&%Fﬁﬁﬁ REBENEHRE
HREHZEFEREEFEREZES
ABEE & (E A E (RFE2.8) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

4.1

Estimates uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

The aggregate carrying amounts of trade and other receivable
(excluding prepayment and value-added tax recoverable)
to approximately RMB234,401,000 (2018: approximately
RMB189,324,000) (net of ECL allowance of approximately
RMB2,205,000 (2018: approximately RMB2,133,000))
and approximately RMB21,779,000 (2018: approximately
RMB18,829,000) (net of ECL allowance of approximately
RMB1,064,000 (2018: approximately RMB1,007,000)) respectively.

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and other items within the scope of ECL under HKFRS
9 and credit losses in the periods in which such estimate has been
changed.

Write down of inventories

The Group determines the write down for obsolescence of
inventories. Those estimates are made with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future saleability of
the goods and management experience and judgement. Based
on this review, a write down of inventories will be made when
the carrying amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in market conditions, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in the estimation. The
carrying amounts of inventories as at the end of the reporting
period is approximately RMB124,747,000 (2018: approximately
RMB113,138,000).

R E REEEYRMROERAE

4. BEE

4.1

ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

SETHEET R E (&)

fEEr B E & ()

JEYRIR I B JEW B R 1B ()

JREE A B SR e L At R MK R T (T A5 R0E
A EEERR N 2 BERTEED B
B AREE234,401,0000L (ZZE— N
% ) AR#189,324,0007T) (1A
HiEEFEEREHN ARE2,205,0007T
(Z=2—N\F : HHAR¥2,133,0007T))
RO ANREE21,779,0007T (=& — N\
& HARE18,829,0007T) (FIERTEHA
EEEEREBHARE,064,0007T (=
T—)\F : HARH1,007,0007T)) °

EERRKREREFNNMERE
K AEEZRESTETEUHREEN
FORETRHEEFESEANNREY
m&ﬁ’rﬁzlﬁ B HRREE AN A BfhE
EEBHRNEERE -

W7 E
AEESETRETERNMR - 1LEMH
A2 EFERESN - BHARAKER
HEE BN ER BN X miE
e REBLEN - MEENEREESRR
EREGFT A ZIFE - AIASESM
BWITEMEMR - ERTRAA LR
) - BRE RSB ARG
BEITR - MitEETERE A e 248
W FEEHRBARNEDENARE
124,747,000 (ZE—N\F : HAR
#113,138,0007T) ©

019F F %% 103



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
= + 23

e B ISR R M5

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

4.1

4.2

Estimates uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual test on whether there has been
impairment of intangible assets in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2.17. The recoverable amounts are the higher
of fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. The calculations
used in estimation of value in use require the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on the future operation
of the business, pre-tax discount rate, and other assumptions
underlying the value in use calculations. The carrying amounts of
intangible assets as at the end of reporting period is approximately
RMB100,260,000 (2018: approximately RMB107,152,000).

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
not yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the unused tax credits can be utilised, management'’s assessment
is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. The carrying amounts
of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period are approximately RMB2,592,000 (2018:
approximately RMB1,523,000) and approximately RMB 15,490,000
(2018: approximately RMB16,914,000) respectively.

Critical accounting judgements

Research and development activities

Careful judgment by the Group’s management is applied when
deciding whether the recognition requirements for development
costs have been met. This is necessary as the economic success
of any product development is uncertain and may be subject to
future technical problems at the time of recognition. Judgments
are based on the best information available at each reporting
date. In addition, all internal activities related to the research
and development of new software, products or know-how are
continuously monitored by the Group’s management.

4.

EREHEET R A E (&)

4.1

4.2

EREEEFEIC)

HEREERE

BEERAM 217025 KR - AEE
BFYEREESARBEETAR - 7]
Bl & 58 A A FER & AR EFERE
BEREEE - HEHEREENE
R EERATEEEARREBEENME
A EET KB - BRBIATAEIRER - R
BB REEEEAENSEEAMRE
% BEEBERZMBROETELOA
R%100,260,000c (ZZ—\F : 49
AR#107,152,0007T) °

Va2
EEMEHRELIREETRHMNAREK
TISEIBIEL Il - NEEFREFT
R GG B W REFHET R -
TEESHRZER HNT B EEIETEH
il - LAET RS R ABIN B &E)
RS s 18 N AT A B R = B TRl
RIEEBIEEE - AN ELRIERIBE
B R R TE 2 #80 FE R B % A1 1] AR /ER 8
RAMBEERES 2ER - BEEMNT
T ETEZ - I RAR AT B8 IR R SR FE R
Foaf R UBMEERIBEE - AleE
REIIMNELEFHIBEE - REMEAR
BEREEERELEHBABENERER
B RI# AR 2,592,0007T (ZF— )\
£ HAREE1,523,0007T) R ARE
15,490,000 L (ZF—N\F : HARM
16,914,0007T) ©

EAGTHE

HEZE)
AEEEEELRATHAERAIZEHE
TR IR T R M BIE R Bl - A
EmAENEERR BRI ZE - 1
HER 2 sl g SR SR BT A R FATBR il o
HET AR 23R B A FE AN REER
REE - HN REBEREREER
FiEBRRRERE « ERIBITAH
BIREDEE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue

Revenue arises mainly from manufacturing and selling of medicines and
healthcare products.

ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

5. WA
WAL ERELERBEEDRIRES -

2019 2018

=i —F-NF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Manufacturing and selling of medicines AEMIEE &S 499,138 433,453
Sales and distribution of medicines and THE ko % m RIRIE©

healthcare products* 581,733 433,670

1,080,871 867,123

* For the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue from sales and
distribution of medicines and healthcare products included the revenue
from sales management services of pharmaceutical products of
approximately RMB5,858,000 (2018: approximately RMB15,857,000) and
manufacturing and selling of medicines including sales of medical devices
of approximately RMB12,827,000 (2018: approximately RMB3,043,000).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed in
note 36(b) to these consolidated financial statements.

*  BE_F-NAF+-_A=+—BLFE-
HERDHERRRERRABIEERDH
EEERBBALHAREES,858,0007T (=
T—)\F : HYARMKE15,857,0007T) RAE
MHEHRRABEEESRMIBENAR
#12,827,000L (ZE—N\F : HARK
3,043,0007T) °

BERAKBENTIERR 2 E—FHBERER
% E A P IRRMEE36(D) °
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fre B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HEZ

E-NF+_A=t—RHLFE

Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geographical location. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s executive directors,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following three reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(i)  Manufacturing and selling of medicines;
(i) Sales and distribution of medicines and healthcare products; and

(iii) Provision of research and development services of modern
biological technology.

Currently, all the Group’s activities above are carried out in the PRC. No
reportable operating segment has been aggregated.

The first segment derives its revenue from the manufacturing, sales of
medicines and medical devices.

The second segment derives its revenue from sales and distribution of
medicines and healthcare products and providing sales management
services of pharmaceutical products.

The third segment derives its revenue from the provision of research &
development services.

ZEEE:
REBIEDRPE R R XTS - 2 BPIRM KRS
R (EmM R RA B EMARS - 25
AERAAEENRTES (R EERRE)
EABREAD EERRIERBFE - A%
B 25T =R RHD AL - WEELT
(IR & ) BB AR T 51 ER ¥R D 8D

() HEMPELRD

(i) HERDHERNMRESR &

(i) IREIRREDRIIE RS o

am LT E AR E B KR B A E
B4 BT A] R ERAC 26 o

F— ﬁ%MWAXEEF&% o KB

ZOEBEVRA K B $HE K 5 8 B R AR 2
an J«/(&TET icﬁlfﬁ%é‘fiﬁﬁﬁ%"

£ =0 BPRVURATK B IR AT R ARTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

6. Segment Reporting (Continued) 6. DEE2IR(E\)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities () oH¥EE - BEERAE
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating EJE DRI KD EE S BRERT
resources between segments, the Group’s executive directors S ARBERFITES KU TEREE
monitor the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each XTEE#§’\*BV1EE’J¥ZI BEKE
reportable segment on the following bases: f& :
Segment assets include all current and non-assets with the DBEEBREMERBRIERBEE -
exception of deferred tax assets. Segment liabilities include all BENREECHBELE - DEEERRE
current and non-current liabilities with the exception of current FrERBFIEREELE - @T@%Eﬂ,ﬁﬁ
taxation and deferred tax liabilities. HIEMELERIEBE
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments WARFAZ Y E2EE @ HEERNH
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the EREREENHEENFAXE@D S
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise Tfﬁﬁ?ﬁ’]ﬁ%‘i%%ﬁﬁ%ié’\]ﬁﬂi‘i&
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to DEEEP RS E
those segments.
The measure used for reporting segments profit is “adjusted EBT", RRBERD I RF M ER fﬁ«‘
that is “adjusted earnings before taxes”. To arrive at adjusted EBT, EBT] (BNIBRFBERIAARAF]) ©
the Group's earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically KRBT © AN @Zﬁf'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂi?ﬁ
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’ fees and EBRERIDER2IE B 1 —
auditor’s remuneration and other head office or corporate B NEEHMRZEM IS - Ei
administration costs. BIRERI N ANTHRAX ©
In addition to receiving segment information concerning UL EI B BT REEBT Z D 2B E R -
adjusted EBT, the executive directors are provided with segment PTESERBEBEBAKA (BIEYHHE
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment W) - M B 0 e L b JE LSRR T ) K
revenue), impairment loss of trade and other receivables, reverse EETE -« FEMRER TR R B At EMGRIE AR
of impairment of trade and other receivables, write down of BEEERED - MRTFERFEHRREE
inventories, reversal of write down of inventories. Inter-segment KD ERE R o DR ATHELE MR
revenue are priced with reference to prices charged to external ATHEBEUFTEELHNERMETE
parties for similar orders. & e
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

6. Segment Reporting (Continued) 6. DEBZHR (&)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) DEHEE BENREEE
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as REE_ZT-NER=_F-/\F+=A
provided to the Group’s executive directors for the purpose of =+ —HIFEZERDERTESE
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance for FERASERITESEUBEASE
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is set out below: R E 2 EREN T X -

Sales and distribution
Manufacturing and of medicines and Research &
selling of medicines healthcare products Development services Total
EENRERR HERAHERRRRR i it
For the year ended 31 December 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
BETZA=T-ALEE “F-0E 3-8 (ZE-AE ZE-\F ZB-Af CE\F  SE-AE CE)\F

RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RVBOOO | RMBOO0  RVBOO0  RMBOOD  RMVBO00
ARRFR ARBTT  ARRTR | ARMTn  [AREFR ARBTT  ARRTR | ARETR

Segment revenue AMRA

Revenue from external customers — SMREEMA 499,138 433453 581,733 433,670 - - 1,08087 867,123
Inter-segment revenue ABEUA 4,276 36,662 191 966 - - 44,187 37628
Reportable segment revenue ~ THEAHHA 541,414 470115 583,644 434,636 - - 1,125,058 904,751

Reportable segment profit/(loss) A#HAHER/ (i)

(adjusted EBT) (5% epT) 25,434 18,381 62,212 57,055 (5,500) (4,576) 82,146 70,360
Wite down of inventories s (1413) (3,39) (4,298) (2,576) - - (11,721) (5.970)
Reversal of write down of inventories £ EH T 114 608 o = - = 114 608
Impairment AE:

- trade receivables - EHEH (183) 14 (125) (286) - - (308) (272)

- other receivables - EthElE - - (57) - - = (57) -
Reverse of impairment losson: ~ JHERERE :

- trade receivables ~ R - 61 - = - = = 61

- other receivables ~EthRME - 0 - 14 - = = 216
Income tax expense FriEREx (28) (2429 (15407) (14,151) 3 = (15412) (16,580)
Reportable segment assets TRRANEE 780,686 701,891 283,293 209,425 189,735 187,211 1253714 1118527

Additions to non-current AEEHEERD
segment assets (other than ~ TIRHEE (REL
deferred tax assets) during ~~ HEEEN)

the year 32,862 28,198 570 2,192 ;3 31 33475 31,021
Reportable seqment liabiites  TH%5 B8 WM 21465 73804 63,170 14484 Wos | IR 291888
The Group’s customer base is diversified and no customer with AEEEFEZ T - HPIER P
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue. ERTUVRR ZiBEAEBRAR10% o
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6. Segment Reporting (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6.

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

2\ 3z

7 B2 ¥ (&)
(b) TWEREAWBA - 8 ERBRY
IR

2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue A R EA 1,125,058 904,751
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7 BRI A SH (44,187) (37,628)
Consolidated revenue KREHA 1,080,871 867,123
Profit m Fl
Reportable segment profit A B R B 82,146 70,860
Elimination of inter-segment profit 73 e A 8 (485) (706)
Reportable segment profit derived from REREEINREF R ] B
the Group's external customers 3 FB A) 81,661 70,154
Unallocated head office and ROBLARER R BRI
corporate expense (2,840) (2,510)
Consolidated profit before taxation BRAEAIAR & A 78,821 67,644
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A ERIR D EBEE 1,253,714 1,118,527
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 7 APFEMEIEIE (132,183) (133,954)
1,121,531 984,573
Deferred tax assets BERERE 2,592 1,523
Consolidated total assets e KRR 1,124,123 986,096
Liabilities 8
Reportable segment liabilities AIERIR D FBRIE 372,022 291,888
Elimination of inter-segment payables 73 BB A KT AR 8 (133,531) (135,287)
238,491 156,601
Current taxation BIHR IR 10,212 13,749
Deferred tax liabilities BELHIAR S 15,490 16,914
Consolidated total liabilities e AEEE 264,193 187,264

R E REEEYRMROERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

6. Segment Reporting (Continued)

() Revenue from major products and services
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major

6. ZEPZHHR(E)
(0 RETBERREHHKA
AT B A S B = B S ARBHMA

products and services: DT
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Medicines and healthcare products BE MRIERES 1,062,186 848,223

Sales management services of S E B ERG
pharmaceutical products 5,858 15,857
Sales of medical devices BEEESSWIHE 12,827 3,043
1,080,871 867,123
(d) Geographical Information (d) HEEHR

The Group's revenue and results from operations mainly derived
from activities in the PRC. The principal assets of the Group were
located in the PRC during the year. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical segment is provided.

(e) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
The Group derives revenue from manufacturing and selling of
medicines and healthcare products at a point in time in type of

AEERBAREEREERRETEH
BEBED - RFA - AEENTEER
EMRRE - Fit - SRR
DT °

() HEAREBEFEHHBA
AEERE —REHREPERNE S H
2R B M HE B n S ARG fm O A

customer:
Hospital Pharmacy Others Total
BB #E Hith st
At 31 December 2019 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
KRB NFF+—A=+—H AR¥T T AR%TR AR¥TT AR¥T T
Manufacturing and selling of FEMHEER
medicines 74,754 408,632 15,751 499,138
Sales and distribution of SHERDHEER
medicines and healthcare RARE SR
products 179,196 402,537 - 581,733
253,950
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

6. Segment Reporting (Continued) 6. DEBZIR (&)

(e) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers (e) MAKBEEFEHNHWA (&)
(Continued)

Hospital Pharmacy Others Total
= R Hh #aEt
At 31 December 2018 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—8H ARETFTT ARBFIT ARBFIT ARETTT
Manufacturing and selling of HERIEEER
medicines 71,938 359,361 2,154 433,453
Sales and distribution of SHE M tHEE m
medicines and healthcare R AR
products 155,020 278,650 - 433,670
226,958 638,011 2,154 867,123
7. Other Revenue and Other Net Income 7. HMWRAREMBAFEEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFT
Other revenue Heg A
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF R B 4,943 6,189
Interest income from principal protected RABIF R EUA
deposits 3,125 1,655
Government subsidies: T8 -
— released from deferred revenue — B B IR s 401 1,269
— directly recognised in profit or loss —HEAERE 599 2,375
Others Hith 35 243
9,103 11,731
Other net income HAW A FEE
Reverse of impairment loss on JE LT B 50 e L At FE IR IR
trade and other receivables DERIEY SRt - 277
Reversal of write down of inventories FEMRREE 114 608
Net foreign exchange gains P& W Wz 58 62 81
Others Efth - 681
176 1,647
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iR e SRR M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NEF+_A=+—HILFE

8. Profit before Taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging the following:

8. ERBLATER

fﬁﬁmwnﬁfwﬂ%ﬁuﬁ?u?%lﬁ 3

2019 2018
—E—hE —ZT—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
(a) Finance costs (a) MKEH
Interest on bank loans and other RITERREMEENFE
borrowings 1,207 1,787
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENTE 210 =
1,417 1,787
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIRK(BREEZHS)
emoluments) (note) (B )
Contributions to defined contribution TE BB TR IRET B AR
retirement plans 16,313 14,502
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMETR 87,354 68,875
103,667 83,377

Note:

P& -

BETHRAHARYE330,045,0007C « AR
25,795,0007C * AR¥32,941,000t RAR
14,886,000 * (T —NF : HARK
24,292,0007t * AR#17,992,0007T - AR#
27,777,000t X AR ¥13,316,00070*) 7 Blat A
HEKA  HERDHEAY  THAI REMEL
BRI °

Staff costs of approximately RMB30,045,000, RMB25,795,000, RMB32,941,000
and RMB14,886,000* (2018: approximately RMB24,292,000, RMB 17,992,000,
RMB27,777,000 and RMB13,316,000*) are included in cost of sales, selling
and distribution costs, administrative expenses and other operating expenses
respectively.
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ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

8. Profit before Taxation (Continued) 8. BR¥iLAIZF (F&)
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging the following: BRAATES A TSR AT B IE : (8)
(Continued)
2019 2018
= Wy 2N\
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
(c) Otheritems (0 HthEB
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (BEERERNE
(including prepaid lease payments PR ISR 2R 1655 R RUTEIT
upon initial adoption of HKFRS 16) HEFIE) 3,093 1,570
Amortisation of intangible assets* BB EEE 4,010 3,968
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERRETE
equipment 16,555 14,101
Impairment of: A
— trade receivables* — FEUBR > 308 272
— other receivables* — Efth MR IE 57 =
Impairment loss on intangible assets* BREEENRERBSE 3,471 =
Write down of inventories* WomFE* 11,721 5,970
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE LR EHEE
plant and equipment* 378 303
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN IS 1,212 1,122
Auditor’s non-audit services ZEENIEE R B &
remuneration 610 371
Lease charges: HEZE
— Land and buildings held under —REGERER/RBFN T
operating leases RigF - 8,549
— Short term leases and leases with lease —RHHEERNEREREE
term shorter than 12 months as at ISR 2R % 1655 A0 2
initial application of HKFRS 16 DR12{E A HEE 5,387 =
Total lease charges HES Hes 5,387 8,549
Cost of inventories GFEKA 436,063 362,226
Research and development costs* L=
(including salaries, wages and (BIEWFESLRME S
other benefits in note 8(b)) TEREMEF])* 27,776 27,311

* HESERAGARBEERE
(B EFRESA -

*  These amounts are included in “Other operating expenses” presented fth 2 E U= R A
on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

9. Income Tax expense 9.

(@) Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income represents:

FRiSHiRE <

RGBSR E 2 E KSR H AR
BHmHXE -

2019 2018
—Z-hF —T-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BfsE AR¥T T AREFT
Current tax BPHARL I8
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") HR B ZEFTISHL
(TTREMER) 17,905 17,152
Deferred tax ERERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary B ZEZ8AHTAE K (B
differences 28(b) (2,493) (572)
15,412 16,580

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for as the Group
had no assessable profits to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
(2018: Nil).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, two subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC are qualified as high technology enterprise.
In accordance with the applicable Enterprise Income Tax Law
of the PRC, these subsidiaries are subject to the PRC EIT at a
preferential rate of 15%.

The Company and other PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC
EIT at a rate of 25% (2018: 25%) for the year ended 31 December
2019.

R AN B I BAB M E B NS &
ARBLE M - R ANFERE AL EEREE
NEBHBEECZE-NF T -

RZE-—NEER=ZZE—N\E+=A
=+—H ' MERR B ARERH
BARAEARKASTEIEE - BIF
HEAPBRCEMEHE  ZSEWEAR]
AIE15% M E BRGNP R bR
158

HE-_Z—NWF+-_A=+—HLHF
B ARBREMFP BB RER
25% (ZF—N\F : 25%) P
FiS iR R 40T o
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ire B ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

Income Tax expense (Continued) 9. FTEHIBIX ()
(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting (b) FTEHBMXEBREABRETENEE
profit at the applicable tax rates: FIRELBR
2019 2018
ZEB-hF ZZE-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Profit before taxation R A Vo A 78,821 67,644
Notional tax on profit before taxation, T2 B8 7 4R I8 B 2R A0 3 AR A =
calculated at the rates applicable to STERM AR BENIA
profits in the countries concerned 16,562 15,161
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses P MBFAZ R B R 2,808 10,816
Tax effect of non-taxable income IR TRE B (4,309) (3,717)
Recognition/(utilisation) of tax losses TR, (B ) LA R EERA
previously not recognised MIBEE 351 (5,680)
Income tax expenses Frisi sz 15,412 16,580
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B RAR oE

—

. For the year ended 31 December 2019
CBET-NFTA=+—HLFE

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 10. EERSRITHRAEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) Hong REBEEERAUEPIFE3NER AR (REE
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure FHEER) ABIR2RBNESME RS
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation and the chief BITHA R (RARALIR) FFBE T

executives emolument'’s (that is, general manager) are as follows:

Executive directors
Mr. Zhang Feng
Mr. Xu Yan He (General Manager)

Non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Lin

Mr. Liu Zhan Jun

Mr. Song Ting Jiu

Mr. Zhao Wen Liang

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon

Mr. Poon Ka Yeung

Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou

HITES
RgSE
TRARM ST (RA32)

FHUITES
Tzt
AEELE
REALE
BXRLE
BIUFUTES
HKEKE
ERBLE
B8N
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iR e ISR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-B-NF+-A=+—AILFE

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 10. EERSRITHAEMNE (B)
(Continued)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits- scheme 2018
fees in kind contributions Total
e 2R RIREHE ZT-N\F
BERE REDF S R #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETTT

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Zhang Feng SRR 100 - - 100
Mr. Xu Yan He (General Manager) TRIRANSE A& (12453T) 100 401 = 501
Non-executive directors FHTES

Ms. Yu Lin Tt 100 - - 100
Mr. Liu Zhan Jun 2 HEELE 100 = = 100
Mr. Song Ting Jiu RIEAFLE 100 - - 100
Mr. Zhao Wen Liang X REE 100 - - 100

Independent non-executive directors B FHTES

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon GKBERE 212 - - 212
Mr. Poon Ka Yeung BRBEE 106 - - 106
Mr. Zhang Jian Zhou BRIALE 100 - - 100
1,018 401 - 1,419
During both years, no remuneration were paid or payable by the Group RREFE - NEEWEAES LM 11F7
to any of the directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals set out MAZmeHEEINME - ERMAKXE
in note 11 as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as E s AR E & 1) REN S E R B E -
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under REEEE - W EEFRESNRBRETMN
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during B2 &I 2 B ©
both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

11. Individuals with Highest Emoluments ". xeHES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2018: one) RhotseFMEEZFR  —&(ZZE-N
are directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in F:—B)REARAES  AFHMFHRM
the disclosures in note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments of the FE10  HepOE (ZZE—\F : UR) &= H
remaining four (2018: four) individuals are as follows: Bl B M F MBI T
2019 2018
—E-NE —ZE-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥EFT
Salaries and other emoluments e REAmMNES 1,889 1,856
Retirement scheme contributions RRET IR 174 182
2,063 2,038
Their emoluments are all within the band of HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 HE-_ZT-NFEZE—N\F+_A=+—
(equivalent to approximately RMB895,000) for years ended 31 BIEFE & HMEENFHNEEN T8
December 2019 and 2018. JLZE1,000,00078 7T (FHIR AR 895,000
JT) °
12. Dividends 12. RE
The directors do not propose the payment of any dividend for the year EFVTEBRNEBEZE_Z-—NF+ A
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). ST HLEFEEABRE (ZF—NF:
&|) o
13. Earnings Per Share 13. 8RER
Basic earnings per share BREREF

The calculation of basic earnings per share has been based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB59,719,000 (2018: approximately RMB48,089,000) and the
weighted average number of 1,678,000,000 ordinary shares (2018:
1,678,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share equals to basic earnings per share as there
were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both years
presented.

BREAZFBIRIEAQBES AR ST
#ANRH59,719,0007T (ZF—/\F : HA
R#48,089,0007T) * ARAKNEEZERNE 31T
AR hAE 19 201,678,000,000/% (==
—\4E : 1,678,000,0000% & 3@A%) 5 & o

EREHRF

BERMESHRFEEY ERBEINEEHEE
B B BREERNERERELRR
Gl
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost

At 1 January 2019
Additions
Disposals

Transfer

At 31 December 2019

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

At 1 January 2019

Charge for the year

Eliminated on disposal of assets

At 31 December 2019

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2019

BRAE
R=E-n§-A-R
AE

ik

ki

RZE-AE+=A=1-A
ZHTERAE
R-F-NF-A-R
TEETH

LERERHHE
R=B-A%F+=A=1-A

Rl
REZ-NET2A=1-H

‘e Consolldated Financial Statements

GAMBERNE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_T-NEF+-A=+—BALFE

14. )% - BERRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. Y13 - BERRE (&)
Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and Motor fixturesand ~ Construction-
Buiding  improvements machinery vehicles equipment in-progress Total
ez G %E
g7 Kt HRRAE & e fRIR h

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARRTE  ARMTT  ARMTT  ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR

Cost REAR
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-\E—A-A 91,715 2,340 106,672 400 10,672 7962 223,382
Additions AE 3,692 - 10,646 2,257 2,803 11,511 30,909
Disposals & (95) = (2,656) (65) (340) (1,020) (4,176)
Transfer £ 17,005 - - - - (17,209) -
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N§+ZR=1-R 12517 2340 114,662 6213 13,135 1,248 250,115
Accumulated depreciation and RHERAR
impairment
At 1 January 2018 RZF-\E—A-A (25,514) (2,020) (63,445) (1.667) (7.547) (1.221) (101.414)
Charge for the year TEERH (4.375) (56) (7.801) (761) (1,108) - (14,101)
Eliminated on disposal of assets I E BRI 2 - 233 62 319 - 2739
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+=R=1-H (29,863) (2,076) (68,914) (2,366) (8,336) (1,221) (112,776)
Carrying amounts K
At31 December 2018 RZB-\ETZA=+-8 8,65 264 45,748 3847 479 7 137,339
At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s buildings with a RZE-NAF+A=+—H8 A&EET
total carrying amount of approximately RMB40,140,000 (2018: BEEEELHARA40,140,000T (ZZF—N
approximately RMB31,800,000) were pledged to secure the Group's &F : ) AR¥31,800,0007T) WIEFE S
aggregate bank facility of RMB100,000,000 (2018: RMB100,000,000), AEBERITHELIEAR 100,000,000
of which approximately RMB30,000,000 (2018: Nil) have been utilised as T (ZZE—N\F : AR#%¥100,000,0007T) &Y
at 31 December 2019. M - HR L ARKE30,000,000T(=ZF
—N\F BR_ZT—hhF+_A=+—8H
REDEERE

120 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. Right-of-use assets

S £ 23
iR e ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—HLEE

15. EREEE

Prepaid lease Land and
payments buildings Total
ENHEERE T REF EoH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETTT ARETTT ARETFT
(note (a)) (note (b))
(FfF3E (@) (GEEE())
Net book value at 1 January 2019, R=ZE—NF—A—HK
as previously reported BREDFE (AR 2H) - = =
Effects of the adoption of HKFRS 16 I¥ME B #RE ERIE
(note 3) 16552 (M15E3) 59,309 4,950 64,259
Net book value at 1 January 2019, as R=ZE—hF—A—HH
restated FRERE (K& 59,309 4,950 64,259
Depreciation e (1,570) (1,523) (3,093)
57,739 3,427 61,166

(a)

The prepaid lease payments represent interest in land situated in
the PRC which were amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. Upon initial application of HKFRS 16, the prepaid lease
payments fall into the scope of HKFRS 16 as it meet the definition
of right-of-use assets.

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s prepaid lease payments
with a total carrying amount of approximately RMB57,739,000
(2018: approximately RMB59,309,000) were pledged to secure
the Group’s aggregate bank facility amount to RMB100,000,000
(2018: RMB100,000,000), of which approximately
RMB30,000,000 (2018: Nil) have been utilised as at 31 December
2019.

R E REEEYRMROERAE

ZIANHEERRELNTENEELS
- ZEANEEFANHEHRER
BHAVEHE - AXERBBMEREE
Q165718 - MNEENRBEAE
BB REENE165RNER - Tih
REFAERBEENTES

RZZE—-NE+-A=1+—8  &x&£E
BERTE(EH ARS7,739,0007T (ZF
—\%F : H AR#59,309,0007T) KT8
NHEEFEEEANERRITRE LT
AFR#100,000,000 T (ZZ— N\ F :
AR#100,000,00070) MR - H
h#) AR #30,000,0007C (ZF— )\
F BRI F+=ZA=+—8
EEA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

15. Right-of-use assets (Continued) 15. EAEEE (&)

(b) The Group has leased several assets for offices and storage by AEECHEETEEENRAERER
facilities. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and Fie o MEBRRDERNZEE - UTBREE
contain a wide range of terms and conditions. Tenures of the ARG RIGES - HEANF—FEh
leases range from one to five years. Fo

16. Intangible Assets 16. B &EE
Anesthetic
drug
production
Computer and selling Customer Selling
software  Trademarks rights  Trade name list licences Total
ifie]
EREH i EE ES 4 EF4E  BEFTR @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETr  ARETR ARETr  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Note 16(a) Note 16(a) Note 16(b) note 16(c)
M 16() M 16() i3 16(0) HiEE16(0)

Cost %S
At 1 January 2018 and RZE-N\5-A-AR

31 December 2018 “Z-\FE+-fA=1-H 788 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 1,007 140,998
Addition HE 589 - - - - - 589
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+=A=t-H 1371 75 53,143 46,483 39,502 1,007 141,587
Accumulated amortisation R RELHE

and impairment
At 1 January 2018 R_E-\F-f—-H (676) (75) - - (28,120) (1,007) (29,879)
Charge for the year REETH (18) S - S (3.950) - (3.968)
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-\E+ZA=1-H

1 January 2019 k=E-NE-F-H (694) (75) - - (32,070) (1,007) (33,846)
Impairment loss for the year rEEREEE - - (3471) - - = (347)
Charge for the year AEETH (57) - - - (3953) = (4,010)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZB=1-H (751) (75) (347M) - (36,023) (1,007) (41,327)
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZA=1-A 626 - 49,672 46,483 3479 - 100,260
At 31 December 2018 W=E-\#+-A=1-H 9% - 53,143 46,483 7432 - 107,152
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16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

Note:

(a)

Anesthetic drug production and selling right and trade name

The recoverable amounts, which were assessed by reference to a valuation
carried out by Verity Appraisals Company Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer with appropriate qualification and experience in the
valuation of similar assets in the relevant industry, of the assessed value
of the anesthetic drug production and selling right is lower than carrying
amount, the assessed value of trade name is higher than carrying amount
at 31 December 2019 and both estimated value-in-use calculations were
higher than their carrying amounts in 2018. Accordingly, provision for
impairment loss of RMB3,471,000 for anesthetic drug production and
selling right was made during 2019 and no provision for impairment loss
for trade name is considered necessary.

The recoverable amount of the anesthetic drug production and selling right
is determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budget approved by the executive
directors covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate of
3% (2018: 2%) which is consistent with the forecasts. The growth rates
used do not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the medical
industries. The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 20%
(2018: 21%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segments.

The recoverable amount of trade name is determined based on the fair
value of trade name as measured using a royalty rate of 4.5% (2018: 4.5%)
on sales and discount rate of 20% (2018: 21%). The annual sales was
projected based on financial budgets approved by the executive directors
covering a five-year period and has been extrapolated using an average
3% (2018: 2%) growth rate. The average 3% (2018: 2%) growth rate is
based on the average 10-year consumer price index in the PRC and does
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the pharmaceutical
industries.

The anesthetic drug production and selling right and trade name has an
indefinite useful life which was assessed by the management at the end of
the reporting period.

The anesthetic drug production and selling right and the trade name
used to produce revenue to the segment of manufacturing and selling
of medicines under Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company
Limited.

R E REEEYRMROERAE

. EBIE
B5E -

(a)

ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

5 (&)

MBEEEER RS

—E-AFE+-A=1+—08 - EEE
BT EEENKRESE (2B BILE
EREEGEMEFTEGRAR (HESR
HEBTEEUEEETHENERRLE
5 (EH B ERETITG) KR IREE - %
BEBOFHEEEERNERERR-Z—N\
F - FEZEFHEAEEFESSRERR
B At R=ZT—HEFERND s SE
REVEL R EEBEE ARK3,471,000TI0
RAEDERERGBIEL BREREERE -

TR SEE SHAEE DA I S B TR AT U B £ 38 TR
BEREENTEAMETE - 251854
ﬁﬁﬁf@ihﬁﬁ%&t;&zﬁﬁﬂ BIETEE AEAE
RIR &I c MBRFHZRERE
fFA3% (=Z— AE-NQMHJM%Iwﬁ
R (TR — B0 E1TTRR - FRMGRE
TERBBBEHETENRBTIERR - BER
EHTREA20% (ZE—/\F : 21%) ° &
%m%ﬁfﬁmM%ﬁf I [ B A5 B 53 0 Y
rE

EBABHORIKE SR IR HEEERNL.5%
(ZZE—N\F : 45%) IR B R RAHR
rm%(f NE  21%)stE 2 55T
ANFERET - FRHEEDRBERTESH
FERERF NI REEETIEN - SWiEA
3% (ZF—N\F : 2%) FHHEREH - %
3% (ZZT—)\F : 2%) FHERETIERF
B 10F BB EEEBR I AR BAE LT
ERFHERE -

MHEEHEREBEWAEERERS
R WHERER2RMRETIE

AP SR S A e KIS BB R RN B TR
BREAR AR EREEMHE D BEL
WA -
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16. Intangible Assets (Continued) 16. B EE (18)
(b) Customer list (b) EFBE
The customer list has a finite useful life and is amortised on a straight-line EFZEARENFERFRILAELEN0
basis over 10 years. The useful life of the customer list is determined with FRNEH BPRENAERFRHIZLER
reference to the estimated future revenue from the customer list which BELEMNMEH KBRS BENDBE AR
is based on historical information. The management is of the view that WATMETE - ERERR - 10FHRH A% -
the future economic benefits that can be derived from the customer list RERFPAENRREE SR IBEN

beyond the 10-year period are insignificant.

The customer list used to produce revenue to the segment of EEZEARARMNETRERNEGR AR
manufacturing and selling of medicines under Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao RIZE A E RN E D EBE WA ©

Pharmaceutical Company Limited.

17. Deposit for Acquisition of Property, Plant and 17. BEY* - RERZENZS

Equipment

The deposit of approximately RMB1,066,000 (2018: approximately ZEEBHARE1,066,0007Ti7E (ZF—N
RMB1,075,000) mainly represents deposit to acquire property, & ) AR¥1,075,0007T) £ B AMHAEMNE
plant and equipment for the production base in Fuzhou. During SEEMBEME  BELRRBEOES o K
the year, additional deposit of approximately RMB1,836,000 FEAN  BEXMNOARE,836,0007T (=F
(2018: approximately RMB1,075,000) was paid and approximately —\F : HARKE,075,00070) (EBINE &
RMB 1,845,000 (2018: approximately RMB4,425,000) was reclassified as M#I AR #1,845,0007C (ZZE—/)\F : HAR
property, plant and equipment. #54,425,0007T) HE D AV « BB &R

1 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-ZE-NF+A=1T—HILFE
Inventories 18. B&
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Raw materials R H 55,879 63,013
Work-in-progress TR 18,428 20,618
Finished goods 2K i 50,440 29,507
124,747 113,138
The analysis of the amounts of inventories recognised as expense and BRAAI T ABENGFESE ST
included in profit or loss is as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-NF —=—N\F
Note RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BiEE AR¥T T ARETTT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFERA®HE 424,456 356,864
Write-down of inventories WRFE (i) 11,721 5,970
Reversal of write down of inventories FEMRREE (i) (114) (608)
436,063 362,226
Notes: IE -

(i) As at 31 December 2019, write down of inventories was approximately
RMB11,721,000 (2018: approximately RMB5,970,000). During the year,
obsolete inventories of approximately RMB4,473,000 (2018: approximately
RMB5,970,000) were identified and recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2019, write-off of inventories of approximately
RMB7,248,000 for work-in-progress not satisfy for testing (2018: Nil) were
identified and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(i) During the year, obsolete inventories written down previously were sold.
Therefore, a reversal of write down of inventories of approximately

RMB114,000 (2018: approximately RMB608,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

R E REEEYRMROERAE

—NWFE+=ZA=+—08 " #WRATFE
HANERME11,721,000t(ZT—N\F : &
AR¥5,970,0007T) - FAREFELHA
R¥4,473,000L (ZZ—N\F : HARKE
5,970,0007T) B R 4R A B R H i 2 E IS
KRB B RHER o

RZE—NFE+ZA=+—8 ' T/FEAH
HANEERTEMRNARYT,248,0007T
(ZZ—N\F : D) EHBIRRGEIBERE
=
FRN - LAMBARETEEED -

At - FERURE R ARE114,0007T (=
T—N\F: MAEmwsmmﬂwi
Ko EAh 2 T RS R AR R
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19. Trade and Other Receivables

19. FEWHRFA R H At FE U R TE

2019 2018

—E—hE —ZE—)N\F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

BisE ARETT AREFTT

Trade receivables FEUBE TR 138,439 121,565

Less: ECL allowance B TREMEEEERE (2,205) (2,133)

136,234 119,432

Bills receivables EWERE (i) 98,167 69,892

234,401 189,324

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JE M5 [R] 22 B /88 22 R R (i), 34(d) 1,745 1,978

Amounts due from related companies FEURRRE A RIFRIE (i), 34(d) 16,864 11,054
Amount due from the intermediate parent  fEURFR I EFA BIZRIAE

company (i), 34(d) 212 212

Other receivables HAtb U GRIA (iv) 5,289 7,246

Value-added tax recoverable AT EHE(E R (iif) 367 257

Prepayment and deposits BB MRS (iv) 39,319 33,919

Less: ECL allowance B TEEMEE S ERE (1,064) (1,007)

62,732 53,659

297,133 242,983

All of the trade and other receivables classified as current assets are
expected to be recovered within one year.

Notes:

() Asat 31 December 2019, the Group had discounted bank acceptance bills
approximately RMB98,167,000 (2018: approximately RMB69,892,000).
These bank acceptance bills matured within one year from date of
issue. The Group considered the issuing banks of the bills are of good
credit quality, therefore, the ECL of these receivables are considered as
insignificant.

(i) The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within
one yaegr2 Further details on the Group’s credit policy is set out in
note33.

(i) Value-added tax recoverable is value-added tax paid by the Group
eligible for offsetting value-added tax payable to arise on future
revenue streams in accordance with relevant PRC tax laws.

(iv) Other receivables and prepayment and deposits mainly represent
deposits prepaid in advance to suppliers of agprommatel
RMB34,328,000 (2018: approximately RMB29,763,000), whic
aged within one year, the management have been considered the
financial position of those supplier and with closely monitoring
and communication with the suppliers. Further details on the
Group'’s credit policy is set out in note 33.2.
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19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

Based on the invoices dates, which approximates the respective

revenue recognition dates, the ageing analysis of the trade and
bills receivables net of ECL allowance, was as follows:

ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

19. FEUWRBRFN & H At FEURFRIE (48)
(a) HRERD
MT%$EIZfW$ % U 1
R FEREEEEAE) REEAY
(R A TR B EEE) 2512 EiR 5

Mo

2019 2018
—E-hE —E)\f
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT
Within 3 months 3EAR 157,271 133,535

More than 3 months but less HBiE3EAELR1218A
than 12 months 75,341 54,235
Over 12 months HBiB1218 B 1,789 1,554
234,401 189,324

Trade and bills receivables are due within 30-180 days (2018: 30-
180 days) from the date of billing. Further details on the Group's

credit policy is set out in note 32.2.

Impairment of trade receivables

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables is as

FEMBR A K BRI R B —RAERRENE
H#EMF30=180H (ZF—/\F : 30
E180R) REIHIX T - REBEERR
VA — S RHIE B E32.2

(b) EWRFRE
RUERNEREEERRE 2N

follows: T ¢
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETFT
Balance at 1 January R—A— Bk 2,133 2,130
ECL recognised during the year FANER A EERHE 308 272
ECL reversed during the year FAEE 2 EEESE - (61)
Amount written off during the year FRMEEEE (236) (208)
At 31 December R+=A=+—8H 2,205 2,133
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BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 19. FEURBRFR R HAth FE SRR (48)
(c) Impairment of other receivables () HiEWRERE
The movement in the ECL allowance of other receivables is as HEBGRIEN B EEEERE &
follows: BT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETTT
Balance at 1 January R—A—H&&EH 1,007 1,228
ECL recognised during the year FANERZTEEESE 57 =
ECL reversed during the year FRERE Z EHEEEIE - (216)
Uncollectible amount written off WA ek R - (5)
At 31 December R+=A=+—8H 1,064 1,007
20. Contract Liabilities 20. S EE
2019 2018
—E—-hE —ZT-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Contract liabilities arising from ELEBTEREIE
receipt in advance ZEHaRE 19,426 13,378
The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of the A BBEASTRER MR YR ETSE
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are B IR SEREE - AEEE - DE
unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The Group expects the MK BTBAEINR S EERAEEE
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations % S iR 7 o ok RASRS FE A UL A o

will be recognised as revenue when the Group transfers good or service
to the customer.
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20. Contract Liabilities (Continued)

21.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s contract liabilities amounting to
approximately RMB19,426,000 (2018: RMB13,378,000) is expected to
be recognised within one year. As a practical expedient, this amount
does not need to be considered for the effects of a significant financing
component. The remaining contract liabilities amount to RMBNil (2018:
approximately RMB3,113,000) received for more than one year, and
the effects of a significant financing component is insignificant.

For all other contract with an original expected duration of one year or
less, as permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning of the year amounting
to approximately RMB13,378,000 have been recognised as revenue
during the year.

Principal Protected Deposits

The principal protected deposits is the structured deposits stated at fair
value through profit or loss earning the minimum return for the range
from 1.05% to 4.10% (2018: 0.0% to 4.75%) interest per annum with
maturities from 30 days to 182 days (2018: 35 days to 185 days).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all principal protected deposits
have been matured and no outstanding balance noted.

R E REEEYRMROERAE

21.

ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

a ,/J =L
ZE-NAF+ZA=+—8 " A£EH
/\E’ﬁ%19,426,0007{:(f§ NE : AR
13,378,0007T) K& KB EEAR —FAHE
RoEB—ERREFR  ZeBITFE
EREBABMEK DML - HRRREEBR—
FHAENBBARARBZL(ZZE—N\F:

HAR®3,113,0007T) * EAREK DB
ZHEL o
MRTEHHR B —FHK—FUARNHEME

MME - REFEVHBRELEE155
DEEZERTRANNR ZERATAE
& o

REVHARBEEZANEBOARKE
13,378,0007CE R F AR ABA o

RABEIEFRK

RAZGERAEEEFRIRA AT AER
S EATHEN.05%F4.10% (ZT— /\4F :
0.0%%E4.75%) FHFEF 8 o HE|HHIR
H30KE182K(=ZF—/\4%F : 35KE185
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BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

22. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2. ReERREEEY

2019 2018

—ZE-hF —ZET—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Cash at bank and on hand WRITEARNRIRE 384,211 323,577

In 2019, deposits with banks carry interest at market rates which range
from 1.35% to 1.80% (2018: 1.50% to 2.38%) per annum.

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group, approximately
RMB384,211,000 (2018: approximately RMB323,577,000) of bank
balances denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is
not a freely convertible currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

23. Trade and Other Payables

RZZFB—NF - ROGRETHEEMNEN
F1.35%F1.80% (ZZE—/\F : 1.50%=
2.38%)FF8 °

AEBMBITRIASCEBRBIETRARHE
HITAARBHENRITEROARE
384,211,000t (ZE—N\F : HARH
323,577,0007T) ° AR IET] B IR
B IR IE R BIA INE B IR IR R AETE - &
ERMNEEERTE  AEBERESBERE
HEITINEZEBRRITIEARE HIRBINE -

23. EERF R E A7 IR

2019 2018

—ZE-NF —ZT—N\F

Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000

BaE AR¥T T AREETFIT

Trade and bills payables FERTBR R FE R AR 62,678 46,193

Receipts in advance TBUGRIE 4,569 1,430

Other payables and accruals HAb R RIE R ETE A (ii) 92,682 55,139

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERR R B R EI5RIA (i), 34(d) 13,850 28,794
Amounts due to the immediate parent ERNEBEARRIE

company (i), 34(d) 16 23

Financial liabilities measured R AT ER
at amortised cost EEAE 173,795 131,579
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

23. Trade and Other Payables (Continued) 23. BEERFR EL At BB FRIE (48)
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or Fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬂ)}ﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁ‘ JHEHR —F A
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand. An XA SRERBBRARIRZERER - REWRH
ageing analysis of trade and bills payables at the end of the reporting RNREZ AR ENENERRENEERD
period, presented based on the invoice date, is as follows: RECOITAAT -
2019 2018
—E2-hEF —E-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARETFT
Within 3 months 318 A A 44,765 13,748
4 to 6 months 4Z6(EA 8,073 27,676
7 to 12 months 721218 H 8,285 2,348
Over 1 year 1A £ 1,555 2,421
62,678 46,193
Notes: B
(i)  The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. () ZEEHAERR SEREAREREE
(i) Other payables and accruals mainly represent security deposit, VAT (i) HMENREREAEAEIEZRRID
payable, selling expense payable and other tax payables of approximately ﬂgﬁi-@m FEAS SHE B PR N EL A B A A
RMB29,991,000, RMB10,310,000, RMB30,598,000 and RMB9,266,000 g DRI ARK29,991,000T - AR
(2018: approximately RMB20,866,000, RMB10,208,000, RMB3,786,000 10,310,00075 + AR#30,598,0007T & A
and RMB13,673,000) respectively. R¥9,266,000 T (ZZT—\F : YARE

20,866,0007T + AR#10,208,0007C * AR
#%3,786,0007T &2 A R #13,673,0007T) °

24. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 24. fIERITEE
2019 2018
—ZT-hEF —ZET—-N\EF
Effective interest rate Maturity RMB’000 RMB’000
BHRFIE Z#A ARBT T AREFT
Short-term bank loan — secured 4.35% (2018: Nil) within 1 year
RERITER—FER 435% (=T —)\F : &) —&RN 30,000 =
The interest-bearing bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost. All M ESRITIEE THIRE SHA AT BR - REEEPT
of the Group's borrowings are denominated in RMB. BEEHUAREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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24. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings (Continued)

25.

For the year ended 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2018, the Group have been pledged buildings
and prepaid lease payments were stated at an aggregate value of
approximately RMB31,800,000 and approximately RMB59,309,000
respectively. The Group has available unutilised banking facilities of
RMB100,000,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2019, the Group have been pledged buildings and
prepaid lease payments included in right-of-use assets were stated at an
aggregate value of approximately RMB40,140,000 and approximately
RMB57,739,000 respectively. And the Group has utilised banking
facilities of RMB30,000,000 and has available unutilised banking
facilities of RMB70,000,000.

Entrusted Loans from the Immediate Parent
Company

On 5 April 2011, the immediate parent company further agreed
to extend the repayment date of entrusted loan in the amount of
RMB9,000,000 as Neptunus Bio-engineering had undertaken to the
Company that it would not demand repayment of the abovementioned
shareholder’s entrusted loan unless and until: (1) the repayment of
such shareholder’s entrusted loan would not adversely affect the
operations of the Company and/or its business objectives as set out
in the prospectus published by the Company on 29 August 2005 (the
“Prospectus”), and (2) each of the independent nonexecutive directors
was of the opinion that the repayment of such shareholder’s entrusted
loan would not adversely affect the operations of the Company and/
or the implementation of its business objectives as set out in the
Prospectus, and the Company would make an announcement in respect
of the decision of the independent nonexecutive directors made under
(2); and (3) the Company had a positive cash flow and had retained
profits in the relevant financial year.

24.

25.

Mt RIRITEE (&)
BE=F-\Ft=-A=1t-BHLFE
RZF—N\F+ZA=+—H0 ' AEED
BREFENEEREMHERENERE
D RIEARY31,800,000T R AR
59,309,0007T ° AN E A B A MRITHE
A ARE100,000,0007T °

BE_Z-NF+-A=1+—HLEE
R_ZE—NFE+-_A=+—8 KEENH
RERNEERENHEFRE (BEEFER
BEET)RABAEINE  DRAHOARE
40,140,0007T & 4 A R#57,739,0007T © 72X
EERITRHELEDE A ARE30,000,000
TIRAEBEAEHESHANBRTRHEASARE
70,000,0007T °

HERBRAEER

RZZE——FMARR AREEEDAARN
NEEBEEB T e ERERE LARRERE
P EBSARIRAERE —PEREZTERA
R#9,000,000;tHEEE - BRIERES
(WEEBZBRREZREFBTEH ARG 2%
BE/EARRN-_EERENA=-TNE
FE 2 BRER(HBERER]) IRAQFZ
XBEEBRBENTFAEE : QFBILIENTE
ERBEEZREZRAEBRBETZHANF]
CEELR/REITHBRERAHANRZE
HEZEEBKTFEE  UANAR RGBT
IFHITESRBQFAEAEELAE + &G3)
ARBIREBEVBRFEHRSEERERER
IREBEF o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-—T—NE+-—A=+—BIEE

26. Deferred Revenue 26. EFEW
Subsidy A Subsidy B Subsidy C Subsidy D Other subsidy Total
wEA w8 #Ec #ED H A @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR AR®TR AREWTR  ARRTn  ARET:R

At 1 January 2018 RZZ-)\&—R—-AH 299 40 2,406 = 868 3,613
Additions i - - - 300 - 300
Amortisation for the year TEESH - - (401) = (868) (1,269)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ-N\E
1 January 2019 +-A=+-Ak
“Z-NF-F-H 299 40 2,005 300 - 2,644

Amortisation for the year REEHEHE - - (401) - - (401)

R-ZE-1E
At 31 December 2019 +ZA=1+-H 299 40 1,604 300 - 2,243
Deferred revenue refers to the subsidies granted by the Shenzhen RIEW S4B R Y T B R R/30FR Y T B I
Bureau of Science and Technology and/or the Shenzhen Bureau REM ARG #ITHEEZERFRLN
of Finance for assisting the Company in performing research and B o WA THRBIAR S E £ &
development of medicines products. Income will be recognised to Fx % - BERZENEREEKIEE
match with the research and development expenses incurred; useful life SERKEF o

of property, plant and equipment or when the project is completed.

The directors consider that, except for the subsidies mentioned in note EEZRE - BWE7RM 26 THUEBIIN -
7 and note 26, there were no other forms of government assistance ANEEN A E BB & B R BT
from which the Group has directly benefited. = o

RYIHBERBFEEYEMROBRAT  2019F 55 133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-NEF+_A=+—HILFE

27. Lease Liabilities 27. HEAE
2019 2018
—E—hE —ZE—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Total minimum lease payments: &EHERIBERE
Due within one year —iﬁﬂx]/ﬁﬁ 1,601 -
Due in the second to fifth years E_ERFIE 2,686 =
4,287 -
Future finance charges on leases liabilities HEBBENARRBEER
(2019: finance lease liabilities) (ZZ2—NF: pEHERE) (260) =
Present value of leases liabilities HEBERAECE—NF
(2019: finance lease liabilities) MEHEBR) 4,027 =
Present value of minimum lease payments: HEBEFERE :
Due within one year —FASIH 1,457 -
Due in the second to fifth years FEZERFRE 2,570 =
4,027 -
Less: Portion due within one year included W T AREIBEIR
under current liabilities T—FAZERES (1,457) =
Portion due after one year included under FASERBI B EIE
non-current liabilities T—F &2 ER S 2,570 =
Note: MHEE -
The Group has applied HKFRS 16, being 1 January 2019, the Group measure AEBEER %Ei%ﬂﬂ%i&%ﬁﬂ‘]%@?ﬁ(ﬂﬂ;%
the right-of-use assets as if HKFRS 16 had always been applied since the —NF—-A—R)  AREERMEEE BN
commencement date of the lease (other than discounting using the relevant EHEMGARE-—ERAEBNBREENS
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16). The 16%(@%/A%mﬁ/%ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁi"iﬁ']%165fEI HfE
comparative information presented in 2018 has not been restated and continues FItRREIE SEBEMERBRIN) - ZF—NF 25
to be reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations as allowed by the LB E R T ARSI W B RE B G
transition provision in HKFRS 16 are set out in note 3. BIEEN 755 R BB M E A RIF 165 BB 0E

FrEME R RN 2 3 (BAPHRES) ©

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the total cash outflows for the leases is REBEE_Z-NF+_A=+—HIFE - HE
approximately RMB7,044,000. 4RI H 4 B ARE7,044,0007T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-—T—NE+-—A=+—BIEE

27. Lease Liabilities (Continued) 27. HEEE ()

HEFBE

Details of the lease activities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has entered into leases for land use right in
PRC, offices and warehouse.

R-B-NF+-_A=+—H xEEEH
TEMLTHERE  RAERAERZM

4 -
Financial statements Range of
Types of items of right-of-use Number remaining
right-of-use assets assets included in of leases  lease term Particulars
EREEERR EREEENIKERER HEHE HTHASEE #+i5
Land use right in PRC In “right-of-use assets” 1 32 years All lease payments are prepaid upon
entering the contract
PR B EY) 1+ B R4 RIEREEE] 1 326 PrAEN AR LA ARTRRN
Office Buildings carried at cost in “right- 2 110 3 years No extension option or termination
of-use assets” option would be exercised at the lease
commencement date.
WRE R AEEE KA BR#E 2 13346 RIEERR B I ET R AR
F TE o
Warehouse Not applicable as short term lease 1 Within 12months  Subject to monthly fixed rental payment
exemptions under HKFRS 16 and no extension option or termination
applied option would be exercised at the lease
commencement date.
BE EPrEAE BN BRELERE16 1 12/ R ZEABRFEHE MR RN H SRR B 5

FETEREERETER

R E REEEYRMROERAE

EATET AR LLE -
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BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

28. Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of 28. LR E MR R R AW TSR
Financial Position
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial (a) HZREMBARRERAMBHIERE !

position represents:

2019 2018
—ZE-NF —E=—N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
PRC EIT B EEFTSH
Provision for the year REFEHHE 7,870 11,407
Balance of tax provisions relating HIE R E AR
to prior years IR B4R 2,342 2,342
10,212 13,749
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRAELEHEEERAE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised ERERE B IBIRR RERELTRIE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the (BE) AENEKRSD RAFERE
movements during the year as follows: BT
Fair value
change of
non-current
assets Others Total
FRBEE
WA ESE Hith et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR¥TR AR®T T
At 1 January 2018 R=ZE—-—N\F—A—H 17,682 (1,719) 15,963
Credited to profit or loss FTABRER (768) 196 (572)
At 31 December 2018 and R-E—N\F
1 January 2019 +=ZA=+—HK
—ZE-hF—-HA—H 16,914 (1,523) 15,391
Credited to profit or loss FFABERER (1,424) (1,069) (2,493)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-h&F
+=A=+—8 15,490 (2,592) 12,898
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28. Income Tax in the Consolidated Statement of 8. e IR R R AR FTSH (1)
Financial Position (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (Continued) (b) EWRELHEAERER : (B
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Net deferred tax assets recognised on RERE ISR R TR
the consolidated statement of financial mkmlﬁﬁéﬁr@
position (2,592) (1,523)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on RERE ISR R R IERA
the consolidated statement of financial miﬁ“ﬂlﬁﬁfﬁ}%@
position 15,490 16,914
At 31 December 2019 R+=—A=+—H 12,898 15,391
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised () YWRERWELEHREBEEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax REHAK - AEBER KRB BHIEERE
losses of approximately RMB67,323,000 (2018: approximately #IANR¥67,323,0000T (ZF—/\F :
RMB65,920,000) available for offset against future profits that #)ANR¥65,920,0007T) @ 7] A LA 8
may be carried forward for five years for PRC EIT purposes. No R TN A B AR B PSR AEEE R
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses F o FARBETERARIORFR - IR
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. FIBEEERRERIEEE -
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29. Share Capital

Notes
Bzt
Registered, issued and fully paid: 7=~ E&/T R
HRBR
Domestic shares of BREEARY0.I0T
RMBO.10 each HIRE R (i)
H shares of RMBO.10 each BREEARY010T
HIHAR (i)

Registered, issued and fully paid: A  EETR
HRBR

At 1 January and at 31 December R—A—HAkK
tZA=+-8

The owners of domestic shares and H shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All domestic shares and H shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Notes:
() The domestic shares are not currently listed on any stock exchange.

(i)  The H shares have been issued and listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 5 September 2005.
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29. JRA

2018 2018

Number of

shares

A
RiIAEE —T-N\E
‘000 RMB'000
T ARETT
1,252,000 125,200
426,000 42,600
1,678,000 167,800
1,678,000 167,800

Wﬁ%&H%E’J%ﬁ/\E%M(HXTHTE/RE’J

CWERRARFEHE ENERIR—
e ﬁﬁﬁWéﬁx&HHﬁ“‘J$ AR TEES
BRIEHER -

BisE :
(i) NERRBIRIMEFRERR S LT o

(i) HEREBZZZAFNAARBRETENE
BBMERZZMERARGEMLET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. Reserves

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium
Share premium arose from the issue of shares at prices in excess
of their par value less share issue expenses.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve comprises (i) the difference between the total
amount of fair value of shares issued to the immediate holding
company and a fellow subsidiary of the Company and the amount
of the net assets value acquired during the acquisition of Fuzhou
Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (“Neptunus Fuyao”), (ii)
the difference between the total amount of consideration paid
to the immediate parent company and a fellow subsidiary of
the Company and the amount of the net assets value acquired
during the acquisition of Neptunus Changjian, and (iii) the
difference between the total amount of consideration paid from
immediate parent company and a subsidiary of the Company and
the amount of the net assets value disposed during disposal of
Taizhou Neptunus Nano Bio-medical Technology Company Limited
("Neptunus Nano”).

Statutory reserve fund

The Company is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit
according to its PRC audited financial statements to the statutory
reserve fund until the balance of such reserve has reached 50% of
the Company's issued share capital. Any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund shall only be used for making
up losses or for capitalisation into share capital, provided that the
remaining balance is not less than 20% of the issued share capital
after such capitalisation.

R E REEEYRMROERAE

S £ 23
iR e ISR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—HLEE

30. f&fE

(a)

(b)

(9]

R4 EE
REETZRMHEENREEBLE
EEMRERNDETER -

BB

BARRBERENARNRREREZERAT
K —FHRZKBARETHRMDH AT
ERBRERNERNETRERERR A
A(NEERE)REWEEEFEZH
MZERE (XN TFARREBERRR
—FRR R B AR R BRSNS
IREAEBEEFENSEZHENE
# o R(iNVARREBR AR RALRA
—fEM B AR N RE LR L ERM
BERARENBEREBERAB(EE
MADREHEEEFEZMNER -

EELAES

AR RAZRE DB ERIEP B S EZI TS
HENEA10%DEELTEATES
HEZRBESREDARAR D BHITIRA
HI150% &Lk o A B) AR 2 1E R A
BIMER - AE LB R ATAREHE
BB AR CARAE  HHEAT
DRETEBEARLENERITRA
20% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
= + 23

e B ISR R M5

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

30. Reserves (Continued) 30. f#1E (@)

(d) Distributability of reserves (d) fEEZTDIRME
At 31 December 2019, the Company had no distributable RZZE-NF+ZRA=+—8  KQA]
reserves, while its accumulated losses, calculated in accordance WA D REE - MRARBAME
with the Company’s Articles of Association and relevant rules and B RBERERRAGE - AR5
requlations, amounted to approximately RMB96,334,000 (2018: B84 AR %596,334,0007T (ZZ— N\
approximately RMB98,440,000). F : #) AR ¥98,440,0007T) ©

(e) Capital management (e) EXREHE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safequard REFEEREAN B R ABRAERER
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can BIREHEE N - (EMREMEE RIRRTE
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other 26 1B 3 K2 e ELAth F| 2 AR B 2 S 2R Bl 2 -
stakeholders, by pricing products and services commensurately T 0E R E R e K E o K AR TS e (B
with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a RIRERRAEISHE -

reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital REETESR KL E R REREEE NG
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder - UERRRRREER (SRR
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings B BRI B ARG E ANAR AT AR 2K
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital B RARFERA TS - WK BN
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of ME B E RSB EL A -

changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an REERFEG LA EE AR R E
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net EERHEAER - BUmE - A5EH
debt is defined as total debt (which includes interest-bearing BEFEFEREABER (BIEHRER
bank borrowings and entrusted loans from the immediate parent TEEREBIRARZREMET) MIER
company) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash RO RRERRE RESEFEY - &
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity PR E R IEERFTE K RIER T 5
less unaccrued proposed dividends plus adjusted net debt. DIKRE SIS FHEBEFHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Are B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

30. Reserves (Continued) 30. f#fE (&)
(e) Capital Management (Continued) (e) EBEXEE(E)
During 2019, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from MRZT—NEF  REBERRARIKE
2018, was to maintain a gearing ratio within 30% to 70%. In Z—N\FHERA - AEHFEREELER
order to maintain the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of 30%E70% 2 fH o RHEFERBIEL
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital %= REEFTREE AN TARRAIR
to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce BE% - BIIHRG  MREREE
debt. The gearing ratio at 31 December 2019 and 2018 was as IR~ BT ES BLE o B B B LAUR
follows: LEE - RIE-NERZZT-N\F

TZA=+t—BWEREBLERNAT :

2019 2018
—Z-hEF —=—\F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
k3 ARET T ARETFT
Total borrowings L€t
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITEE 24 30,000 =
Entrusted loans from the immediate HESAREEER
parent company 25 9,000 9,000
39,000 9,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents A ReRBESEEY 22 (384,211) (323,577)
Adjusted net surplus KRR RSFE (345,211) (314,577)
Total equity AR 859,930 798,832
Gearing ratio EARBELR N/A N/A
TEA NEMA

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the gearing ratio of the
Group was Nil.

TE-NFrR_ZFE-—NF+A

+ B AEENERBELERAS

NH [ %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stat

4= A

AR TN

~ For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE_Z-NEF+_A=+—HILFE

31. Contingent Liability
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant

32.

contingent liability.

Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising From

Financing Activities

The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities

can be classified as follows:

31. HAREF
NLMEIK - AEMGEEARRERE -

32. EXEREEE 2 RBEZHR

rEEEEEREED 2 ABEEI IS AN
T

At 1 January 2019
Impact on initial application
of HKFRS 16 (Note 3)

1 January 2019 (adjusted)
Cash-flows:
— Capital element of lease
rentals paid
— Proceeds
Non-cash:
Interest expenses

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2018
Cash-flows:

— Repayment

— Proceeds

At 31 December 2018

R-E—NE—A—A
ERERE BB ES RS 6T
(Hi53)

“T-NF—F—H &A%

REeRE :

-BRHEEHESH
BRI

- FISR0E

¥E5E:

FBFX

R=B-nE+=A=+-8

WZE—NF—H—H - 30,000 30,000
BeRE:
_E - (60,000) (60,000)
—FEsE = 30,000 30,000

R-B-NF+ZA=t—H - - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33. IEREERERBEE

Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include cash and cash
equivalents, lease liabilities, interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables, and entrusted
loans from the immediate parent company. The Group have exposure

FEENTIZERTIABERSNREEE
Y HERE  MRRTEE - BEEHRR
HAb MR - AR EA A IR R
E%! BIRFEER 7«!&%@7%;\%1.:,\)1

to the credit risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The policies on how % MBE SRR &f”iﬁﬂﬁ“ o HIKZSE
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages EI’JBZ REDITX - BEREEIE N E ;;A:;
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are - FERIE R A RUREGE & BT 1

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

331 SRIEEREEZESR
RERAR - FREHMITANKREED

33.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

T

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Financial assets SEMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHERAETENSREE
Trade receivables and bills receivables U BR SR K R R R 234,401 189,324
Financial assets included in other receivables 5t A E /b UGB & RIS E 21,779 18,829
Cash and cash equivalents ReEREEEED 384,211 323,577
640,391 531,730
Financial liabilities cRIBE
Financial liabilities measured at I A G E R 2 F A R
amortised cost
Trade and bills payables T ERR R B =R 62,678 46,193
Financial liabilities included in other payables st AEAbEMNFIEN SR EE 91,540 69,675
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITEE 30,000 =
Entrusted loans from immediate parent =l ISYNGIES= AR
company 9,000 9,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,027
197,245 124,868

R E REEEYRMROERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
= + 23

e B ISR R M5

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33. KRR EREBERBER (B

Policies (Continued)

33.2 Credit risk 33.2 FERE
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default EERBIEEGONS —FBREENE
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the HERB S| NEBHNMEERE - A5E
Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with BEHASMEAERHNES RIS ESH
creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, B m (ER) EARE R E L EA R
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial BB RHIEN TR ZHIBUE -

loss from defaults.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other AEENEERRE ZHERERIER
receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash RHEMEWGRIE - AEEMERAES
and cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties are kReEBMZEERREAR - AR5
the major banks in the PRC with established credit ratings, for HFERNPEEERSEETANES
which the Group considers to have low credit risk. Given the high 017 Bt - AEERBEERBRR
credit ratings of the banks, management does not expect any K - ERRITHRSEETR - ERE
counterparties to fail to meet its obligations. TEHZEHFHEENBITEERE -
(i) Trade receivables (i) FEUWERRX
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by AEENEERREEZSRR
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than B E R (MIER P ETE
the industry or country in which the customers operate and HITESER) s WEER
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily BEEEFOBERAEERENAE
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual SEEEREF B EANRRAE
customers. o
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers REEHREERERE TEH
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations EEMEFPETENEEE -
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments ZETHEERNTP X2 5
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account FRIE YR A A 8% N B AT AT 3R EE
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to 7 WEEREFPEREREARFK
the economic environment in which the customer operates. EEBMENKEERSEANE
Trade receivables are due within 30-180 days from the o FEUER SRS A AAEET30
date of billing. Trade and receivables are written off (i.e. Z180KMEH] o FEUARFN R FEUL
derecognised) when there is no reasonable expectation of FRIEPA T8 BRI 8 A 22 Uiz [o] B i 3
recovery. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral (BMERIEHER) - REBRETE
from customers. A% P Y B 3R R o
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Are B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-_Z-NE+-_A=t—HIEE
33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and B EREE B EREBER (B)
Policies (Continued)
33.2 Credit risk (Continued) 33.2 FERK (&)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) PFEUWERX (@)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables REEZRIBSEREHEBEES
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated BrzeBire B RREERR
using a provision matrix. ECL allowance for amounts due o AR RBEERT
from related parties arising from ordinary course of business HIBM - REBBEBREEEA R
(i.e. trade nature) are to be considered using “ranging from B 5MHE) KW REE T FRIE 2 18
allows 0% for amounts that are between current and within HEEEERE  HEAFRAME
3 months, 1%-4% for amounts that are more than 3 months Ba BB E £ 2 R R3E A M
but less than 12 months; 10%-20% for amounts that are H& R EHE0% - BE3EABR
between 1 and 2 years, 30%-50% for amounts that are B12E RS REREME1%-4%
between 2 and 3 years and 100% for amounts that are over 1R2F B S RERE10%-20%
3 years according to the past due ageing” for calculating 2E3IF AR REEE3I0%-50%
the ECL. As the Group's historical credit loss experience does MiBiE3Fam e EEE100%)]
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for different LNEHEBAEEEE - BRASE
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due EFESEEEBRERITERRT
status is not further distinguished between the Group's FEADEPEEBEEBRNER
different customer bases. FREZEZR  ARERBHIBER
EHBEERE TR A EETE
EEHEELE—FRD o
The following table provides information about the Group’s TREBIIR=ZZFE—-—NEFE+=A
exposure to credit rick and ECL for trade receivables as at 31 =t+—HEZZE—AN ¢ +=A
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 was determined as = t—BARSEEREERRRA
follows: AR EREESR B EEEIENE
¥
Current and
within 12 Over 1 year
“E-NF months past  but less than 3 Over 3 years
31 December 2019 +ZA=+-H due years past due past due Total
Y1) BB1F
1218 A @ H B RIEEL BiB3F N @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET R ARETR ARET R ARET R
ECL rate AHEEERE 0%-4% 10%-50% 100% -
Gross carrying amount BEREE
- trade receivables - IR 135,593 900 1,946 138,439
Lifetime ECL rHREEEER 61 198 1,946 2,205
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iR e SRR M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-T-NF+-A=+—RILFR

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
33.2 Credit risk (Continued)

33. B RS EE B ERBR (&)

33.2 EERA ()

(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) PFEWEBRX (@)
Current and
within 12 Over 1 year
—E-N\F months past but less than 3 Over 3 years
31 December 2018 +ZA=+-H due years past due past due Total
BRI BBI1E

128 A i@ BHRIFEH BB3F @t

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR¥TR ARBTR ARBTR

ECL rate AREEBRE 0%-4% 10%-50% 100% -

Gross carrying amount BERAE

- trade receivables - R 117,976 1,680 1,909 121,565

Lifetime ECL rHRAEERE 39 185 1,909 2,133
As set out in note 19, at 31 December 2019, the Group AN 19FTEL - R=ZF— N
had discounted bank acceptance bills approximately F+-_A=+—8 AEEZE
RMB98,167,000 (2018: approximately RMB69,892,000). BRI R EEZEREROAARK
Nonetheless, the Group only accepts bank acceptance bills 98,167,0007T (ZZE—/\F : LKA
issued by banks in the PRC with good credit rating and [R#69,892,0007T) ° FAM © A&
considers that the credit risk associated with such bank HEEMNTHEERIFEETR
acceptance bills to be insignificant. RSRITEREITZHRITEALER I
RRBRZFRITEARBZE

EREBEN

(i) Financial assets included in other receivables at (i) 5 A H fth PE UL FRIE iR 8 R AR

amortised cost

Financial assets included in other receivables at amortised
cost include other receivables and amount due from related
parties. The management would make periodic collective
and individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on ageing of the receivable balance,
historical settlement records and past experience as well as
current external information. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In these regards, the credit risk of
other receivables are considered to be low.

AENTREE

Ho At B W IR PR A AN B
& BB B R H At R W R I
FEW A& 7 FIE - BIRE S IRE
FEWRIRBRE - B R EELEHN
BIELER AR E RN B RS E
1t 8 Y5 35R I8 B ] [ Y RE HAAE
SR NMEAFFE - ARFIRC
EHMEERR + ARERT] SRER
BOE 5 he U O B B (A o Btk
5 HtEEFORME R R R
BRERIE -
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A IS ERER M

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-—T—NE+-—A=+—BIEE

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33. IEAKREEBEREBE (&
Policies (Continued)

33.2 Credit risk (Continued) 33.2 &R (&)

(ii) Financial assets included in other receivables at
amortised cost (Continued)
The ECL rate applied for the amount due from related
parties (trade nature and non-trade nature) and these other
receivables as follows:

(@ amounts due from related parties (trade nature) are to be
considered using “ranging from allows 0% for amounts
that are between current and within 3 months, 1%-4%
for amounts that are more than 3 months but less than
12 months; 10%-20% for amounts that are between 1
and 2 years, 30%-50% for amounts that are between 2
and 3 years and 100% for amounts that are over 3 years
according to the past due ageing” for calculating the
ECL.

(b) amounts due from related parties (non-trade nature)
and other receivable-ranging from allows 20% for
amounts that are between 1 and 2 years, 50% for
amounts that are between 2 and 3 years and 100%
for amounts that are over 3 years according to the past
due ageing.

And total ECL recognised as per the above approximately
RMB1,064,000.

33.3 Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the short-term investment
of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to parent company’s board approval.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. The
Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of liquid
fund. As at 31 December 2019, the Group has available unutilised
banking facilities RMB70,000,000 (2018: RMB100,000,000) for
loan and issue of bills of details of which are disclosed in note 24,
and outstanding bank loan was RMB30,000,000 as at 31 December
2019.

R E REEEYRMROERAE

(i) FFAEAMEEREREDRBHERAE
SFENERMEE (B
AW RE T KR (B S E I
BHMWE) Mz S H R YGRIARE
RANEREEEEERNT

() REUREESFIEEZEL)
AR AL A (1R IR 8 HA BR i
& AT & 318 A R 8 & 58
0% + HBiBE3EAEBTE12
18 A HA S BB 1 %-4% ¢
122F B S FEEE10%-
20% ; 2E3F A S R HE
30%-50% K BiA3FE &
KEREE100% ) AT E TEER(E
B8 -

(b) FEWREEBEHZEGEE ST
) REAEWGRIA - BikE
BRI B2 F B HI S TR
20% : 2E3F M BEE
50% M B3B3 F B B & R R
#100% ©

Mg Eii R TE s E R 1B A58
#)5 ANR#1,064,0007T °

333 RBELEK

AEEET R EEEEEEELATH
ReTEEY  BRUESABETE
HigE - UREEEREEETREE
ko EARSEAREZTSMHLE
REBRIRMBER B E RHERRTRE
TR ST KRB TEREH - FEUAER
HEHRFEANRS - ARAEZH B
BERSARNEEEERE - LENE
HRRARSDES TR - AEBEKBER
TEEEARDESHNEERR - N
T-hF+_A=1+—8 KEEAE
REBITEENABSARITREBAR
#70,000,0007C (ZF—\F : ARK
100,000,0007T) - #FIEHENHIFE24 -
MR=ZZE—NFE+=-A=+—RAKEE
R1TE A AR EE30,000,0000T °
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BRABTERENE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-A=+—RHLFE

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
33.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, interest-bearing bank borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from the applicable interest rate at the end of each

reporting period.

Iteret-bearng bank borowings Wi B4RTE E &

Vareble ates Fz
- Neptunus Fuyao -5IRE
Entrusted loans fiom immedate ~~ EBEBAFZE
parent company fast
Amounts due totheimmedate  ENERIERAT
halding compary b
Amounts due to elow EEGEG
subsidaris 7B
Amounts due to related companies  [EREEA R
Trade and other pajables ERE LA
{1508
Lease ables LEfH

33. A ETE B R RBUER (&)

33.3 RBE SR (&)

TRAJIAKEITES R B ERFIER
BRIZIHIR - ZRBIBAEBERIREARN
FORERBNERABERMAR SR
BRY - ARNE  E2AREREER
R BIRITEE DR AR ERH
B MAmRITRE AR FI TR
Ao EpIOTESRBENE A TR
BHEREREPRR - ZRFAFKL
NERASRERE - ENERERT
B AIRBER SRR E 2RBRNE
R -

2018
205
Weighted Total
aerage Within contractual
effectie ~ fyearoron  undiscounted Carying
interest rafe demand cash flow amount

WERS  R-FRE GWRRR
EUTE ¢ E G FEE
RMBOD MO RMBOD  RBOOD

ARETL  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR

= 9,000 9,000 9,000

= 111% 17,1% 111%
= 1598 1598 1598

= 87,051 87,051 87,051

124808 124,868 124,808
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33.

Policies (Continued)

33.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
The amounts included above for interest-bearing bank borrowings
comprised term loans from banks with a requirement on
demand clause. The maturity analysis of the term loans based on
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements is
summarised as follows. The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors of the Company do not consider
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company
believe that the term loans will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

Maturity Analysis - Term loans subject to a repayment on
demand clause based on scheduled repayments

S £ 23
iR e ISR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—HLEE

HSEREEBEREEK (&

333 RBESEARE(E)

A EFrEi BiR1TIEE S BB RN HIE
ERERIGFORITEHER - ERE
TR 15 5 P 8 195 E =1 BIE S0 E BB SR AY
FEBR ORI T - ZF BRI
BRIFEFFERR SR - BEEBIARE
BB EAN - RABEERA - B]1T
TRABEITEERBEZKAREER -
AARMEERE  ZFEHREFRBRE
B rEEt 8IE K B HEE -

M BEDT - MHEEREBRRRNEHNE
;R BEREE)

Total
Within contractual
one year or undiscounted
on demand cash flow Carry amounts
R—FRH BHRRIFH
EREERE RenBHsE FREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T AR®BTT
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZB-—NF
+=—A=+—H 30,064 30,064 30,000
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE—\F
+=A=+—~ - - -

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those effective interest
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

i FBMEEFH RN 2RPAREENE
BRAMEMGEAR - Rl B e eI
TRAEENIBNETTASHETEH
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e B ISR R M5

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33. KRR EREBERBER (B

Policies (Continued)

33.4 Currency risk 33.4 E¥EAK
Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the foreign B Al - MR REINE R AR ECR
exchange exposure. The Group's functional currency is Renminbi as AR EEEBRRAIRKIENUAARE
substantially all the turnover and expenditure are in Renminbi. The FHE - AEEREEEERARE o
Group's transactional foreign exchange exposure was insignificant. REERZ GIMNER R EM
No sensitivity analysis of currency risk was prepared as the impact HRFZETK @ HITREREBERE
was insignificant. RRE DT

33.5 Fair values 33.5 A ¥E
The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other ReRBSEEY - BRRERREAE
receivables, trade and other payables are not materially different WHIE - FERBR R R E M RIEN A
from their carrying amounts because of the immediate or short- FEEHERERES  RERZESH
term maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying amounts T AR sk AR BRI B ER - By B ERTTIE
of interest-bearing bank borrowings and entrusted loans from FEEBSARERERNREERE
the immediate parent company approximate their fair values. The NEERE c AFERRRR2RAE
fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, BERAUERITAREMS SRR
discounted at current market interest rates for similar financial & o
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year.

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
entered into certain continuing connected transactions.
(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related

parties during the year:

Related party transactions with the immediate parent

Are B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

3. EXRBEERIRS
BRAAR A ISR E it s 2 X BN
REBRAFEANGEEAEHETTIEKR
R o
(@ REBEE_Z—NFk=Z-—N\F+=A
Sq= Etif ANEBRI VS THE
BER

(b) AEERAFENGHEEESETT T
EvNL R

EEBBARETHHESRS

company

2019 2018

ZE-NE —T)N\F

Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB'000 RMB’000

BER A% B XHMHE Fitzt ARET R ARETFT

Neptunus Bio-engineering Immediate parent Sales of goods (ii) 23 70
BEEY company HEEN

=5V

Related party transactions with the intermediate parent

BB ARETHNHEELSRS

company
2019 2018
—e-hE 3N\
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BER AW B RHME i3 AR¥T R ARETT
Shenzhen Neptunus Group Company Intermediate parent Rental of office (i) 1,657 1,075
Limited (“Neptunus Group”) company HABAE
I TEERA - IS/NG
BRAR(IEERED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

3. EXBERARS (B)
RNEBMPARERZ N L LR
BEARS : (88)

34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related (b) ETEIT S

parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries

HERHEBRRETHRERRS

2019 2018
—B-0F “2)N\F
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB'000 RMB’000
BERERE B XHUE i3 AR¥ETT ARETFT
Shenzhen Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (ii) 98,370 86,396
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ FIZHIBE AR BEHMKS
("Neptunus Pharmaceutical”) Rental of storage (ii) 192 -
AL EEBR A EREEE
=22 1) Services fee (il 5,858 15,857
fRi5 %
Hangzhou Neptunus Bio- Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (ii) 6,468 11,028
engineering Company Limited RZNBAR BERNm
MNETEMIRERAR
Shandong Neptunus Yinhe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 3,437 694
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ FIZH{B A7) HEENM
WRBERTEEERAR
Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (ii) - 4,639
Technology Development RZMBAT BERKS
Company Limited Sales of goods (ii) 14 8
AT RENRERER AR HEED
Hubei Neptunus Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 535 178
Group Company Limited RZHBAR HEENM
s T RESEERAR
Heilongjiang Province Neptunus Fellow subsidiary (Returns of goods)/Sales of goods (ii) - (123)

Pharmaceutical Company Limited
TEIEBIBEERA

BESH) /NG

(HERE) /HEEN
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Are B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued) 3. EXBERRE ()
(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related (b) AEERAFEEANGEFERET N
parties during the year: (Continued) BERRS : (&)
Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries (Continued) HERMEQRETHEESRS (&)
2019 2018
ZE-NF —T)N\F
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB000 RMB'000
BERAB B XHMHE Fitzt ARET R ARETFT
Henan Dongsen Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 537 -
Company Limited EESENG HEEM
AERAREERD
Henan Neptunus Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 4an 455
Group Company Limited EEGENE HEEN

AEETEEEAERAT

Zhongshan Changjian Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 119 13
Company Limited RIZMBAR HEEN
RilimERELERAR

Neimenggu Neptunus Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 836 28
Company Limited FRMBAR HEEN
AELBTBERRAAF

Shantou Yuankang Pharmaceutical  Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 3,276 2
Company Limited EEGENT HEEN
WkTTRBEEBRAR

Jiangsu Neptunus Jiankang Bio- Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (ii) 3,552 2,053
technology Co., Ltd. BRSS! BEAK M
I#HETREEMRIRARAR

Jining Neptunus Huasen Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 456 408

Pharmaceutical Company Limited FZMBAF HEEN
EESTEREEERA
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fre B Rk MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE-ZE-NF+-A=1T—HILEE

34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

4. EXBAEL RS (&)

REENAFEA G HE
BRXS : (B)

BETET TS

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries (Continued) HERKMEQRETHEELS XS (&)
2019 2018
“E-NF —E)N\F
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BER A8 143 XHME firsr ARBTR ARETT
Heilongjiang Shukang Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) - 179
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ FIZHBER A HEEN
BELBTNRBEBRAA
Henan Neptunus Kangrui Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 993 716
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ FZH B2 A HERM
BT EREEER AT
Henan Neptunus Baiyue Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) - 2,786
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ FIZHB A7 HEEM
EEEENEEERAR
Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang Shiye  Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (ii) 490 1,505
Company Limited EE YN BEHKS
RIS TREEEERAR Sales of goods 302 =
HEEY
Guangdong Neptunus Longkang Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) - 123
Medical Technology Services RZNBAR HEEM
Company Limited
B8 T ERBRRMRS
BRAT
Sulu Neptunus Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 1,089 957

Group Company Limited
HESTEREEERAR

RZHBAR

HERW
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34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Are B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries (Continued)

HE

3. EXNBERIRS (,,a

(b) AKERAFENAS
FARG (8B

—E-NF+-A=+—HILFE

EHEIT T

BEEAMEQRETHNRELRRS ()

2019 2018
ZE-NF ZE-N\F
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB000 RMB'000
BERAB B XHMHE Fitzt ARET R ARETFT
Anyang Hengfeng Pharmaceutical ~ Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 1,623 -
Co. Ld. EELI=/NG HEEY
ZIGBEREERA
Shenzhen Quanyaowang Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 6,675 6,628
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. EEGENT HEEN
Y2 EMEL AR AF]
Changsha Neptunus Pharmaceutical ~ Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 263 201
Company Limited RIZMBAR HEEN
ROBTBEBRAR
Guangxi Guilin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 133 149
ERENETBEERL EESIE ! HERY
Heze Neptunus Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 456 670
Co., Ltd. BELI=/NG HEEY
TEETREERA
Zhoukou Renhe Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 3,807 464
Company Limited EEGENT HEEN
FRAMEMEERRAR
Sichuan Neptunus Jinren Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 344 545
Pharmaceutical Group RIZMBAR HEEN
Company Limited
mIBELBEREBRAA
Linyi Dongrui Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 750 -

C ompany Limited
TR BEERAR

EESH- /NG

HEED

R E REEEYRMROERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries (Continued)

34. ERBER RS (1)
(b) AEMAEFERZE
BAXS ()

BETET TS

HERNBARETHNRELSXS ()

2019 2018
—E-hF “T)\F
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BER A8 R XHMHE i3 AR¥ETTT ARETT
Guangdong Neptunus Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 76 201
Pharmaceutical Group RZMBAR HEEN
Company Limited
EREIRESEFRAR
Henan Dejitang Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 272 236
Company Limited EECHENG HEEY
AEEEEREARAA
Henan Neptunus Yinhe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 2,982 2,639
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ FZHIBEAF] HEEM
BT R EEER A
Shandong Neptunus Yinhe Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 60 2,891
Pharmaceutical Company Limited R ZKIEAF] HEEM
Linyi Branch
LB RTREERAR
Era e
Neptunus (Zhanjiang) Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 739 409
Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ FIZFIEAA HERY
BE(RD BEERAR
Neptunus (Shaoguan) Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (if) 144 120

Pharmaceutical Company Limited
BT (R BEERAA

BESH=ING

HERY
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34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b)

The Group had the following significant transactions with related

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Are B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries (Continued)

3. EXNBERIRS (,,a

() AEERAFERS

FEARS

(&)

EHEIT T

BEEAMEQRETHNRELRRS ()

2019 2018
—E-hE “E-)N\F
Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB000 RMB'000
BERAB 143 XHME Fitzt ARBTR ARETT
Jilin Neptunus Jian Kang Bio- Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (ii) 102 269
technology Company Limited EESENG BEZNM
EWETREEMRHRARAF
Neptunus (Maoming) Pharmaceutical - Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 211 87
Company Limited EEGENT HEEN
BE () BERRAR
Shenzhen Neptunus Shenyu Shiye  Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 137 92
Company Limited RIZHBAR HEEN
RITETLEEXARAF
Shenzhen Shenye Pharmaceutical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 156 -
Development Company Litmited ~ RZKBAF HEENM
MIMAEREERERR
Neptunus Gongtu (Beijing) Medical  Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) 484 -
Equipment Company Limited RZMBAT HEH
BTAE (LR BELREERAR
Shenzhen Neptunus Medical Fellow subsidiary Sales of goods (ii) - 7
Technlogy Research Institute BRSS! HEEY
Company Limited R&D expense (iv) 880 -
AETRERBERERERR REBR
Nanning Neptunus Jiankang Bio- Fellow subsidiary Purchase of finished goods (ii) 17,218 3,845
technology Company Limited EEGENT BEEKS 36 5

BEBTRFEAMMBARAR

Sales of goods
ﬁﬁ%{b

(i)

R E REEEYRMROERAE
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iR e SRR M
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-T-NF+-A=+—RILFR

34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) The Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year: (Continued)

Related party transactions with related companies

34. ERBER RS (1)
(b) AEERAEER L ERRGET T T
BARS : (#)

HREARETHEELRS

2019 2018
“E-NF —E-N\F

Name of related parties Relationship Nature of transactions Note RMB’000 RMB'000

HELER 143 XHME firsr ARBTR ARETT

Shenzhen Nepstar Pharmaceutical  Related company Sales of goods (ii) 9,559 11,831

Company Limited HiENA HEEM
("Nepstar Pharmaceutical”) Marketing fee (iii) 805 -
MITETERBEERAT EHERA
[ERBE])
Jiangsu Nepstar Pharmaceutical Related company Sales of goods (ii) 12,467 6,928
Company Limited NG| HEEN
TEHSTERBEBRAR
Shenzhen Nepstar Health Drugstore  Related company Sales of goods (ii) 2,458 -
Chain Company Limited NG HEEM
MITETEREREREH
BRAT

Notes: Ft

(i) Neptunus Group leased office premises to the Group, the rental of () BIKERASEHEHAEWE-
office premises was charged at pre-agreed rates with reference to RAEYEMRE DHIRBEMISERIZTE
market rates. SRE BRI -

(i)  The purchases, sales, rental of storage and services income received iy, EBHINEER - HE SHHEEER
were transacted in the normal course of business on the same terms RS BWATIRN —REKBES @ 12
as those charged to and contracted with other third party suppliers EHME = HERREFMFILN
and customers respectively. LKTER B 5T 4948 R R IR ST ©

(iiy  The marketing fees were based on pre-agreed rates with reference (i) EHWEBADK2EREAEENER
to the volume of purchase of goods from the Group. HEE%  RENBENERAE -

(iv) The research and development expenses are for technical (v HEBRIARIETSENKIME

development cooperation with Neptunus Group.

BEE-
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Are B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued) 3. EXBERRE ()
() Financing arrangements (0 BEZLHE

Amounts due to
related parties

A HES
2019 2018
=8 nF -—T-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARMET T

Entrusted loans from the BB RAIERER
immediate parent company 9,000 9,000
Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans from HESRREEEROERRIGHE 25
the immediate parent company are disclosed in note 25. ﬁﬁ(‘WﬁEZSBZ&% o
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties d) MARBENBEESER
Amounts due from Amounts due to
related parties related parties
as at 31 December as at 31 December
R+=A=+-H Mt=A=t-H
EREELHE EREERFE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NF 2 N\E ZE-NE “ZN\E
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR ARETT ARETR ARETT
Entrusted loans from the immediate EBRARZEREN
parent company - - 9,000 9,000
Amount due to the immediate parent ENEBRARE
company - - 16 23
Amount due from intermediate parent G SN
company 212 212 - =
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- For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—ZT-NFT-A=+—HLFE

34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

Amounts due from
related parties
as at 31 December

Amount due from/to fellow
subsidiaries:

Neptunus Pharmaceutical

Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang Technology
Development Company Limited

Shandong Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Henan Dongsen Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Hangzhou Neptunus Bio-engineering
Company Limited

Anhui Neptunus Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited

Anhui Neptunus Pharmaceutical Company
Limited

Hubei Neptunus Deming Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Hubei Neptunus Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited

Henan Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Group Company Limited

Heilongjiang Province Neptunus
Pharmaceutical Company Limited

34. EXEBEH RS (18)
) HRBEDBGET 8 )

Amounts due to
related parties
as at 31 December

R+=A=t-H RT=A=1-H
EWBELE ERBEELFE
2018 2018
—FN\E —FN\F
RMB'000 RMB‘000
AREFT AREFTT
e/ ERRZNE
ARFE
BIEE - 22,697
MM TRERRER
BRAR - 714
IS T RS
BRAT 73 76
AERREEERAR
233 8
RMETANIR
BRAR - 1,749
ZYETEEEE
BRAE - -
ZHETRTBE
BRAR - 5
WILE TR R
BRAFE 6 -
MBI RESEER
AR - 30
AEETREEEE
BRAR - 851
PEILETEE
BRAFE - -
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34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

()

Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

Amounts due from
related parties
as at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
EWREELFE

Amount due from/to fellow
subsidiaries: (Continued)

Guangxi Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Sulu Neptunus Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited (previous known
as "Zaozhuang Yinhai
Pharmaceutical Company Limited”)

Shenzhen Quanyaowang Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Jiangsu Neptunus Jiankang Bio-technology
Company Limited

Neptunus Jianchang (Beijing) Medical
Devices Company Limited

Jilin Neptunus Jiangkang Bio-technology
Company Limited

Shenzhen Neptunus Property Management
Company Limited

Shenzhen Neptunus Shenyu Shiye
Company Limited

Sichuan Neptunus Jinren Pharmaceutical
Group Company Limited

Qingdao Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Neimenggu Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

el /R AR
REFR (&) :
EESTHRTEE
BRAF
HEETREEE
AR (R1FE
RGeS
BRAR
S S5 3
BRAF
TEBIRELY
HEBRAH
BIRE (R BR
BHARAH
ENEERELY
HEARAH]
AmEENEER
ABRAR
AMETLEEE
BRAR
W) B e B
SEARAH]
BREIRVEE
ABRAR
AEEYEES £
BRAR

4. ERBELRZ (&)

(d) HARBERRET &R

) the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR IS RANEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NF+-A=+—HItFE

Amounts due to
related parties
as at 31 December

R+=A=+-R
ENBERRE
2018 2018
“BN\F —FN\E
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTL
68 -
223 =
1,143 -
- 211
- 5
- 78
11 =
. 19
4 -
20 =
32 -

RYTBEREEREMEMROBRAT 201955 161
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~ Forthe year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NF+-A=+—HILFE

34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

Amounts due from
related parties
as at 31 December
Wt=A=+-A
EREERE

Amount due from/to fellow
subsidiaries: (Continued)

Henan Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Daging Neptunus Zhongkang
Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Shenzhen Hongyang Property Management

Company Limited

Huizhou Neptunus Hongyu Pharmaceutical

Company Limited
Anyang Hengfeng Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Shandong Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical

Company Limited Lingi Branch
Xinxiang Neptunus Medical Devices
Company Limited
Henan Neptunus Baiyue Pharmaceutical
Company Limited Jiaozuo Branch
Jining Neptunus Huasen Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Shantou Yuankang Pharmaceutical Company

Limited

Zhoukou Renhe Pharmaceutical Company

Limited

Shenzhen Neptunus Medical Technology

Research Institute Limited
Shenzhen Neptunus Jiankang Shiye
Company Limited

Rl BN REHE
DA (@)
TSI RTEEAR

A7
AESTIREEAR
A7
bR e L]
BRAT
BNETREEE
BRAT
ZIBEGEEERAT

WRET R L
BRAREAD DA
ST EEEH
BRAF
ESIANEE
ABRAREELRA
BEEETERER
BRARE

BT TRBEARAR

BAOTCENEEER AR

RS BEREH R
BRARE
AmEEREER
BRAF

34. EXEBEH RS (18)
) HRBEDBGET 8 )

2018
It Syt
RMB'000
ARETFT
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Amounts due to
related parties
as at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
ERBEELFE

2018
It Syl

RMBI000
ARETL

70

26

422
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BABTBHRENE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_ZT-NF+-A=1+—HLFE

34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued) 3. EXBERRE ()
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued) (d) ®RBEMBESEHRE)
Amounts due from Amounts due to
related parties related parties
as at 31 December as at 31 December
Wt=A=+-A8 R+=BA=+-H
EWREELFE ERBEELFE
2018 2018
“BN\F —FN\E
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT AREFT
Amount due from/to fellow [EY/ ERRZNE
subsidiaries: (Continued) NEFAE : ()
Juying Medical Devices (Shanghai) EREREM(D8)
Company Limited BRAR - -
Nanning Neptunus Jiangkang BEFTRREYRR
Bio-technology Company Limited BRAT - 1,598
Zhuzhou Neptunus Medical Equipment BT RERR
Company Limited BRAF - -
Yangchun Bafang Pharmaceutical Company &M\ BEBR AR
Limited - -
Guangdong Neptunus Xinjian BRI
Pharmaceutical Company Limited BRAT = =
Neptunus (Shaoguan) Pharmaceutical BT (RWEEERAA
Company Limited = =
Neptunus (Wuhan) Pharmaceutical BERE)BEES
Trading Company Limited BRAR - =
Shandong Neptunus Yangguang Xinnuo UG TRt EHES
Pharmaceutical Company Limited BRAH = =
Neptunus (Maoming) Pharmaceutical BE (%R BEERAF
Company Limited = =
Neptunus Gongtu (Beijing) Medical BIAB LR BERE
Equipment Company Limited BRAR = =
Shenzhen Shenye Pharmaceutical AR BEER
Development Company Limited BBAT = =
Heyuan Kangchengtang Pharmaceutical MRMRANEER
Company Limited BRAR - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_T-NF+-A=+—RHLFE

34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

Amounts due from
related parties
as at 31 December

Amount due from/to fellow
subsidiaries: (Continued)

Anhui Neptunus Guoan Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Zhongshan Changjian Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Weihai Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Qingdao Huaren Pharmaceutical
Distribution Company Limited

Neptunus (Zhanjiang) Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Henan Neptunus Yinhe Pharmaceutical
Company Limited Jiaozuo Branch

Amounts due from/to related companies:

Nepstar Pharmaceutical

Jiangsu Nepstar Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Shenzhen Nepstar Health Drugstore
Chain Company Limited
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R+t=A=t+-H
EXEEATE
2018
It Syt
RMB'000
AREFTL
iR
ARIFE : (8)
RHETER RS
BRAH -
RImEREEERAR
HEETEEERAR
BFEECRERR
BRAH -
BE (D) BEERAR
AEETRTEEER
AREES AR 7
1,978
fElk /TR EEAR
R
ERBEE 5,554
IHETEREE
BRAFE 5,500
FETERERER
EHEERAT -
11,054
13,244

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

34. EXEBEH RS (18)
) HRBEDBGET 8 )

Amounts due to

related parties

as at 31 December

MW+t=A=t+-H

ENBERHNE

2018
It Syl

RMBI000
ARETT

105

28,794

37,817
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-—T—NE+-—A=+—BIEE

34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Outstanding balances with related parties (Continued)

Details of the terms and conditions of the entrusted loans and
financial assistance from the immediate parent company are
disclosed in note 25 and 34(b)(i). The balances with these related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

*  The English translation of the Chinese name in this
consolidated financial statements, where indicated, is
included for information purpose only, and should not be
regarded as the English name of such Chinese name.

34. ERBAERR S (1H)
(o) HABENEES &% (B
BEESAAEEERRY A0
B MelE 2 BB BTN B 25 % 34(b)
() - REARAMMEHARIER - %
BRARBREE -

* ERHENBERT  AEE MR
RAPXZTHN R B ZERE

Reconciliation of the Group’s amounts due from/to related parties (e)
arising from the ordinary course of business which are trade in
nature and non-trade nature, consisted of the following:

Amounts due from
related parties
as at 31 December

HERZ A TR
PSSR

AEEREBATBEESL

A&

T RES

MERIFBEHMNE 2 BB R

7T RS R B T IR IA:

Amounts due to
related parties
as at 31 December

W+=B=t-R Rt=B=t-H
EWEEAE FERBEER A
2019 2018 2019 2018
BN —TN\E “E-NE —T)N\E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARET T ARETI
Note (a) Note (a) Note (b) Note (b)
Wiz (a) Wiz (a) HizE(b) (D)
Trade nature EatE

Amount due from/to fellow subsidiaries &/ ERAZHBARZE 1,702 1,935 13,850 27,19
Amount due from/to related companies fely /TR BB E A RIFE 16,864 11,054 - 1,598
18,566 12,989 13,850 28,794

Non-trade nature *EFMUE
Entrusted oan from the immediate HERRAZERRER - - 9,000 9,000

parent company
Amount due to immediate parent company  [Eff EE A AIFUA - - 16 3
Amount due from intermediate Gl ISNS 212 M2 - =
parent company

Amount due fromto fellow subsidiaries e/ R RZHBARE 43 43 - =
Amount due from related companies FEREEARNE - = - =
255 255 9,016 9,023
18,821 13,244 22,866 37,817
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BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued) 3. ERBEAERR S (@)
Note: %t

(i)  The aging analysis of amounts due from related parties arising from the () REFEBARTELBREZIEERENE
ordinary course of business which are trade in nature and based on invoice R HEREIEES FIARER ST

date is as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET ARETT

Within 3 months 3fERAA 10,601 11,942
More than 3 months but less than 12 months HBi@31E A B 12{8 A 7,965 1,047
18,566 12,989

(i) The aging analysis of amounts due to related parties arising from the
ordinary course of business which are trade in nature and based on invoice
date is as follows:

(i) MRABEHKBETELBESELR ERNE

5 H HRO e BRI T SR RR

RO

2019 2018

—E-hE —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Within 3 months AR 13,456 27,349
More than 3 months but less than 12 months BiE3MEAELR12{EA - 1,051
Over 12 months BiE1218A 394 394
13,850 28,794
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34. Material Related Party Transactions (Continued)

®

(9)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 10 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
note 11, are as follows:

ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

3. EXRBERRS (B)

(f)

T2EEEABMNE
AEETEZEEEAEMEEHEN
FTARRREFNEZHAMME 10 F K
BN TETHESFEMEENSR
(R 11 BT

2019 2018

—g-NnE —E-N\E

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTF T ARETFT

Short-term employee benefits EEEERET 3,502 3,275
Post-employment benefits RIRIEF 174 182
3,676 3,457

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 8(b)).

Two of the key management personnel remuneration (short-
term employee benefits: approximately RMB840,000 and post-
employment benefits: approximately RMB21,000) were not
included in the above notes since they were not the individuals
with the highest emoluments disclosed in note 11.

The related party transactions in respect of (b) and (c) above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The disclosures required under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules are provided in the Report of the Directors.

R E REEEYRMROERAE

B BN 8 TR (RHE8(b)
7 o

MUETEERBEAEWE(EHEER
Fl - G ARIES40,0005T K EKEF -
AR #21,0007T) R RIS Lt b 7
F o BAMMIWIENE 11 IRENS
SEHES -

BE L (b) & (o) MEEF R HEMK
B ER 5KGEM LR AIE20E TR
ERHERERS - GEMETRAIE
0EMEMBEBRANESTSRE -
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BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

35. Commitments 35. &iE
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2019 @ AUTRZE-NF+_A=+—RHKE
authorised and not provided for in the consolidated financial BB RAEW RS I IEIRKRAIED
statements were as follows: B
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFIT
Property, plant and equipment M- BERRZE
Contracted for, but not provided for: EHEVEES K
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB k&E 3,342 3,356
(b) At 31 December 2019, the lease commitments for short-term (b) WZZE—NF+-—A=+—8 " ©HHA

ENHEEAE(ZF—\F  REAA
BEKEENNRRRERERIELR

leases (2018: total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease) are payable as follows:

BT
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Within 1 year R—FR 1,681 1,932
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFEA - 4,502
1,681 6,434
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-—T—NE+-—A=+—BIEE

36. Statement of financial position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

36. ANA BB IEAR R 3R

BRAERRRREHRARNABIRAROER

at the end of the reporting period includes: BFE
2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Assets and Liabilities BEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B K& 2,880 3,259
Investments in subsidiaries (note b) /B A R E (FsEb) 456,520 456,520
Deferred tax assets BIETHIEEE 212 189
Value-added tax recoverable AL EE(E R - 257
Loans receivables from subsidiaries REWB AR ZEIKER 50,000 50,000
Right-of-use asset TREEE 301 =
509,913 510,225
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables i MK B % R EL A U R TR 74,187 74,187
Value-added tax recoverable AT EEER 365 =
Cash and cash equivalents HeReEEY 62,002 59,509
136,554 133,696
Current liabilities RBAR
Trade and other payables JE 1S BR B R EL A FE A5 SRR 4,803 4,705
Entrusted loans from the immediate HESRARMEZTER
parent company 9,000 9,000
Lease liability HEBRE 342 =
Current taxation BNEATR T8 2,342 2,342
16,487 16,047
Net current assets REEEFE 120,067 117,649
Total assets less current liabilities HwEERABAS 629,980 627,874
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HE_Z-NEF+_A=+—HILFE

36. Statement of financial position of the Company 36. N BB MROR TR ()
(Continued)
2019 2018
—g-nF —E-\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred revenue EE W 340 340
340 340
Net assets FEE 629,640 627,534
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners AABHEE AELER
of the Company
Share capital &N 167,800 167,800
Reserves (Note a) fFEH (it a) 461,840 459,734
Total equity DB 629,640 627,534
Note a: Miza :
Movements in equity of the Company for the year were: RABIAANEE RES B SO T
Share Statutory Accumulated
premium reserve fund losses Total
BRAPERE EEAES RiEE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2018 R=ZE—N\F—A—H 554,844 3,330 (102,047) 456,127
Profit for the year and total FREFRFA
comprehensive income for the year THEREEE = = 3,607 3,607
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ-\F+=A
1 January 2019 =+—HERRZZE-NEF
—H—H 554,844 3,330 (98,440) 459,734
Adjustment for the adoption of BRRME B RS ERE
HKFRS 16 SREY R = = (59) (59)
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE—A—BNERAE
KR 554,844 3,330 (98,499) 459,675
Profit for the year and total FREMNRFAZE
comprehensive income for the year et - - 2,165 2,165
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE+=F=+—-H 554,844 3,330 (96,334) 461,840
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ire B ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019

36. Statement of financial position of the Company

BHEZ

E-NF+_A=t—HILFE

6. A B AR (&)

Note b: M EED
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019: LTFRR=ZZE-NAF+_A=+—HBXEWER
RIRE -
Proportion of ownership interest
BERERLH
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation  Class of authorised/issued effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operation  shares held and paid up capital interest the Company  subsidiaries Principal activity
MR R AR/ BET AE@M VN il

AEER EXE FERGER RARRAFE BRER 58 DERE TEER

Ascendent Bio-Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1(2018:$1) 100% 100% - Dormant
Company Limited (2018: 100%)  (2018: 100%)

SRR AR R B TE 18T EfEd

(ZZ-N\F: 171)

Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao PRC Registered RMB30,000,000 80% 80% - Production and sales
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (2018: RMB30,000,000) (2018:80%)  (2018: 80%) of medicine
(“Neptunus Fuyao”)** HE Bai] AE%30,000,0007C FERBEEY

BNETRERNEERAR ((ETRE]) (ZZ-N&:

AR#30,000,0007)

Fuzhou Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 76% - 95% Production and sales of medicine
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (2018: RMB10,000,000)  (2018: 76%) (2018:95%) HERHEEN
(“Neptunus Jinxiang")** A FE AEK#10,000,0007¢

BNET P EUERR AT CE-N\EF:

(gxeg)= AR#10,000,0007)

Fuzhou Fuyao Medical Co., Ltd PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 79.6% - 100% Sales of medicine
(“Fuzhou Fuyao”)** (Note vi) (2018; RMB30,000,000)  (2018: 79.6%) (2018: 100%) SHEEY)

BN EEREARAR (ML)~ il i AR#10,000,00070
(Pitzvi) (ZB-NF:

AR#30,000,0007)

Shenzhen Neptunus Changjian PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - Sales and distribution of
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (2018: RMB10,000,000)  (2018: 100%)  (2018: 100%) medicines and healthcare
(“Neptunus Changjian”)* (Note iii) FE i) AEK#10,000,0007C products

RIEEIREZEERAT (CE-NF: HERD HERRRER
(TBERED)* (i) AR#10,000,0007)

Xianning Neptunus Changjian Trading PRC Registered RMB500,000 100% - 100% Sales and distribution of
Company Limited (“Xianning Changjian”)* (2018: N/A) (2018: N/A) (2018: N/A)  medicines and healthcare
(Note iv) (ZZ—N\F: (ZZ—\%F:  products

RESIREESERAT @) TNER) HERHHERRRER
(TRERED)* () i i AR#500,0007T

(ZZ2-N\%: TER)

R E REEEYRMROERAE
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BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

36. Statement of financial position of the Company 36. A"A A IR &R (F8)
(Continued)
Note b: (Continued) MisEb « (48)
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019: (Continued) LNTARZZE—NAF+_A=1+t—HBZEWEBR

ARE: (B

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERLY
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation  Class of authorised/issued effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operation  shares held and paid up capital interest the Company  subsidiaries Principal activity
MR K EE/BRIT AEEN | WE
DRER ERUE BEERGER RBRRAFE BRER t=2o) DNABE TEEE
Jilin Neptunus Changjian Industrial PRC Registered RMB500,000 100% - 100% Sales and distribution of
Company Limited (“Jilin Changjian”)* (2018: N/A) (2018: N/A) (2018: N/A)  medicines and healthcare
(Note v) (B N\%&: (ZZ—NFE:  products
ENEIREEXARAT TER) TER) HERSHERRRRR
(EmERD)* () HE i AR 500,007
(ZZ2-N\F: TER)
Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical (Lianjiang) ~ PRC Deregistered N/A N/A - N/A Production of medicine
Co., Ltd ("Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang”)** TER TER TER 4EZm
(Note i) (2018: RMB50,000,000)  (2018: 79.8%) (2018: 100%)
BIRENE (B ARAR 8 Bt (Z2-NF
e e - AR H50,000,0007T)
(MBEAREEEIT ) ** (i)
Neptunus Jinxiang Chinese Pharmaceutical ~ PRC Deregistered N/A N/A - N/A Production of medicine
(Lianjiang) Company Limited NEm TEm TER £EER
(“Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjiang”)* (Note ii) (2018: RMB31,000,000)  (2018: 76.2%) (2018: 100%)
BISRPERE(ET)ERAT  FF Bt M@?W ﬁ)
3 [, . AK31,000,0007T
(TEESKET]) (i)
*  These companies are registered under the laws of the PRC as limited e ZERRRBHEERZEZLRAEREER

o

b

liability companies.

# Neptunus Fuyao has controlling interests in Neptunus Jinxiang and Fuzhou & BEREHE TR RBMNEE (TR
Fuyao (“Neptunus Fuyao Group”). SE ) A ERER
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36. Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

On 21 March 2011, Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang was newly formed with a
registered capital of RMB50,000,000 of which RMB10,000,000 was paid
up during the year 2011. On 17 April 2012, the remaining registered
capital of RMB40,000,000 was paid up.

On 15 August 2011, the board of directors of the Company resolved
to increase the registered capital of Neptunus Fuyao Lianjiang from
RMB50,000,000 to RMB112,000,000 of which RMB106,400,000 and
RMB5,600,000 will be contributed by Neptunus Fuyao and Neptunus
Jinxiang, respectively. On 31 August 2019, the subsidiary was deregistered
under the law of PRC. Details please refer to note 29.

On 24 June 2011, Neptunus Jinxiang Lianjing was formed with a registered
capital of RMB50,000,000 of which RMB10,000,000 was paid up during
the year ended 31 December 2011. Additional capital of RMB21,000,000
was paid up on 17 April 2012. The remaining registered capital of
RMB18,050,000 and RMB950,000 will be contributed by Neptunus
Jinxiang and Neptunus Fuyao respectively. On 31 August 2019, the
subsidiary was deregistered under the law of PRC. Details please refer to
note 29.

On 4 January 2013, the Company acquired 100% equity interest of
Neptunus Changjian with a registered capital of RMB3,000,000. On 28
January 2013, the registered capital of Neptunus Changjian was increased
to RMB 10,000,000 of which additional capital of RMB7,000,000 was paid.

On 12 September 2019, Xianning Changjian was formed with registered
capital of RMB500,000 of which RMB500,000 has paid up during the year
2019.

On 18 October 2019, Jilin Changjian was formed with registered capital of
RMB500,000 of which RMB500,000 was paid up on 14 January 2020.

On 29 March 2019, the Shareholders Resolution resolved to decrease
the registered capital of Fuzhou Fuyao from RMB30,000,000 to
RMB10,000,000.

R E REEEYRMROERAE

Mt -

@

(ii)

(iii)

ire MR R MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HILEFE

6. A FIAMM &K (&)

M-Z——F=fF-+—R  BERESET
A - s E A A ARKS50,000,0007T
HbpR =T ——F AR%10,000,0007tE &
fte RZF—=—FWMA++AH - B TEME
AR ¥40,000,0007CE X AT ©

RZE——FN\NA+HA  ARAEEE
REBETREREETINEIMEARABARE
50,000,0007C3 N ZE A K #112,000,0007T
EEPAE%%H06,400,0007—3&/\E¢%§5,600,ooo
THEAREESETRERESTEREE - R
T—AFNA=1+—8 ZMBARCRE
FRELARES - FEHIBE2MMIE29 -

R-Z——F X A-+NA  BE&RET
RS s E A A AR ES50,000,0007T - EA
REBEE_Z—EF+-A=+—HILFEA
R #10,000,0007TE 1+  EINEARAREE
21,000,000tER =T ——FMA++HX
e ﬁ%T*zﬂﬁ§$AEM18,oso,oooi&)\E
#950,0007TH#5 % Bl ;ifi%&;’iﬂaziﬁ
& -RZZT—NFNA=+—8  ZHBA
EARIET BAEES o sHER 229 -

R-ZT—=F—AMA - AAFRKEEER
2Rt - M E AR A ARE3,000,000
T R_ZE—=F—A=+N\RB  BIEfE
BRI E ARG E AR 10,000,0007T - H
EEHNE AR ARET,000,0007TE X1 °

—E-AENAAT=H MEREK -
EfEARAEARES00,0007T @ P AR
500,000t —E—HES Xt e

—ET-hFE+A+TNAR - HENRRERKT
FMEARAARE500,0007T @ Hh AR
500,000t R —_ZE-_TEF—A+WNAEX
e

—NEFE=ZAZtTHhH BRRZRR
;siaaﬂﬁaﬂl\f%wﬁ}ﬂﬁéZKEE AR¥
30,000,0007T3 %= A K #10,000,0007T °
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BE-—T—NE+-A=+—BILEE

36. Statement of financial position of the Company 36. A"A A IR &R (F8)
(Continued)

Note b: (Continued) Miatb : (BB)

Notes: (Continued) MsE - (B

The following table lists out the information relating to the Neptunus
Fuyao Group which has material non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The

TRITEBEEREZEE R ([FFERER])
MEBERERBENEN - TXATHBEENEE

summarised financial information presented below represents the amounts

before any inter-company elimination

TR A RIS < £58 ©

2019 2018
—E-hEF —TN\E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT

NCI percentage EERERE DL 20% 20%
Current assets MENEE 474,050 403,276
Non-current assets EMBEE 309,157 300,390
Current liabilities mENAE (231,839) (163,253)
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (68,729) (68,924)
Net assets BEFE 482,639 (471,489)
Carrying amount of NCI SRR R M AREE 97,426 94,298
Revenue WA 541,414 470,116
Profit for the year R E A 20,138 13,053
Total comprehensive income PHWN AR 20,138 13,053
Profit allocated to NCI DB T IFE R R = 1 A 4,028 2,611
Dividend paid to NCI AT IR R R B AR B 1,800 2,000
Cash flows used in operating activities &4 EEHFTRIR SR 31,299 (21,547)
Cash flows from/(used in) investing

activities BETBAE/ PR BN (14,962) (8,725)
Cash flows (used in)/from financing

activities MEAES (FTA) /FiBH LR 27,346 6,346

174 SHENZHEN NEPTUNUS INTERLONG BIO-TECHNIQUE COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Five Year Financial Summary

EEMBERE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hE —N\F —+fF —TRF —GiiE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
RESULTS #i5
Revenue KA 1,080,871 867,123 790,286 759,111 721,346
Cost of sales SHERA (437,833) (364,908) (365,255) (371,905) (368,586)
Gross profit EF 643,038 502,215 425,031 387,206 352,760
Other revenue Hetg A 9,103 11,731 8,915 9,102 8,724
Other net income HAea WA 5 176 1,647 853 3,674 3,730
Selling and distribution costs HERDHERS (456,599) (349,026) (262,777) (225,786) (199,412)
Administrative expenses TEFAY (65,573) (55,916) (51,523) (50,441) (58,630)
Other operating expenses Hifs e Rz (49,907) (41,220) (46,942) (29,200) (50,537)
Profit from operations REEA 80,238 69,431 73,557 94,555 56,635
Finance costs BEEH (1,417) (1,787) (3,229) (3,886) (10,361)
Profit before taxation BRBLATER 78,821 67,644 70,328 90,669 46,274
Income tax expense Fri8 BB (15,412) (16,580) (14,899) (17,852) (14,796)
Profit for the year REERR 63,409 51,064 55,429 72,817 31,478
Attributable to owners of
the Company KATHEE AN 59,719 48,089 50,257 62,692 21,055
Non-controlling interests IR 3,690 2,975 5,172 10,125 10,423
63,409 51,064 55,429 72,817 31,478
Assets and liabilities BEHEE
Total assets BEE 1,124,123 986,096 1,000,232 1,033,614 1,113,166
Total liabilities BaE (264,193) (187,264) (250,464) (334,075) (481,244)
859,930 798,832 749,768 699,539 631,922

R E REEEYRMROERAE
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Group Property
L EIIES

PROPERTY IN PRC

Gross Group's

Location Intended use Site area floor area interest
it A THEE EEEE EihREm

(sq.m) (sq.m) (%)

(FF3K) (FEFHK) Aot

Kuiqgi Village, Industrial 166,109.5 58,434.74 80
Gushan Town,
Jin'an District
Fuzhou City
Fujian Province
The PRC
REREE RN I¥¥ 166,109.5 58,434.74 80
Bl s L AR AT
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